
 
 

NOTICE OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
April 20, 2021 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ELECTRONICALLY 

 
The City Council of the City of Pontiac will hold a Study Session on April 20, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
This meeting will be held electronically as allowed by the amended Open Meetings Act and in 
compliance with the City of Pontiac Electronic Meeting Policy. The agenda for the Study Session 
is attached.  The Pontiac City Council gives notice of the following: 
 

1. Procedures. The meeting will be conducted on zoom.us.  
When: Apr 20, 2021 06:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Topic: 222nd Session of the 10th Pontiac City Council 
Please click the link below to join the meeting: 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://zoom.us/j/96642354117?pwd=UFZVeUY5U1hTLzJ1ZHNwQ0tIOGV
0QT09  

Meeting ID: 966 4235 4117  
Passcode: 070648  
 
Or Telephone: 
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

      1312 626 6799  
Meeting ID: 966 4235 4117  
Passcode: 070648  
 
The public may view the meeting electronically through 
http://pontiac.mi.us/council/pontiactv/index.php 
 

2. Public Comment. For individuals who desire to make a public comment, 
please log onto the meeting using the zoom meeting link above.  When the City 
Council reaches the public comment portion of the meeting, please raise your 
hand if you wish to speak during public comment.  When your name is called, 
please unmute yourself and you will be given three minutes to speak.  If you 
are accessing the meeting by phone, the Council President will ask are there 

https://zoom.us/j/96642354117?pwd=UFZVeUY5U1hTLzJ1ZHNwQ0tIOGV0QT09
https://zoom.us/j/96642354117?pwd=UFZVeUY5U1hTLzJ1ZHNwQ0tIOGV0QT09
http://pontiac.mi.us/council/pontiactv/index.php


any members of the public who are joining the meeting by phone who would 
like to make a public comment.  Public comments are limited to three (3) 
minutes. 
Additionally, you may submit your public comment in writing directly to the 
Office of the City Clerk during regular business hours or by email with your 
name and comment to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us.  All public comments 
submitted by email must be received no later than 5:30 p.m. on April 20, 2021. 
Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes. The City Clerk will read your 
comments during the public comment section of the meeting. 

 
3. Persons with Disabilities. Persons with disabilities may participate in the 

meeting through the methods set forth in paragraph 2. Individuals with 
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services in order to attend electronically 
should notify the Interim City Clerk, Garland Doyle at (248) 758-3200 or 
clerk@pontiac.mi.us at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
 
Dated 4-20-2021, 12:30 a.m. 
Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk        
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, MI 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200 

mailto:publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us
mailto:clerk@pontiac.mi.us


Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carte1·, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

OHG 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
Megan Shramski, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burl<S, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a familyfriendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

Website: http://pontiaccityclerk.com/city-council-meetings Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

STUDY SESSION 
April 20, 2021 

6:00P.M. 
222nd Session of the 10th Council 

Note: The electronic meeting of the City Council on April 6, 2021 was not properly noticed. Therefore, no 
formal action 011 any items could be taken. The City Council did not meet on April 13, 2021 due to lack of a 
quornm. 

Call to order 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Approval of the Agenda 

Appl'Oval of the Minutes 
1. March 30, 2021 

Public Comment 

Agenda Items 

Resolutions 
Closed Session 

2. Resolution from the City Attorney to request City Council go into Closed Session pursuant to MCL 15.268(e) 
to discuss specific pending litigation; specifically Rubicon Real Estate Holdings, LLC, and Family Rootz, LLC 
v. The City of Pontiac and Garland Doyle, Interim Pontiac City Clerk." 

City Council 
3. City of Pontiac Resolution honoring Ester Jimenez 

4. Resolution in support of Pontiac Transpo1tation Museum (This 1·esolutio11 was recommended by Council 
Members Pietila and Taylor-Burl<S.) 

5. Resolution to approve a Charter Revision for the August 3, 2021 primaty municipal election ballot 



6. Resolution to have the Mayor fulfill the duties and obligations as head of the city administration (This 
resolution was recommended by Council President Pro Tern Carte,·.) 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 
7. Resolution to approve the RNA FM Snow and Landscape Service Extension Agreement from April 13, 2021-

April 13, 2022 not to exceed $447,764.40. 

Info,•mation Technology (IT) 
8. Resolution to approve contract for new Ricoh Printers for 50th District Court, Ruth Peterson Senior Center, 

Bowens Senior Center and Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) 

Mayor's Office 
9. Resolution to approve the purchase of825 Golf Dr.as the Designated Facility PYREC Operations 

I 0. Resolution to allocate a maximum of $50,000 for a one-year contract for lobbying services related to the 
American Rescue Act and funding for Cities (The resolution does not identify a lobbyist.) 

11. Resolution to approve instrnctions to Interim Clerk as recommended in the Finance Director and City 
Attorney's Report on Alleged Diverted Election Funds from the Clerk's Office 

Communication from the City Clerk 
12. City Clerk's Response to Nonfactual Rep01t from the Finance Depattment regarding Alleged Diversion of 

Election Division Budget Funds 

Adjournment 



#1 
MINUTES 



March 30, 2021 Formal 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

221 ' t Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically, on 
Tuesday, March 30, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Invocation - Councilwoman Patrice Waterman 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Members Present 
Ca1ter 
Miller 
Pietila 
Shramski 
Waterman 
Williams 

Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Excuse Councilmembers 

Attendance 
Remotely 
Remotely 
Remotely 
Remotely 
Remotely 
Remotely 

Location 
Pontiac, Oakland County, Ml 
Pontiac, Oakland County, Ml 
Pontiac, Oakland County, Ml 
Pontiac, Oakland County, MI 
Pontiac, Oakland County, MI 
Pontiac, Oakland County, MI 

21-84 Excuse Councilperson Doris Taylo1·-Burks for personal reasons. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Waterman, Williams and Ca1ter 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to the Agenda 
21-85 Motion to move items 7-12 (#7- Resolutio11 to exte11d La11dlord Cares Act, #8-
Resolutio11 to adopt a11 Electro11ic Meeti11g Policy, #9- Resolutio11 to approve Humble Desig11 as a 11011-
profit iu Po11tiac, #l0-Resolutio11 to.authorize Mayor to sig11 MDOT Funding Agreement, #11-
Resolution to approve establishment of m1 I11dustrial Developmelt( District (IDD) for 2100 S. Opdyke 
Road a11d #12 - Resolution to approve Speculative Building Design for 2100 S. Opdyke, LLC) before 
item #4. (Special Presentation on Medical Marihua11a Review Process Update) Moved by 
Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Shramski. 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Waterman, Williams, Catter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Canied 

App1·oval of the Amended Agenda 
21-86 Motion to approve the Agenda as amended. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and 
second by Councilperson Shramski. 

1 



March 30, 2021 Formal 

Ayes: Shramski, Waterman, Williams, Caiter, Miller and Pietila 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Approval of Minntes 
21-87 Approve meeting minutes for March 23, 2021. Moved by Councilperson Waterman 
and second by Councilperson Shramski. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Subcommittee Reports 
Received Public Safety-March 12, 2021 report. 

Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks arrived remotely from Pontiac at 6:08 p.m. 

Discussion 
City Council Special Committee on VEBA Implementation 
The Council selected Council President Kermit Williams, Councilwoman Gloria Miller and 
Councilwoman Patrice Waterman to represent the City Council on the special committee, 

Resolution 
Building and Safety 
21-88 Resolution to extend Landlord Cares Act Program. Moved by Councilperson 
Shramski and second by Councilperson Miller. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac in the midst of the Pandemic is offering relief for Qualifying Pontiac 
Landlords, and; 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac would waive one time the rental inspection fee for Qualifying Landlords, 
and; 
WHEREAS, the Mayor is proposing along with City Council to pass along this relief gesture to 
qualifying landlords until June 30, 2021, 
NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council in solidarity with the Mayor hereby authorizes the 
waiver of fees for qualifying landlords until June 30, 2021. 

Resolution 
City Attomey 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 
Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Bmks was having technical difficulties 

21-89 Resolution to adopt an Electronic Meeting Policy. Moved by Councilperson Shramski 
and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Open Meetings Act allows meetings of a public body to be held electronically 
in some circumstances through December 31, 2021; and 
WHEREAS, the local State of Emergency for the City of Pontiac as declared by Mayor Waterman on March 
13, 2020 as a result of the global pandemic; and 

2 



March 30, 2021 Formal 

WHEREAS, this Council is aware of rising COVID cases and hospitalizations and therefore reaffirms the 
existence of a local State of Emergency; and 
WHEREAS, the local State of Emergency is an allowable circumstance to convene electronic meetings 
pursuant to Section 3a of the Open Meetings Act; and 
WHEREAS, electronic meetings allow for review and participation of the public in meetings of the Pontiac 
City Council while also allowing social distancing during the pandemic; 
NOW THEREFORE, the Pontiac City Council hereby reaffirms the existence of a local State of Emergency 
and further resolves to hold all Council Meetings electronically until further notice, but not to exceed the 
existence of the local State of Emergency; and fmiher adopts the attached policy for the purpose of any 
electronically held meetings beginning April 1, 2021. 

Resolution 
City Clerk 

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski and Waterman 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 
Councilwoman Doris Taylor-Burks was having technical difficulties 

21-90 Resolution to approve Humble Design, 180 N. Saginaw a 50l(c)(3) nonprofit 
organization in Pontiac as a recognized nonprofit organization in the community for the purpose of 
obtaining a charitable gaming license. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Shramski. 

Resolution 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramsk.i, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: Carter 
Resolution Passed 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 
21-91 Resolution to authol'ize the Mayor to sign MOOT Funding Agreement (Contract 
No. 21-5028) for the Constrnction of the W Walton Blvd Concrete Pavement Repair Project. Moved 
by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac has received the funding agreement from the Michigan Depatiment of 
Transportation, and; 
WHEREAS, The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division has reviewed the subject agreement, 
and· ' . . 
WHEREAS, The project is budgeted i.n the 2021/22 Major Street budget, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign the 
MDOT funding agreement for construction of the W Walton Blvd Concrete Pavement Repair Project. 

Resolutions 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Catier 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

Economic Development 
21-92 Resolution to approve the establishment of an Iudustl'ial Development District 
(IDD) for 2100 S, Opdyke Road. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson 
Miller. 

3 



March 30, 2021 Formal 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 198 of 1974, as amended (M.C.L.A. 207.551 et. seq.), after a duly 
noticed public hearing, held on March 16, 2021, this Pontiac City Council, by resolution, has the authority 
to establish an Industrial Development District, as defined in M.C.L.A. 207.553(2), within the City of 
Pontiac; 

WHEREAS, 2100 S Opdyke, LLC ("Petitioner") is the owner of that certain real property located 
in the City of Pontiac and legally described below (the "Property"); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to M.C.L.A. 207.554(2), Petitioner is the owner of 100% of the state 
equalized value of the industrial property located within the proposed Industrial Development District; 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has petitioned the Pontiac City Council to establish an Industrial 
Development District on the Prope1ty; 

WHEREAS, construction, acquisition, alteration, or i.nstallation of a proposed facility has not 
commenced at the time of filing the request to establish the proposed Industrial Development District; 

WHEREAS, written notice has been given by certified mail to all owners of real propetfy located 
within the district, and to the public by newspaper advertisement in the Oakland Press and/or public posting 
of the hearing on the establishment of the proposed Industrial Development District; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on March 16, 2021 at which all owners of real prope1ty 
within the proposed Industrial Development District and all residents and taxpayers of the City of Pontiac 
were afforded an opportunity to be heard thereon; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of Pontiac 
to establish the Industrial Development as proposed: 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that the following 
described parcel of landed situated in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, and State of Michigan, to wit: 

LAND IN THE CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, BEING 
PART OF LOTS.8 & 9, A PART OF "ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 110", A PART OF 
SE.CTION 3, T. 2N., R. 10 E., AS RECORDED IN LIBER 52 OF PLATS, PAGE 26 
OF OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING 
DESCRIBED PARCEL:. COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST PROPERTY 
CONTROLLING CORNER OF SECTION 3 (AS PREVIOUSLY SURVEYED), T. 2 
N., R.10 E., CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN; THENCE S 
00°36'21" W ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 3, 1215.50 FEET; 
THENCE N 89°23'39" W 60.00 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING THE 
INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF CAMPUS DRIVE (WIDTH VARIES) 
WITH THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD (120 FEET WIDE); THENCE S 
00°36'21" W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 1331.66 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S 00°36'21" W ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 728.35 FEET TO A POINT OF DEFLECTION; 
THENCE S. 00°24'47" E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 901.82 
FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF UNIT 5 OF CENTERPOINT 
BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM, A CONDOMINIUM ACCORDING TO 
THE MASTER DEED THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 16667, PAGE 11, 
OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, AND DESIGNATED AS OAKLAND COUNTY 
CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO. 1004, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO, AS 

4 



March 30, 2021 Formal 

LAST AMENDED BY EIGHT AMENDMENT TO MASTER DEED RECORDED 
IN LIBER 35596, PAGE 855, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; THENCE THE 
FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID UNIT 5 
AND UNITS 21, 22, 40, AND 24 OF SAID CENTERPOINT BUSINESS CAMPUS 
CONDOMINIUM: (1) S 89°35'13" W 35.00 FEET, AND (2) N 00°24'47" W 20.00 
FEET, AND (3) 210.91 FEET ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 215.00 
FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 56°12'23", LONG CHORD BEARS S 61°29'01" W 
202.56 FEET) TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, AND (4) 226.24 FEET 
ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS 225.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 
57°36'46", LONG CHORD BEARS S 62°11'13" W 216.83 FEET), AND (5) N 
89°00'24" W 706.20 FEET; THENCE N 00°59'36" E 1815.00 FEET; THENCE S 
89°00'24" E 1080.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 1,939,980 SQUARE FEET OR 44,536 ACRES OF LAND. 

SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENT AND OR RIGHTS OF WAY RECORDED 
OTHERWISE. 

is established as an Industrial Development District pursuant to the provisions of PA 198 
of 1974, as amended, to be known as Oakland Logistics Industrial Development District. 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No: Cmter 
Resolution Passed 

21-93 Resolution to approve Speculative Building Designation for 2100 S Opdyke Road. 
Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

WHEREAS, 2100 S Opdyke, LLC ("Petitioner") is the owner of that certain real property 
located in the City of Pontiac and legally described below, (the "Property"). 

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2020, Petitioner received Final Site Plan approval from the 
City of Pontiac Planning Division to constrnct an approximately 711,360 sq. ft. building (the 
"Building") for the purpose of providing a multi-tenant industrial facility on the Property; 

WHEREAS, on March 30, 2021, the Pontiac City Council, acting under the authority of 
PA 198 of 1974, as amended (M.C.L.A. 207.551 et. seq.) , approved Resolution No. 21-92, 
designating the Property as an Industrial Development District; 

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Resolution, Petitioner has not identified specific users 
for the Building; 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has requested the Pontiac City Council to designate the Building 
as a multi-tenant Speculative Building, as defined in M.C.L.A. 207.553(8), and upon the 
conditions set forth in M.C.L.A. 207.559(4); 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the adoption of this Resolution, the Building must be 
constructed less than nine (9) years before the filing of the application for the industrial facilities 
exemption certificate; and 

WHEREAS, the Building otherwise qualifies under M.C.L.A. 207.559(2)(e). 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Pontiac City Council, that: 
Section 1. The Building, to be located on the following described parcel of land situated in 

the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, and State of Michigan, to wit: 

5 



March 30, 2021 Formal 

LAND IN THE CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, 
BEING PART OF LOTS 8 & 9, A PART OF "ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 110", 
A PART OF SECTION 3, T. 2N., R. 10 E., AS RECORDED IN LIBER 52 OF 
PLATS, PAGE 26 OF OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, LYING WITHIN 
THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: COMMENCING AT THE 
NORTHEAST PROPERTY CONTROLLING CORNER OF SECTION 3 
(AS PREVIOUSLY SURVEYED), T. 2 N., R. 10 E., CITY OF PONTIAC, 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN; THENCE S 00°36'21" W ALONG THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 3, 1215,50 FEET; THENCE N 89°23'39" W 
60.00 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING THE INTERSECTION OF 
THE SOUTH LINE OF CAMPUS DRIVE (WIDTH VARIES) WITH THE 
WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD (120 FEET WIDE); THENCE S 00°36'21" 
W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 1331.66 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S 00°36'21" W ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 728,35 FEET TO A POINT OF DEFLECTION; 
THENCE S. 00°24'47" E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 
901.82 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF UNIT 5 OF 
CENTERPOINT BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM, A 
CONDOMINIUM ACCORDING TO THE MASTER DEED THEREOF 
RECORDED IN LIBER 16667, PAGE 11, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, 
AND DESIGNATED AS OAKLAND COUNTY CONDOMINIUM PLAN 
NO. 1004, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO, AS LAST AMENDED BY 
EIGHT AMENDMENT TO MASTER DEED RECORDED IN LIBER 35596, 
PAGE 855, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; THENCE THE 
FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
UNIT 5 AND UNITS 21, 22, 40, AND 24 OF SAID CENTERPOINT 
BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM: (1) S 89°35'13" W 35.00 FEET, 
AND (2) N 00°24'47" W 20.00 FEET, AND (3) 210.91 FEET ALONG A 
CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 215.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 
56°12'23", LONG CHORD BEARS S 61°29'01" W 202.56 FEET) TO A 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, AND (4) 226.24 FEET ALONG A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS 225.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 
57°36'46", LONG CHORD BEARS S 62°11 '13" W 216.83 FEET), AND (5) N 
89°00'24" W 706.20 FEET; THENCE N 00°59'36" E 1815,00 FEET; 
THENCE S 89°00'24" E 1080.90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 1,939,980 SQUARE FEET OR 44.536 ACRES OF LAND. 
SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENT AND OR RIGHTS OF WAY RECORDED 
OTHERWISE. 
is hereby declared and approved as a multi-tenant Speculative Building pursuant to PA 198 

of 1974, as amended (M.C.L.A. 207.551 et. seq.). 
Section 2. The Building shall be designated as a multi-tenant Speculative Building for a 

period of twelve (12) years from and after its construction, unless revoked earlier as provided in 
M.C.L.A. 207.565. 

Section 3. An application for Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate may be submitted 
by the owner or lessee of the Building, as provided in M.C.L.A. 207.555. 

6 



March 30, 2021 Formal 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Council President Williams left the meeting. Council President Pro-Tern Carter assumed the chair. 

Special Presentations (presentations are limited to 10 minutes,) 
Office of the City Clerk Medical Marihuana Review Process Update 
Presentation Presenters: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk and Johnathan Starks, Special Assistant to the 
Clerk 

Update Report on City of Pontiac Allotments received through Cares Act and American Rescue Plan 
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman, Linnette Phillips, Economic Development Director and Darin 
Carrington, Finance Director 

Upcoming Infrastructure and Capital Improvements Projects for Calendar Year 2021 
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman, Dan Ringo, Interim DPW Director and Abdul Siddiqui, P.E., 
City Engineer 

Public Comments 
Two (2) individuals submitted public comments read by the City Clerk 

Mayor, Clerk ancl City Council Closing Comments 
Mayor Waterman, Interim Clerk Doyle, Councilwoman Pietila, Councilwoman Shramski and Council 
President Pro-Tern Carter made closing comments. 

Adjoumment 
President Pro-Tern Randy Carter adjourned the meeting at 7:59 p.m. 

GARLAND S DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 

7 



#2 
CLOSED 
SESSION 



Whereas, Michigan Open Meetings Act Section B(h), MCL 15.268(h), allows a public 

body to go into closed session to consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure 

by state or federal statute; and 

Whereas, Michigan Freedom of information Act Section 13(g) exempts from disclosure 

records subject to the attorney-client privilege; 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Pontiac City Council that it recess into closed 

session to discuss specific pending litigation; specifically Rubicon Real Estate Holdings, 

LLC, and Family Rootz, LLC v. The City of Pontiac and Garland Doyle, Interim Pontiac 

City Clerk, which is exempt from disclosure pursuant to MCL 15.243(1)(9 ). 



#3 
RESOLUTION 



City of Pontiac Resolution Honoring Ester Jimenez 

WHEREAS, it is the sense of th.is legislative body to pay proper tribute to indiv.idua)s of remarkable character whose 
lives have been dedicated to uplifting, inspiring an<l empowering the community and whose lives exemplify the highest 
ideals of humanity; and, 

WHEREAS, on July 18, 1978, Ester Jimenez vivacious, energetic and eager to work, commenced a profound and 
amazing career in public service and with the City of Pontiac which would ultimately span over four decades; and, 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of having a wonderful personality, .impeccable work ethic and integrity and despite being 
hired as a clerk typist, Ester Jimenez was afforded the distinct privilege of working in different roles and various 
departments throughout the City of Pontiac, .including Finance, the Clerk's Office, Treasury and Human Resources; and, 

WHEREAS, Ester Jimenez was always known to t,i-reet and meet everyone she encountered, regardless of race, religion, 
creed, or political affiliation, with a million dollar smile, pleasant words and was always prepared to provide assistance 
when necessary; and, 

WHEREAS, Ester Jimenez is trul}' a rare gem whose authenticity .is evidenced by her sincere enthusiasm and passion to 
help others; and, 

WHEREAS, Ester Jimenez not only held the City of Pontiac in high regard, but holds spending time with family and 
the City of Pontiac retirees, near an<l dear to her heart; and, 

WHEREAS) Ester Jimenez has also been an active and loyal member of St. Vincent De Paul Church and enjoys 
crocheting, sewing, cooking and playing bunco. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that we the members of the Pontiac City Council and on behalf of the 
citizens of Pontiac, recognize and honor with great pride and dignity, Ester Jimenez, for her over 43 years of outstanding 
service to the City of Pontiac and for of tremendous contributions of leadership, selflessness and commitment to the 
community. '1Congratulations Ester Jimenez on your retirement." 

Xma ~ 
Kermit WiJJiams, Preside11t 

@f'' ~ 
Ra11dy Carter, President Pro~Te1n Patrice Waterma11, Cou11eilwo1nan 

~(if~ ~~ 
Megan S}iramski, Co1111cilwoma11 Mary Pietila, Co11ncilwon1a11 

f!j1or1a,~ flJf'ol'IJ ~-@II'twl.es 
Gloria Miller, Co,111cilw01na11 Doris Taylor--Burks, Cm111cilwo1na11 



#4 

RESOLUTION 



Pontiac City Council Resolution 

Resolution in Support of Pontiac Transportation Museum 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the "City"), has a very deep and 

storied legacy in the transportation industry which extends back some 170 years or more and includes 

significant societal contributions, including: (1) a robust carriage industry, (2) birth and growth of the 

American truck industry, (3) astounding conversion to WWII "Arsenal of Democracy" support, (4) 

inventing the muscle car and spurring growth of the Pontiac brand, and (5) nurturing a revered and 

diverse community of transportation industry workers and leaders. and, 

WHEREAS, the "economic engine" of Pontiac people and enterprises included (and still includes) many 

smaller businesses that supported this industry with assembly, parts and services, and 

WHEREAS, the people of the Pontiac Community have for a century or more demonstrated the skills, 

resourcefulness, innovation, resilience, and diversity to succeed in those efforts above; indeed much of 

our city's rich heritage and culture is a product of those same people's lives as they contributed to the 

transportation industry. and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed an initial plan for development of a non-profit Pontiac 

Transportation Museum that will re-purpose a prior Pontiac school building in one of our historic 

districts with the intent of: (1) restoring pride and knowledge of these past Pontiac community 

achievements, (2) engaging local industry with the Museum in increased outreach of science, 

technology, engineering and math capabilities to our school systems, and (3) creating an attraction for 

generating visitorship and tourism in Pontiac. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

A. The City of Pontiac's government strongly supports and prioritizes the Pontiac Transportation 

Museum initiative as a prominent community project with significant upside civic enhancement 
potential. 



B. The City intends to actively seek and support outside funding alternatives that assist the 

Museum's capital campaign. Specific civic funding support may be considered at the 

appropriate time pending Pontiac Transportation Museum proposals. 

C. City planning and building administrative activity guiding renovation of the building/property 

will be expedient and provided with minimal cost {to the extent feasible). 

D. As the museum matures and opens, promotion of Pontiac community attractions will 

prominently include the Museum as one of the City's assets. 



#5 

RESOLUTION 



Pontiac City Council Resolution 

Resolution to Approve a Charter Revision 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, Michigan operates under a Home Rule Chatter as 
provided by the Home Rule Cities provisions of state law (Public Act 279 of 1909, MCL 117 .1 
et. Seq. as amended [referred to as the Home Rule Cities Act]); and, 

WHEREAS, MCL 117.18 specifies the procedures for revising Home Rule Charter and 
specifies that a legislative body by a 3/5 vote of the members elect may declare for a general 
revision of the Charter; and, 

WHEREAS, MCL 117.18 fmther provides that ifa 3/5 vote of the legislative body calls 
for a general revision of the Charter, the question of having a general cha1ter revision shall be 
submitted to the electors for adoption or rejection at the next general or municipal election, or at 
a special election; and, 

WHEREAS, in addition, MCL 117.18 states that in case the electors shall, by a majority 
vote, declat·e in favor of such a revision, a cha1ter commission shall be elected consisting of nine 
(9) electors of the City having a residence of at least three (3) years in the municipality and that 
the legislative body may by a 3/5 vote of the members elect provide that the Charter Commission 
be selected at the same election at which the proposition to revise is submitted; and the selections 
shall be void if the proposition to revise is not adopted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pontiac 
declare that there is a need for a general revision if the Home Rule Charter of Pontiac, Michigan; 
and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council, has determined for purposes of 
efficiency and fiscal responsibility, the Charter Commission consisting of nine (9) electors of the 
City of Pontiac having a residence of at least three (3) years in the municipality shall be selected 
at the general municipal election to be held on Tuesday, August 3, 2021; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THE SELECTION OF THE Charter 
Commissioners shall be void if the proposition to revise is not adopted by a majority vote of the 
electors. 



#6 
RESOLUTION 



Resolution to have the Mayor fulflll the duties and obllgatlons as the head of the city 
administration. 

WHEREAS, the planning commissions term has expired on June 30th 2017; and the Mayor Is to 
appoint new commissioners every 3 years; and the Mayor has yet to do so; and, 

WHEREAS, the Medical Marlhuana Commission is to be appointed by the Mayor; and the Mayor 
has yet to do so; and, 

WHEREAS, on January 21 6
\ 2020 the City Councll voted &-2 to approve Ordinance 20-30 to make 

an emergency ordinance to amend ordinance 23-63; and to have the planning commission issue 
a recommendation to the City Council; and the Mayor sits and directs the plannlng commission, 
and the Mayor has yet to do so; and, 

WHEREAS, on June 17th
, 2020 the City Council voted 7-0 to approve a resolution for the Mayor 

to engage Bonadio & Co, LLP and or any another accounting firm and pay the $10,000 retainer 
for the services of a forensic audit; and the Mayor has yet to do so; and, 

WHEREAS, on December 22nd
, 2020 the City Council voted 4-1 to approve a resolution to remove 

Anthony Chubb, Esq., from Glamarco, Mullins and Horton, P.C. as the attorney assigned to 
appear at City Council Meetings; and the Mayor was to replace Anthony Chubb as the attorney 
assigned to Pontiac City Council meetings; and the Mayor has yet to do so; and, 

WHEREAS, on March 9°', 2021 the City Councll voted 6-0 to approve a resolutlon that the 
Pontiac City Councll was to be provided with all log/stlcal Information regarding the Ottawa 
Towers closing Including, the date, time, location, and closing documents; and the Mayor has 
yet to provide the final closing documents; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council hereby requests that the 
Mayor perform her duties and obllgatlons above within 14 days from the date of this approved 
resolution or 1he City Council shall direct the City Council attorney to file a Mandamus lawsult 
against the Mayor with the court. 



#7 
RESOLUTION 



April 201h, 2021 

RNA FM 

Attention: Mr. Mufid Farha 

717 W Ellsworth Road, Ann Arbor, Ml 48108 

Dear Mr. Farha, 

The City of Pontiac and RNA FM hereby mutually agree to extend the contract for "Landscape and Snaw 
Removal Services". The contract between the City of Pontiac and RNA FM originally dated 3-12-2020, 

along with subsequent changes, if any, with an effective date of 4-1-2020. This agreed upon contract 

extension shall terminate at midnight 4-1-2021. 

The extension will see a reduction/concession of 10% of the overall price on both its landscape and 

snow removal services. The new landscape total for all city properties is $418,482. Last year contract 

amount was $464,979. This is a savings of $46,497 back to the city. Snow removal services will be 

$29,282.40. This is a savings of $3253.60 from last year's price of $32,536. 

The contract extension is created in accordance with Article Six (6) of the agreement within the contract 

documents. This correspondence will serve as our contractual agreement to extend the above

mentioned contract based on the terms and conditions along with subsequent modifications, if any, as 

outlines in our agreement dated 3-12-2020. We look forward to working with you and your team this 
contract year. 

If you have any questions, or concerns, please feel free to contact me at 248-758-3614. 

With Gratitude, 

City of Pontiac 

By:. _______________ _ Date: _____________ _ 

Dan Ringo, Interim Director, DPW, City of Pontiac 

Agreed: _____________ _ Date:. _____________ _ 

RNA FM 

I concur: _____________ _ Date:. ____________ _ 

Deirdre Waterman, Mayor, City of Pontiac 



RNA FM Contractor 
Performance Evaluation 

Scorecard 



1•~1■ iiil1<1.tl ~,l.•I l3;lE ~ II •n • •••tJ~ll:tF.•l,,lll'•l ~JII ~11,1 ~,1~1tt !.?JIL......._ ..... 1:1•!9•~ 

Customer KPl#1 Landscape 1. Daily Inspections, Generating Scores of 1-100 1. Administration Inspections: 80 
Satisfaction and will be Averaged. A Cumulative Average Score of >85% = 8 points 

Overall Performance (85%) or Better will Earn Full Credit for This 65-85% pro rata 1-8 points 
Category. 

Possible Bonus Points: 
> 90 points= 1 point (1 st yr.) 
> 95 points= 1 point (Years 2-3) 

(1) Bonus Point for Obtaining [Green Seal GS-37 
Standards for Cleaning Products) 



1••• ■ :::i:r111:.1 .. , - ,n;m II • ""1!!RJ!;tf•1,,111!1:Ul 1...,.,1:Ji~rf'I l:llJ."1-"ll:ll:::l:lll1,,1 ■,,.., .. - -

Customer KPl#1 Responsiveness 1. Monthly Detailed Principal Inspections, 1. Administration Inspections: 100 
Satisfaction and Generating Scores of 1-100 will be >85% = 8 points 

Overall Performance Averaged. A Cumulative Average Score of 65-85% pro rata 1-8 points 
(85%) or Better will Earn Full Credit for This 
Category. 

Possible- Bonus Points: 
> 90 points= 1 point (1 st yr.) 
> 95 points= 1 point (Years 2-3) 



1.-,.■ ::1rttJ':./j"I - ~ l11-t,."ilt~41:.lllt• ••--~f~1~111•1~411 ""'•tl~'h'ICI 1:.111.."1.:11:t■ ::ill:ltll~IL, 
M 1111---

1. Provider Can Be Awarded up to (10) Ten 
Health KPI #10 Safety and Points by Ensuring Compliance With <2 citations = 8 points 100 

and Safety Environmental and Applicable Safety, Environmental and 3-4 citations = 7 points 
Regulatory Compliance Code Compliance Matters 5-6 citations = 6 points 

Loss of One (1) Point per Citation 
Thereafter 

Two (2) Points for Good, Timely and Complete 
Reports, Timely Communication and Excellent 
Cooperation. 



CLIENT 

Key Performance Indicators Scorecard 2020-2021 PERFORMANCE PE RIOD 

Total Base Total Bonus Possible 
KPI Catee:ory KPI Performance Indicator Points Points Total Points Apr Mav Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 2020/21 YTD/YE 

120 
KPI 1- Mowing 8 2 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Landscape 120 

KPI 2 - Soring Clean 8 2 2 8 8 8 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

118 
KPI 3 - Fall Clean 9 2 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 9 9 9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

120 

Snow Removal 
KPI 4 - Contract Com ol 9 2 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 10 10 10 10 

120 
KPI 5 - No Callbacks 9 2 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 10 10 10 10 

120 

KPI 6 - Planning 10 2 2 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Response 120 

KPI 7 - Reporting 10 2 2 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

120 
KPI 8 - QA 10 2 2 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

120 
KPI 9 - Staffing 10 2 2 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Health and Safety 120 

KPI 10 - Safety and Accidents 10 2 2 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Total 
95 20 100 66 66 66 66 66 67 67 67 60 60 60 60 1198 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Dan Ringo, Interim Director of Public Works 

DATE: April 20th, 2021 

RE: Resolution to approve one-year extension for RNA FM for landscape and 

snow removal services. 

The Department of Public Works is requesting that the City Council approve a one-year 
extension of the landscape and snow removal services provided by RNA FM of Ann 
Arbor. RNA FM has performed strongly over the past year and their performance 
scorecard demonstrates their ability to continue to meet our expectations. RNA FM has 
also reduced their price for the coming year by 10% of last fiscal year's price. 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE 
IT RESOLVED, 

dr 

Attachments. 

RNA FM service over the last twelve months warrants a one
year extension of the initial agreement approved 4/1/2020. 

The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to extend the 
landscape and snow removal service agreement with RNA 
FM for 12 months beginning 4/13/2021 until 4/13/2022. 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Council President and Members of the City Council Information Technology 

FROM: Department 

THRU: Office of Mayor Deirdre Wate1man 

DATE: April 6, 2021 

RE: Ricoh Printers Contract for 50th District Court, Bowen Senior Center, Ruth 

Peterson Senior Center and Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center 

Problem: 
1. 50th District Court, Senior Centers, and Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment 

Center have 12-year old Ricoh printers that are in constant need of repair. 

2. Replacement parts are no longer available for the printers. 

3. Departments have become reliant on desktop printers' because they cannot trust the 
reliability of the old Ricoh printers'. 

4. Cost of printing to the smaller printers are four times more than the cost of printing 
to a Ricoh and printing is six times slower. 

Solution: 
1. Replace existing Ricohs with new models. 

2. Use desktop printers only as a backup for the new Ricohs to save costs. 

3. Do not replace existing desktop printers when they breakdown. 

Costs: 

1. We currently pay around $1,476 a month. This includes what we pay for toner and 
maintenance on the old Ricohs and the cost of toners for the current desktop printers. 

2. We will pay $945.12 a month total to lease eight new Ricoh printers plus $490.20 
service costs (toner and on-site service) for a total of $1,435.32 per month. 

3. For $40.68 less per month, we can get eight new Ricohs. 

4. Ricoh has a contact that will buy our cmTent fleet. 

5. The lease is for 60 months. At the end of the 60 months, the city owns the new 
Ricohs. 



Capabilities of new Ricoh printers that we currently do not have: 

1. New Ricohs print 60 pages per minute. 

2. You can scan directly from the printer to your home or shared drive. 

3. Scan to USB flash drive. 

4. Full 10. l" col or touchscreen operation panel. 

5. Besides staples, there is a staple less finishing feature. Some models will have a 
booklet maker and saddle stitching. 

6. Scan to USB flash drive. 

7. Wireless connectivity so you are not restricted to locations with a network port. 

8. Mobile printing and scanning from tablets or smartphones. 

Conclusion: 

Whereas, 50th District Court, Bowen Senior Center, Ruth Peterson Senior Center and 

Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center utilize Ricoh printers that are 12 years 

old; and 

Whereas, Maintenance for these outdated printers' costs approximately $1,476 per month; 
and 

Whereas, the current vendor can replace these printers ·with 11e-i-v printers on a lease for 
$1,435.32 per month, including maintenance; and 

Whereas, at the end of the 60-month lease the City will own the printers; 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Pontiac City Council approves the lease and 
maintenance of the new Ricoh printers at a rate of $1,435.32 per month for a period of60 
months, and authorizes the Mayor to execute contracts necessa,y to complete the 
transaction. 





The Courthouse Existing Ricoh Printers 

• The existing printers are 12 years old 

• Ricoh does not have replacement parts 
· for printers 

• Frequent jammed papers or offline 
errors when printing or faxing 

• The monthly cost of maintenance is 
more expensive than the new printers' 
monthly cost 



The Courthouse Existing Ricoh Printers 

Departments have become reliant on desktop printers 
because they cannot trust that the reliability of the 
old Ricohs 

Cost of printing to the smaller printers are four times 
more than the cost of printing to a Ricoh and six 
times slower 

The Courthouse staff will end up saving money, down 
time, and frustration when it comes to printing and 
faxing documents 

WlUh 

, _ II 

,. 



The New Ricohs 

• The new printers are much faster and more reliable 

• They include many features which will help staff to work faste r. 

• New Ricohs print 60 pages per minute 

• You can scan directly from the printer to your home or shared 
drive 

• Full 10.111 color touchscreen operation panel 

• Besides staples, there is a stapleless finishing feature. Some 
models will have a booklet maker and saddlestitching 

,....,, 



The New Ricohs 
J I 

• • 
,c t· .I 

,, 
1

· -11 
. . - ' , 1 I c 

' .. I I r 

Additional Features 

• Scan to USB flash drive ·-~.:~,~-

• Wireless connectivity so you are not restricted to locations with a ,":,~·: 
network port · , 

• Mobile printing and scanning from tablets or smartphones 

• The Courthouse staff will end up saving money, down 
time and frustration when it comes to printing and faxing 
documents 



The New Ricohs 
Cost 

• 60 months Lease of $473.77 per month per unit 

• Gold Service - includes Parts, Labor, Toner and Staples, 
(excludes paper) 
--Cost of B&W copies $0.0058 per page 
--Cost of Color copies $ 0.045 per page 



Thank you for your time 



Ricoh Online System Configurator Tool 
Choose a Model • Select Options Save, Print or Email 

Created By: Kelvin Lester I Phone: (248)-882-4991 I Email: kelvin.lester@ricoh-usa.com 

Your Configured Ricoh M P 5055 

• 
: J 

= 
• 

* Note: The image is a photo realistic illustration of your selected configuration . 

WIDTH 
45.30in 

(1.151mm) 

DIMENSIONS 

DEPTH 
27.00in 

(686mm) 

HEIGHT 
47.60i n 

(1,209mm) 

Actual dimensions may vary. These are approximate on ly. 

POWER CONSUMPTION (MAIN UNIT) 

110-120V, 60Hz, 12A-the required wall outlet is a NEMA 5-15R (receptacle) 

Additional power requirements may apply. 

Please read each option 's description copy to see if additional 

power sources are needed. 

Your Chosen Options 

• MP 5055 

• Paper Feed Unit P8 3220 

• One-Bin Tray BN311 0 

• Hybrid Finisher SR321 0 

• Bridge Unit BU3070 

• Fax Option Type M29 

• ESP XG-PCS- 15D 

RICOH 
imagine. change. 



I 

Ricoh Online System Configurator Tool 
Choose a Model • Select Options • Save, Print or Email 

Main Unit 

Main Unit 

Item/Description 

MP 5055 

Paper Tray & Optional Accessories 

Item/Description 

Paper Feed Unit PB3220 

Item# 

I 417766 

Item# 

417268 

RICOH 
imagine. change. 

Power Requ irements 

110· 120V, 60Hz, 12A • the required wa ll 

outlet is a NEMA 5-15R (receptade) 

Power Requirements 

N/A 

--- - - - -- ---------

Output & Finishing Options 

Internal 

Item/Description 

One-Bin Tray 8N31 1 O 

External 

Item/Description 

---- --- - - --- -·- -- -----
H)brid f inisher SR3210 

Bridge Unit BU3070 

Fax Options 

Item/Description 

Fax Option Type M2 9 

Security & M iscellaneous Accessories 

ltem/Oescription 

ESP XG.PCS-1 SD 

Item# Power Requirements 

417585 N/A 

Item# Power Requirements 
----- --- _, ----

417483 N/A 

417587 N/A 

Item# Power Requirements 

418601 NIA 

Item# Power Requ irements 

006428MIU N/A 



Ricoh Online System Configurator Tool 
Choose a Model • Select Options • Save, Print or Email 

Main Unit 

Main Unit 

Item/Description Item# 
------ -- -- ------ -

MP 5055 

• Output Speed (Letter): SO-ppm 

• Recommended Monthly Volume: 15,000 impressions/month 

• Maximum Monthly Volume: 50,000 impressions/month 

• Pow er Requirements : 110-120V, 60Hz, 12A - the required w all outlet is a 

NE MA 5-1 SR (receptacle) 

• Weight: 168.6 lbs. (76.5 kg) 

• Dimensions include SPDF: 

• W x D x H (inches): 23.1 x 26.9 x 37.9 

• W x D x H (mm): 586.74 x 683.26 x 962.66 

Paper Tray & Optional Accessories 

Item/Description 

Paper Feed Unit PB3220 

Provides an additional 1,100 sheets . 

Paper sizes up to 11" x 17". 

Paper weights up to 80 lb. Bond/166 lb. Index (300 g/m2). 

Weight: 48.5 lbs. (22 kg) 

W x D x H (inches): 23.1 x 27 x 9.7 

W x D x H (mm): 586.74 x 685.8 x 246.38 

Note: 

Paper Feed Unit PB3220 cannot be install ed with Paper Feed Unit PB3250, Caster Table Type M3, 

LCIT PB3260, Cabinet Type F, or any related options. 

Output & Finishing Options 

Internal 

Item/Description 

----·----

, 417766 

Item# 

417268 

Item# 

RICOH 
imagine. change. 

Thumbnail 

Thumbnail 

Thumbnail 



---------

One-Bin Tray BN3110 

Provides an additional output tray above the standard Internal Tray or optional 

Bridge Unit/Internal Finisher. 

Holds 125 sheets . 

Allows users to separate prinVfax output from copy. 

Supports paper sizes up to 11 " x 17". 

Weight: 3.1 lbs. (1.4 kg) 

W x D x H (inches): 17.5 x 17.7 x 5.9 

W x D x H (mm): 444.5 x 449.58 x 149.86 

External 

Item/Description 

Hybrid Finisher SR3210 

1,000-Sheet Hybrid Finisher. 

For offices that produce collated and stapled sets of documents, the SR3210 

helps shorten production time. It offers SO-sheet, multi-position stapling, mixed

size stapling, optional hole-punching, and shift-sort collating, as w ell as a staple

less binding capability of up to 5 sheets. 

Supports paper sizes up to 11 " x 17". 

Weight: 60 lbs. (27 kg) 

W x D x H (inches): 22.2 x 24.4 x 37.8 

W x D x H (mm): 563.88 x 619.76 x 960.12 

Note: 

1. Bridge Unit BU3070 or Internal Multi-fold Unit FD3000 must be installed to add this option . 

2. One of the following Paper Feed Units must be selected to add this fin isher: Paper Feed Unit 

PB3220, LCIT PB3260, or Cabinet Type F. 

3. Finisher SR3210 cannot be installed with Paper Feed Unit PB3250, Caster Table Type M3, 

Internal Finisher SR3130, Finisher SR3230, Booklet Finisher SR3220, Booklet Finisher SR3240, or 

any related options. 

Bridge Unit BU3070 

A required accessory if the main unit is configured w ith an external finisher and 

not w ith the Internal Multi-Fold Unit FD3000. The Bridge Unit transports pages 

from the standard exit area into a Finisher for inline stapling or hole-punching. 

Note: 

This option or Internal Multi-fold Unit FD3000 must be installed when adding the following 

items: Finisher SR3210, Finisher SR3230, Booklet Finisher SR3220, or Booklet Finisher SR3240. 
----------

Fax Options 

Item/Description 

417585 

Item# 

41 7483 

417587 

Item# 

Thumbnail 

Thumbnail 



----------- -- ---------

Fax Option Type M29 

Installation required to enable fax services : 33.6 kbps , approximately 2 second 

transmission speed, standard JBIG , and standard 320 pages memory. Includes 

standard Internet Fax (T.37), LAN Fax, IP-Fax (T.38), Fax Forwarding to Email, 

and Paperless Fax function. 

Security & Miscellaneous Accessories 

Item/Description 

ESP XG-PCS-15D 

Designed to provide a higher level of noise filtering and surge protection for 

devices that employ more sensitive and complex electronic components. 

Our Advanced Technical Support (ATS) recommends the use of power 

protection products to minimize potential electrical interference w ith products. 

418601 

Item# 

006428MIU 

Fax Destination 

►Destiration 

j912015551234_ 
I Troe II PaJSe I 

Thumbnail 



Ricoh is committed to creating va lue for our customers through the production of top quality products, services and solutions that directly meet the needs of 

today's communication intensive business environments. As a result, we offer a range of Multifunction products with advanced scanning and printing software 

options that help boost productivity and improve workflow by enhancing the user experience. Visit Ricoh-USA.com for more information. 

We offer a variety of services and solutions to meet diverse and challenging business needs. To find out more information, visit solutions.ricoh-usa .com 

The content on this site, and the appearance, features and specifications of Ricoh products and services are subject to change from time to time without notice. 
Products are shown with optional features. While care has been taken to ensure the accuracy of this information, Ricoh makes no representation or warra nt ies 
about the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of the information contained herein, and shall not be liable for any errors or omissions in these materials. Actua l 
results will vary depending upon use of the products and services, and the conditions and factors affecting performance. The only warranties for Ricoh products 
and services are as set forth in the express warranty statements accompanying them. 

Ricoh USA, Inc., 300 Eagleview Boulevard, Exton, PA 19341, 1-800-,j3-RICOH. "2021 Ricoh USA, Inc. All rights reserved. Ricoh® and the Ricoh Logo are reg istered 

trademarks of Ricoh Company, ltd. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. 

RICOH 
imagine. change_ 



RICOH 
imaiine. chanie. 

Quantity 
4 

4 

28 

Technology Service 

Quantity 
4 

Includes 

Item Description 
RICOH MP5055SP CONFIGURABLE 
PTO MODEL 
RICOH MP5055SP BRANDING SET 

PAPER FEED UNIT PB3220 
1 BIN TRAY BN3110 

FINISHER SR3210 
BRIDGE UNIT BU3070 

FAX OPTION TYPE M29 

TS NETWORK & SCAN CONNECT -
SEG4 
TS-TRAINING ON-GOING TRAINING 
POOL OF HOURS GOOD FOR 60 
MONTHS 

Quote Document for 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

Date: March 24,2021 

Ext Selling Price 

60 month Lease of $472.54 
per month 

60 Month Service Term 

Description 
RICOH MP5055SP CONFIGURABLE PTO 
MODEL 
0 B&W copies per Quarter per unit 

overages at $0.0058 per page 
0 color copies per Quarter per unit 

overages at $ 0.0000 per page 
GOLD - includes Parts, Labor, Toner and 
Staples, excludes Paper 

Ext Rate 

$0.00 

Per Quarter 



Reservation of Rights-This quote is based upon the information provided by you, and the assumptions 
made by us in preparing the information contained herein. While care has been taken to ensure the 
accuracy of this quote, we make no representations or warranties about the accuracy, completeness or 
adequacy of the information contained herein, and shall not be liable for any errors or omissions. We 
recognize your right to negotiate and approve the terms of any resulting contract and we reserve the same 
right.We also acknowledge that all contract terms and conditions must be mutually agreed upon by both of 
us.THIS QUOTE IS PROVIDED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT,NOR SHOULD 
IT BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFER TO SELULEASE THE GOODS OR SERVICES LISTED HEREIN. 

Rev. 04/13 Quote Number 29129421 Expires on April 30,2021 





CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE EXERCISE OF OPTION FOR PURCHASE OF 825 
GOLF ROAD 

AT A REGULAR meeting of the Pontiac City Council of the City of Pontiac, 
Michigan, held via Zoom on April 6, 2021, the following resolution was offered by 
__________ and supported by _________ _ 

Whereas, a certain Lease Agreement (with Purchase option) dated July 1, 2018 was 
entered into between Creative School Solutions Management, LLC as Landlord and the 
City of Pontiac as Tenant for the 3 year lease by the City of the premises commonly known 
as 825 Golf Road, and within which the City has operated its youth center (the "Lease") 
which Lease expires on June 30, 2021; and 

Whereas, Section 13 of the Lease grants the City with two options to purchase 825 Golf 
Drive from the landlord; the first option period began April 1, 2019 and ended June 30, 
2019 without the City exercising its option; and the second and final option period 
commenced January 1, 2021 and ends June 30, 2021 (the "Purchase Option"); and 

Whereas, the City's purchase price of 825 Golf Drive during the second option period is 
$2,850,000.00 per Section 13 of the Lease; and 

Whereas, it is in the best interests of the City to maintain a youth center for the City's 
youth to safely and freely congregate and enjoy supervised physical activity; and 

Whereas, the purchase of 825 Golf Drive is in the best interests of the City. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby 
Authorize the Mayor to submit the required Offer Notice, as set forth in Section 13 of the 
Lease, to authorize the office of the City Attorney to negotiate a purchase agreement with 
the landlord consistent with Section 13 of the Lease, and if due diligence reviews do not 
disclose any serious deficiencies to the building; to close on the purchase of 825 Golf Drive 
on or before June 30, 2021. 



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, Pontiac, Michigan, this 6th day 
of April 2021. 

AYES: ------------

NAYS: ------------

I, Garland Doyle, Interim Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the above 
Resolution is a true copy and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of 
the City of Pontiac on April 6, 2021. 

GARLAND DOYLE, City Clerk 

Dated: , 2021 ----------



•G:M.· · ·_ ....... G_I_A_RM_A_R_c_o __ , M_UL_ll_N_s _&_H_o_Rr_o_N __ ,_P._c, 
AT T O R. N E Y S A N D CO U N S E LO R S AT L A W 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

DATE: 

MEMORANDUM 

HONORABLE DEIRDRE WATERMAN, MAYOR 
MEMBERS OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

GEORGE A. CONTIS, ESQ./ REAL ESTATE COUNSEL TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC 
GIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C. 

PYREC LEASE - OPTION TO PURCHASE 

APRIL 1, 2021 

Madame Mayor and Members of City Council: 

In 2018 the City entered into a 3 year Lease Agreement ("Lease") with Creative Schools Management LLC 
("Landlord") to rent 825 Golf Drive for the use and operation of the Pontiac Youth Recreation Center 
("PYREC"). The Lease commenced on July 1, 2018 and it expires June 30, 2021. Dr. Carl Byerly is the 
Landlord's principal. A copy of the Lease is attached to this memorandum for your reference. 

Section 13 of the Lease grants the City with two options to purchase the PYREC facility. The first option 
period began April 1, 2019 and ended June 30, 2019 without the City exercising its option. The second 
and final option period commenced January 1, 2021 and ends June 30, 2021 (the "Purchase Option"). The 
City's purchase price of 825 Golf Drive during the second option period is $2,850,000.00. Council's 
approval is required to exercise the option to purchase. 

At the request of City Administration, several members of the City Attorney's Office reached out to and 
spoke with Dr. Byerly on no fewer than a half dozen occasions in late 2020 and early 2021, in efforts to 
secure a short-term or long term extension of the expiring PVREC Lease. Despite our good faith efforts, 
Dr. Byerly expressed no interest in an extension of the Lease; he appears poised to retire from the 
Landlord business and intends on selling 825 Golf Drive to third parties who have expressed a desire to 
redevelop the Property if the City does not exercise its option to purchase. 

If Council takes no action to exercise the option to purchase PYREC Dr. Byerly will list 825 Golf Drive for 
sale with a broker later this month. We are aware of at least two parties who have expressed interest to 
Dr. Byerly in purchasing 825 Golf Drive and converting the facility to senior housing. 

While it is unlikely that a third party sale of 825 Golf Drive can be negotiated and closed before June 30, 
2021, the City's occupancy of PYREC cannot be guarantied after June 30, 2021. More importantly, without 
purchasing the facility the City would be without a viable recreation center for its youth, as the conversion 
of other City owned or controlled facilities cannot be facilitated in time and the cost of a complete 
renovation of those facilities for a youth recreation center far exceed the cost of purchasing 825 Golf 
Drive. 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
APRIL 1, 2021 
PAGE 2 

As a result of several recent discussions and confirming emails with Dr. Byerly, the City Attorney's Office 
has been able to secure a 21 day extension of the Exercise Notice Period (described and defined below). 

Due to the notice requirements set forth in in Section 13 b. of the Lease (the "Exercise Notice"), the latest 
date that the City may provide its Exercise Notice to the Landlord is now April 22, 2021. 

Should the City elect to exercise its option to purchase, following its timely delivery of its Exercise Notice, 
the following timeline and obligations are to be followed as modified by the above-referenced extension 
of the Exercise Notice period: 

15 days after Exercise Notice Landlord and City establish a commercial escrow with a title company 
of Landlord's choice. 

Following the preparation of the Option Purchase Agreement 
(discussed below) the title company will issue a title insurance 
commitment insuring title to the PYREC Facility which will be marked-
up for the benefit of the City at Closing .. 

15 days after Exercise Notice Complete the good faith negotiation of the Option Purchase 
Agreement not later than this date. The Option Purchase Agreement 
shall include a 30 day inspection period for the City to conduct 
inspections, environmental testing or obtain surveys and require the 
City's Deposit of the sum of $300,000.00 with the title company. 

15 days after Exercise Notice The $300,000.00 Deposit must be tendered to the Title Company on 
or before this date. The Deposit is refundable until the 30 day 
inspection period expires. 

45 days after Exercise Notice All inspections of the PYREC facility are completed by this date and he 
City either terminates the Option Purchase Agreement or proceeds to 
purchase the PYREC Facility. 

46 days after Exercise Notice The closing on the purchase of the PYREC Facility is consummated. 
the Closing Date is established The Lease is terminated on the Closing Date. 
(in all events closing occurs on 
or before June 30, 2021) 

On or before the Closing Date Landlord and the City enter into an Easement and Maintenance 
Agreement to create parking and ingress/ egress rights over 819 Golf 
Drive for the benefit of PYREC. 

I would be happy to discuss the contents of this Memorandum at Council's next regularly scheduled 
meeting on Monday March 30. 



LE,-\SE A<l!Urn!Mf)NT 
(WITH PilRCHASEOPTI0N) 

This Lease (hereinafter cal.led the ''Lease''. or the ii Agreemcnf') is ertteted into· as. of the 1 rt day 
of July 2018, by and between Creative Schools MMagement, Ll,C .located at 8H) {]Qlf Drive, 
PQntiiic, Ml (herein callcc,l "L1=~sor1>) and the City of Pontiac located at 4 7450 WoPthvard Ave,; 
Pontinc, MJ (herein called "Lessee"): 

WffNESl:>ETH: Lessor and Lessee a1:,i,ee as follows: 

Subjcci to the tem1s ofthis Lease, during the Tenn; Lessor hereby doeSlet and lease to Lessee 
the cnlire property .kno\vn .as. 825 Golf I)rivc, P1mtiac, Ml 48341 (the "',Building"), inc1u\i\ng, 
without limitation, the land and all im11rovcm(lllt.'> focaleil thereon {along With the J3uilillng, the 
"Premises''), The de±uiitii;m of 1'Prentises" also includes the use o!' the personal property items 
Bsted in tbe aitaciicd. li::i;hil.>it A, Further, 1he leaseq. Premises also. includes tlierlght of Lessee 
and its• visitors to use tbe ingrcss/ogrt:s$ rotid which traverseil the Adjacent Patee! (as .defined 
.below), and the entire parking lot servicing the Pr!:'mises and ihe Adjacent PAtteL A drawlng of 
the Premises, the Adjacent li'!!rcel, ihe ingress/egres$ road, \1-Dd ihe parking l()t servicing the 
Premises and Adjacent Parc!cll is att;u:hed hereto as Exhibit B. 

OcctJPANC.:Y 

Li,ssec is to ba.ve. fl.ill and exclm,ive occupancy of the Premises (except to the extent th!(: 
ingress/egres~ road imd parking lot are shared with the Adjacent Premises) .. No other tenants will 
have any right to. occupy 1he Premises ( e)Wept to the extent the ingress/egress niad. w1d parking 
lot arc sbared with the Adjacent Premises) 

LFJ.$)LJt/s Um,tl'!Fl'i / l\<IAtN1'ENANCt 

Lessee shall pay all charg~ fotgas, water, sewer, electricity and heating service and all other 
ut.Hll1e$ and i;ervJcei: to the Premises (including mortthly 1nonitori1,g costs by ADT), 

Lessee shall be responsible for main1entmce, repair and replacement of the Buildingfrolt'.I the 
intcrtor wall~in, inclvdmg ylllilodiid services, sµpplies, trash ~moval, a dumpster and disposal. 

Lessee shall be responsible for contl'acting for. .maintenance of the lawn !ind lands<:aping oflhc 
leased Premises. 

lessee shnU be n:sp~insiblc for snow and Jee removal from the }c)aVenient, driveways, walkways 
and parking lots of the 1cased Premises, along with the shared ingress/egress road servicing the 
Pretniscs and the Adjacent Pat'CeL Lessoi• grants to Lessee im easement •over,. 1.m, i\Iid tq the 
b:tgrcs~/cgrcs::. road tor the. pl.ll'p1,1se of cornplying with the maintenance reqpire111enl~ in this 
paragraph, and iuso fot the purpose of permitting (but not reqµirlng) Lessee to remove snow !lnd 
ice from the parking lot al the Adjacent Parcel. Lessee1s obligation to remove snow nnd ice from 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE4 

the ingress/egn:ssroad :-.hall cease -if Lessor is M lon~er the owner of the Adj1;1cent Parcel. lfthe 
Adjacent Pat;;el lsJensed to I) third purty ten&nl during I.he 'fem1; that tenant shall have the 
obligation lo remove sm>w nnd ice front the ingress/egress road ~d from the parking lot a1 the 
Adjacent P11rceL 

Lessee sbaU be responsible for paynwnt of regulw, scheduled nwlntcMnC\l. a.nd minor repairs 
($2,000.00 or less per repair) of the HY AC/boiler l\Ults servicing the Building. 

The foregoing, colleci1vely, ii. refen·ed tt) a.'lLessee's "Mainteuancc.Obligailons." 

Ll:SSOR'SMAINTENANCE 

Except. for. the Maintenance Obligntiops, Lessor shall be responsible. for the paymentofall sums, 
un.d the mainterumce, repair, and repfocemeut µfilic Building and Premises, h1cluding, but not 
linute~ to lhii. fQlJ{nving: . 

1,IJ~~or shall be responsible for the payment of all .costs lo. ir:isure the Builµing and Preniises 
( copie.,s ofpolicies and certif1Cllte$. slHtll he tnade available to Lessee). 

Le::sor shall be responsible for maintenance, tepair, and replacement of the C)ltcrJbf walls of the 
Building, t11e roof, and ony phunbing or utiHty lines servicing the Premises from the bot1n<lary of 
tl1c P.rowiscs to the point of aftacpment ort or in the Btiilding. 

Lessor sha11 be responsible for major repairs and rep1accmc11t of the 1:ioiler imil servicing the 
Prcrliiscs, H'ncccssary; 

The term of this Lease (the ''Terlll") shall commence on ;July l, 2018("Cc:>mmencemeut Dateu) 
and expire on .r unc 301 2021 ("Expiration Date.,), 

USE 

The leased Premisi;s are lo .be tlscd and qccupleq. for th~ purpose ofoperating a youth educational 
and recreational facility; and services &nd purposes reasonably ancillarytbereto. 

]" Lcsse.e's Obligations 

Th¢ Ltsscc hcrc1:>y lliri;s lhe leai;ed l'remises J:or the Term, and covenants: 

(1) .... Base R11nt . Commencing on the Commencement Date and c-0ntinuing 
thcret1!'lor ort QI'· before the first .day of each and · every succ.cssi ve calendar 1non.th 
during the Tenn, Lessee shall pay to Les!iOt'; in advance on the. nrst di.')' ofclloh 
m9ntb, mthout further notke or dcnwnd and without .offset, rebate, credit or 

2 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 5 

dcductlon for lUJY reascm whatsoever, lhe monthly installments of rent as follows 
("Base Rent II); $26,000. Total of am1ual base rent is $312,000.00. 

Base Rent an<l all other Rent due hereunder shall be paid to Lessor, without tledµttiop, 
or offset, in lawful money of the United States of AmcrictL Lessee shall pay the first 
full month of Base Rent to Lessor upon the mutuiil execution of this Lease. 

(2) A<lditional Rent. In addition to Base Rent, .Lessee c,,vcnants and agrees to 
pay as "Additi@al Rent," nnd without deduction or offset, all other /iUI11$ payable 
under this Lease which, for ~he avoidance 1jf doubt, are: (i} the Mai.nte11auce 
Obligations, (H) the Reimbursable Expenses (as defined below), (Hi) any late fees or 
intCt\,'St charges, and (iv) any alterations to the Premises, as pernutted hete11rider. 
Base Rent nnd Additional Rent arc sometimes refened to collectively herein as 
11Rcut 11 Unless otherwise provided herein, Hems of Ad<l\tional llent shall become due 
. and pay~lc within 11 ve ( 5} days fol lowing ,vrltten de~band from Lessor. 

(3) . General If at any 'time payment ofthe monthly rental amount i;cscrvcd \llldcr 
this Section is more thlln live (5) days past due, Lessee shall pay Lessor a late fee in 
.the mnount of ten percent (l 0%) of the amot1nt past dqc, the parties agree (hai such a 
lute fee repre~ents a fair and ~asouable esfiillllfo- of the costs u;ssor Will ini::ur by 
reason of a late payment In the event that atiy monthly rental paymel'lt is more tliail 
ten (1 O} day$ past due, in 119dIHon to the late fee,. Lessee shaU payl.essor interest on 
the unpaid atnotmt at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annnm commencing on lhe 
tent;h (10th). day after such payment was due, . until such payment is made. 
Acceptance ofthe late fee or interest under thls !:lcction shall in no event c;;onstitut¢ a 
waiver of Lcsl)cc' s dcfaul\ with respect to tbe overdue runoutii, nor prcvellt Lessor 
limn e;xercising any of his rights andrcmedit:ll. 

All checks shall be payable to ''Creative Schools l\fanagcmcnt, LLC" and shall be 
mailed to: 

I>r. Ca1·t Byerly 
4759 O,vas~o Cou.l't 
Clarleiton, MI 48348 

h. To use and occupy the leased .Premises oitly for the porposes .for which they are 
intended a:;. per this Lease Agreement. 

c. To tomplypromptly, ai Le,ssce's sole cqsl, 'with a11 lawful hiws, orders, ,eguliith,ins, 
and ordinances 11f all municipal, county, ttate illid federal authorlties affecting Jhe 
leased Premises illlcl the cle;utliness, safety, occnpation, imd :use of same, including 
without limitation tl1c Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 42U,S.C, 12101~ 
1'.2213 (199l), as amended, 

d. To observe nll reasonable ,rcgulllti1,ms and requirements o( insurarice underwriters 
concerning the use and condition of the leased :Premises tending to reduce fire 

3 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 6 

ha?,ards and imairance nites1 and not pcnnlt nor allow any rubbish, waste material or 
products to ncomnulnte on tl1e Premises. In add1tion; Lessee shall not allow the 
lea~ed Pre:rnises to be used for llny iniprc)per, immoral, or vnfawful puri1ose, not shall 
Lessee cause, maintriin or pem'lit any nuisance in; on or about the leased Premises. 

e, Lessee shall keep the leased Premises in a clean, sanitary and safe condition at all 
times. 

f, lf I.he n.iture oft.he Lc:isce's business requires licertsure, Less~ sho.11 J.;;eep in effect a 
valid license to operate the leased Premises for lhal purpose and provide Lessor with 
a current copy of the required license. 

g, By accepting delivery of the Premise:;, Lessee accepts tbe Premises as suitable for 
Lessee's intended use and us being 1n good aud sanitaiy operatir1g order, conditlon 
and repair, AS lS, ;i.nd without R'flrcscntatlo.n. or Wlil'rartty by Lessor as to the 
condition, use or occupancy whicl1 may be made thereof (except as may be provided 
herein), Any exceptions to the foregoing must be by written f/.greernent executed by 
Lessor and Lessee. Lessee acknowledges tbAt neither l,cssor nor any a.gent nor any 
employee of Lessor has made any represen!ations, warranty, estimation or promise of 
any khid or nature whatsoever relating to· the physical conditioh. of the Premises, 
including, by way of example only, tl1c fitness of the Premi~cs for Le~s.ee's .intended 
use or the actual dimensions of the Premises and Lessee expressly warrants and 
represents that Lessee has rolkd solely on its own investigation and inspection qf the 
Premise-s in its decision to enter into t11is Lease and let the Premises in an "'AS-JS" 
condition_ 

lt. Lessee sl1all be liable for and .shall pay dfrectly to the taxing mrthority, prior to 
delinquency, all taxes levied against Lessee's personnl property1 If any alteration 
h,rntalled by Le~see or any ofLessee's personal properly is assessed and taxed with 
the Premises, Lessee sholl pay such taxes to Lessor within ten (1 O) days after delivery 
to Lessee of a 1-;LatemenL · · 

I, 1n connection with its operation of the Premises during the Term\ Lessee shal1: 
a. Utiliw the Premises for cducatioit and cnr\chment prograrrunirtg, whether 

produced by Lessee pr by a third party ("Programming''); 
b. Ensure that the Premises offers Programming by or through an organization that is 

recognized ns a school by the State of Michigan, IJcparlmeni Qf Eduuallon; 
o. Off~r Certificates of Completion for Progranunfug prochiced by .l..esBee; and 
d. Ensure that ProgrWnrning is pctlbtmed by inslruclurs of appropriate truining and 

gualific:.ation (and, where applicable, with certi!icati\m as may be required by the 
State ofMichigfill; Department ofEducation). 

Ex,cept as set forth inuncdialcly ahove (or elsewher~ in this Lease), Le~see shall have 
n9 particular obligations regarding the operation of the Premises. 

2. Lessor's Obligations 

4 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 7 

The Lessor covenants that the I ,essee, on payment of the Rent at the tune and in i:hc manner 
aforesalq and performing all the foregoing covcnJt11ls, shall and may peacefully and quietly 
have, hold, and enjoy the leu.~ed Premises for !he l'em1, 

S, Insurauce and Indemnity 

lndemni11cation/Liabiiity: 

(i) Lessee shall ind1mmlfy, defend (using cmmsel satistaetnry to Lessor in its 
sole discretion) und hold harmless Lessor, and its affiliates, and their 
employees, managers, partners, officers, djrcctors, contractors and agents 
:from and l'!gttinst all claims, demands, liabilities, .obligations, damages, 
penalties, cause~ of action, suits, judgments, alld expenses (including 
attorneys' fees) arising :from or related to (i) the occupancy, co1idition, 
operatfon or use nfl.hc leased Premises, (ii) any accident, occurrence, injury 
111 or death of persons1, or io:;s. of or damage to property occurring .on or 
about lhe leased Premises, (iii) use or misu~e of any portions of the lensed 
Premises by the~ Lessee or any of Lessee's respective ~ents, contractors, 
ernpk->yees, visitors, and invitees, tir (iv) Lessee's failure to perlom1 its 
obligations under this Lease. TI1e obligations of Lessee under this Section 
.arising by reason of any occuiwt\Ce talcing place during th9 Te1m of thi~ 
Lea.<.e shall turvive any ktmlnation of this Lca;ic. 

Lessor sbnll indemnify, defond (using counsel satisfactory to Lessee in its 
sole discretion) and hold harmless Lessee, and il!l affiliates, and their 
employees, numagtrs, part11ers, 6fficers, directors, cQnlr;u;tors and agents 
from and against all claims, demund!i, liabilities, obligations, damages, 
pcn11hics, mi.tlses. of action, suits,, judgi:nents, and e,qicnscs {incl11ding 
attorneys' fees) arifiingfron.1 or related to (i) any accident., occurrence, i~jdry 
to or death of persons, or loss of ~ir <lHIDage 1(1 property qccurring on or 
about tho leased Premises which is c.aused by Lessor or its agents (in whole 
or in part), or (ii) Lessor is failure H) perform its obligations .under this Lease. 
The obligations ·of Lessor under this Section arising hy reason of any 
occurrence laking place during the Term of this Lease shall survive any 
terinination of this Lease. 

The Lessor will procure and keep in efiect during the Tem1 hereof 
tommercial general liability insurance on an occimcuce basis with limits of 
at least Twi> Millio11 Utillars .($21000,000.00) per 01wurre!lcc, \vith a Two 
Million Dollar ($2,000,000.()0) annual general aggregate. Such policy 
shall include coverage for bodily injury, properly damage, Premise,; ,ind 
operations, personal an(] udvertising injury . and conlractual liability 
iusurance that covers the indemnification obligatlous of this Lease. 

h. Connrtercial Property Insurancl!: 

5 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 8 

Lessor shall procure and pay for comnwrd!!1 properly insumn.ce for protectton 
agah1st perils included wtthi11 tl1e standm'd fo1.m o;f ''all-risks'' fire nnd .CiJS\Jalty 
insurnnc~ policy on the Ouilding in an arnomit not !ess thilil one hundred percent 
(100%) of its M1 rephwi:ment. value from time io time dur)11g the Term. 

c. Contents/Lessee Improvements: 

LessG<,J shall be rei;ponsible for sect.rring uny insurance it deems advisable on its 
perso11al property, Ce(;,~et: improvements, ~r for bUsincss intemiption, and Lessor 
$hall have no liability with respect to any Joss which might have been covered by 
such im;trrance. 

4. Alterations 

Jaessee. rnay1iJ.ake. 110 alterations, additions, or iinprovei\ienL;, tq the l¢ascd Premise~ without 
the l,es;';or'(; priqr writtcl\ consent (v,rhich shall be given promptly, and not. t1nreusQ1wbly 
withheld); ptovideq, however, that. Lessor shall be permitted to maintair\ the Premises in 
.confonnance with the requirements of this Lease, and Lessee shall be pcrrttltted to make de 
minimus alterations, additions, ~1r itnproventents to the- Premises (less than $5,000.00 per 
oqiun-ence), Notmthstandi:ng U~e·roregoing, n11 structural changes lo the Premises shaU be 
inadc without the Lessoi1s prior wd,tten consent (Which shall be given promptly, and not 
unrcnsonably Withheld). AlLsuch alterations, udditions and improverne11ti; ~hall be at the 
expense of the Lessee and Lessee hereby iru:letnrtifics and holds Lessor hanukss from all 
costs, Hability and loss ofi.my kind and all claims of loss odiabllity, in any way luising out 
of or by reason or any such alteratiops, additlo11s or improvements. Upon vacation of the 
foase.d Pretil.ises, said improvements, ndditions und Allilrntions shall, at Lessor's option, 
b,:,-corrle the J)tOpetly of thel.essor. Less¢e shall pfOrnI>lly rcnwve all i;uch altctatlotls, 
additicms and impro,1emenl~ required by Lessor to be removed !llld Lessee slinll .restc:>re 1he 
Pr\!ffii:ms after s~wh removal to ·substantially their conclition prior to the time .such 
alteration, addition or improvement was made. All furnishings and equipment which arc 
not attached or al:1ixed to fae fo:iscd J?remises made or placed by Lessee upon the least'tl 
Premises shall be the property of the Lessee~ anr.l the Lessee ~hall be pcmlltted tci 1cmove 
the same at the end ofthc Tenn or this Lea$e, i1.11dLes1.K'\e .agrees to repair any damage to 
ih1;1 Pri.'mises or1he Building inctl.ITCd thereby. 

Tf Lessor e:onsents to Lessee'::; perlbnnance ofany alteration or acJd1titm to 1hc leased 
Premise& (l'Work1i), Lessee shall enS1.1re th;;t the W9rkshall be made in accordance with nil 
applicable laws,. regulations und the building codes, in a good 11nd workmunlike manner: 
and iu quality te!lsonahly i;1J.tisfactory fo Lcssqr. tu 4dditiort, .prior to commel\cement of 
any Work, Lessee must submJt to Lessor for approval, which approval Lessor may 
withhold in its sole ;md absolute discretion: 

(i) 

(ii) 

a complete set of plans and specifications prepared and sealed by a 
registered architecl or cnghlccr; 
ll complete set o:f drawings and specifications for mechanical, electrical rmd 
plumbing systems;.and 

6 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
APRIL 1, 2021 
PAGE 9 

5, 

(iii) a Ust of the contrnctors and S\lbcontractors(together, "Cpntrnctors'') who 
wH! pcrfonn the Work, together wit11 proof of inlltttanee and j)Ctfomiar1ce 
and fabor bonds, in s\lc)1 at11ouuts and with such carders. o:r sureties 
a~ Lessor rnay reasonably require. 

lessor's approval of lhe foregoing items (i) through (iii) shall· create .. no responsibility or 
liability tm the part of Lessor for their completeness, design sufficiency or compliam:e with 
all laws; rul.es and regulations of governn1ental agencies l'r authorities. 

No per~un shall be entitled to any lien oh tll# lensed Premises bccau~e of any labor or 
mateiml fvrnisbe<l to Lessi;c in. c(mnection with any alterations Qr improvements by Lessee, 
and nothing in this Lease shall he construed to cortstitutc a cqnsent . by Lessor to th.e 
creation of any licn .. lf any Hen is filed against the leased Premises as a result of a claim 
agafnsr Lessee fbr fabot 01' trialerial futnfahed 1o Lessee, Lessee s11all cause the lien to be 
dii;i;hargcd of rc,cord withfo fifteen (1$) days after filing,. or notify tl)e Lessor that lhcrc 
exist'> a gobd faith di$pufe cortccrnmg thc lien for which l,es~ee is diligently pursuing 
resolution. IfLessee fails to cam,e the lien to be discharg~ within sucb time (or fails to 
notify Lessor of a good faith dispute), Lessor may, wilhotil .the obligation to.do .so, payoff 
the lien and Les8ee ~hall reimburse Lessor for all costs and e>.'])enst!s incurred by Lessor to 
pay and disthorge such lien, including, put nlJl limited to, wnsonable atloruey foes ("He11 
£x:pcniic'1, • Le,~sel'l sba1l indemnify Lessor from any rui\t.s, inchid.ing, but not limited to, 
reasonable lltfomey fees, in eonub,ililm with any such lien. 

In the event Lessee fails to reimburse Lessor within thirty (30) days after r~eipi of Lessor's 
demand for reimbursement for any Lien Expense incurred by Lessor with respect to any 
Hen (''DelinquencyDate"), Lessee sfo,ill be tequircd .to pay to Lessor, on the Delinquency 
Pate. l\nd ev<:ry ihitly (30) duys thereafter until Les:ior receives tµcb reimbvr11en1ent,. in 
addition to the awm111 of such Lien Expen~c, a late foe in the amqunt of five percent (5%) 
of the outstanding amount of the Lien Expense. Acceptance of the late fee orinferest J,lilQer 
this Section shall in no event constitute a waiver of Lessee's default with respect to tlic 
overdue amount, nor preventJ.essor from exercising any of his rights and remedies. 

Eminent Dom:,in 

If fifty percent (50%) Qr more of either the Premisell is pel1l1ammlly takcnJor arty public or 
quasi.public purpose by any l;iwful governmental power Qt authority, by exercise of the 
right ufappropriution, inverse condemnation, cond1mmatlon pt eminent domain, or sold to 
pn:ivent such taklng ( el\ch SI.Id) cvcntbcillg refettt<l to nsa 1tCouc:iem1udlt1n"}, Lessor may. 
at its ◊ptinn, terminate this Leiise as ofihc dute title ve$ls in the co11denming party, J((ifty 
percent (50%) <Jr rnore of the Premis~s fa taken and if the Premise.s remainil1g ofter such 
Condemnntit,)n; Le~see shall have the right to tenninate thi.s Lease a,; of th.c elute ti lie ye(lts 
in the condemning party .. 11' either party elecL-,·to tetminatc this Lease as provided herein, 
such election shall be made by written notice to the other party given within thirty (30) 
days af\er the nature and extent ofsuch Cnndenmatiqn have beep. iinlllly dete11nh1ed, ff 
neither Lessor nor Lessee elects to tenninnte thls LeMc to the extent permitted above, 
Le-.ssor shall promptly restore the Ptemises, to the ex.tent of any Contlemrn1lion award 

7 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 10 

received by Lessor, to substantially the same condition as existed prior to such 
CoIJdemnatkm, allowing for the reasonable elleots of .such CondemnaLion, and a 
proportionate 11batement shall be made LP the Buse Rent and all other sums owed hereunMr 
corresponding t(l the time during which, and to the portlort of the Ooor area of the Pretnlses 
(adj~sted for any increase thereto re-1Snlting from any reconstr:uction) or which,Lesscc is 
deprived .on account· of such Condemnation and restoration, as reasonably dctenniued by 
Lessor. l:\>:.cepl us expressly provided in the immedjately preceding sentence wlth respect 
to abatement of Base Rent, Lessee. shall have no dahn ngninst LesE>'Or for, and .hereby 
rokllScs Lesst,)r and Lessor\; age!lls from rd,'pcmsibilhy for and waives its entire claim of 
recove')' for any cost, loss or expense suffered or foeurred by Lessee 1ts a. resull (lf !iliY 
Condemnation, whether penm,ment or lemmrary, or tlie repair or restomtion of the 
Frcmfaes following.such Condemnaliont including any cost, Joss or expense resulting from 
any loss of \tse of the whole or any part of the Premises and/or any inconvenience or 
annoyance occasioned by s1ich Contlci:nnation, repair o:r testoratlon:, 

Lessor shall be entitled to any Md all compchsat\on, darp;i.ges, it\tome, rent, awards, or any 
interest therein whatsoever which may be paid or made in con11eeti'on with any 
Condefunation, and Le.s.~ee shall have no elllim against l..cssorfor the value of any 
unexpired terruofihlsLease (jr olherwisc; provided, however, tb,atLei,see shaUhc cnthlcd 
to rt.-ccivc any award sep;rrately alloc»ted by the c<.1ndemning a,.ui.ho1ity to Lessee {or 
Lessee's relocation exp~nses ot' the value of Lessee's property (&11ecil'kally cx:clucl.illg 
fixfo.rcs, alterations and other components lif lhe Premises wbli;h. mider this Lease or by Jaw 
~o or at the ex-piration of the Tem1 will become the. property of Lessor), provided that such 
award does nol reduce any award otherwise allocableor payable to. Lessor. 

6, nw 
Any real property taxes assessed against the lea~ed Premises shall be paid by Lessor; 
provided, h6wever, that if the Premises loses its status as ii. school, and as a result, loses !lily 
favorabfo 1ax exemptions, the patlies !)J,,>ree to split the c-0st of any increase in tt:al property 
taxes (however, Lessee's contribution sh;µj be capped at $5,000.00 per year), 

1. A~slgnmont and Subletting 

Lessee covenants thal il will not assign, sell, mprtgage or in ariy manner transfer or 
ertcumbcr this Lease or any interest herein, or sublet the leased Premises or any part ,or 
parts thereof or grant any· concession or license pr othcnvise permit occupancy of all or 811Y 
part thereof py others wiLbout in each case first obtaining the prior written consent of 
Lessor, w!Jich consent shull be given promptly and :limit n.ol be \llll'¢aSqna1ily withhelc,l. 
The consent by )",e&$Qf to a.A ass:ignrneot or subletting shall ni)t in arty way be construed to 
release Lessee fro!n pptaining the express consent. of the Lessor to !lny further !lSSignrncni 
or subletting of any part of the ]eased Premises nor shall the collection of rent by Lessor 
from any as~ignee, sub-ies$c.,e or other occupant be deemed a wai'•ier of this covcnlUit or the 
acccpUmce rif the assignee, sub-lessee pr ocmipanl as. a leiise¢ hereunder or a release of 
Lessee :Ii-om the further performance by Lessee of 1he. eoVenants in thi:4 Le;ise on Lessee's 
part to be perfor.n.:ied, Whcthc.r or JJQt Lessor consents to :iny proposed assignmelll or 

8 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 
PAGE 11 

subtea.~e, Lessee shall pay Lessor's reasonable attorneys' fees and costs inouu-cd by Lessor 
(not Lo exci;:~ $1000) in evaluating any proposed assigmncnt or sublease within 1hirty (30) 
days after written request by Lesl!ce. Notwithslun<ling the foregoing, Lessee shall be 
pettnitted to assign or sublet space }lt the Premises to such of its l\ffiliale,<: or p(Utrlers as 
might be necessary in order to comply with requirements of Se<;:tion 'I(i), 

Without limitation as to other reasonable grounds for withholding consent, the pmies 
hereby agree that it shall bt: tcasonablc under this Lease and under 311y applicable law for 
Lessor to withhold c1;msent to ruiy propo~,;id l!S!li!,,'llment or sublease where on¢ or more of 
the follm\1Ug apply: The transferee intends to 11se the Premises for purposes which arc i10t 
permitted under this Lease; the transferee is a govommental agency or fill instrumentality 
thereof (other than the City of Pontiay, Michigan); or the twnsfcrce is not a party of 
su1lfo1ent financial worth and/or financhtl stability In light of the responsibilities to be 
undertaken in connection with the transfer on the date consent is rcqucsicd. 

F,.w purposes of this Lease, an assignm<.lnt. shall also include (i) if Lessee is a partnership, 
the withdrawal or change, voluntary, involuntary ot by operation or law, of fifty percent 
(50%) .or n\ore of<the partners, or transfer of fifty percent (50%) or more of partnen:hip 
interests, within a tweive (12)-mo:olh period, or the dissolution of the partners1Iip without 
immediate reconsiltutlou thereof, and (ii) ir Lessee is a closdy hdd 1oorporation (i.e., whose 
stock is l\ot publicly held and not traded thtough au exchange or over the counter), (A) the 
dlssolutii,m, l:i1erger, consolidation or otherreurganization ofLe,ssee or (B) the sale or other 
transfer of an aggregate offi~ percent (50%) Or mon: of the voting shares of Lessee (other 
thi;.n to uµmediatc family members by reason of gift or death), within a twelve (12)-month 
period, or (C) a mortgage, hypothecalion m pledge which results fa a change in control of 
an aggregate of fifty Jiercellt {50%) or more of the votingsbnres ofLes$ec, 

8. ~ 

The occurrence of any om:. or more ofthe following events (hereinafter referred to as 
"Events of Default") shaU constitute a breiieh of this Lease by Lessee: 

;i, if Lessee shall foil to pay rent or uny other sum when and as I.he same becomes 
due and payable; 

b, if Lessee shall fail to perfurm or observe any other term hereof to be perfonned or 
observed by Lessee under this Lease; 

r~ if Lessee shall make a general assignmi.ml for the benefit bf creditors, i;ir shall 
ndniit h1 writing its inability to pay its debts as they become due or shall file a 
petition in bankmptcy, or shall be adj\Jilicated as insolvent or shall .ftlc a pefition 
in any proceeding seeking any reorganization, arrangements, composition_, 
readjustment, liquicw.U(m, dissolution or similar relief under any present or foture 
stalul~, law or reh~lation, or sh11\! Jile an answer admhtlng tlr foil lfoicly to contest 
or acquiesce- in lh1;1 uppuintmenl of uny trustee, receiver or liquidator of Lessee or 
any material part of its properliei;; 

9 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 12 

d. ifthls Lease or lllly estate 0C-Les11ee hereunder shall be levied upon m1dc\' any 
a\tachmc,t)t.or execution and such attacliment.or excci1fam )snot vacated witbln 
thirty(30) days; 

c. if Lessee vacates, 11band0tis 01· deserts the leased Premises cir J,esse:e fails to fully 
occupy the leased Premisesformorc than thirty (30) consecutivediws; or · 

f. if there. is a tpv1wn.lfou, tennination or otbex inv,i.HJatio11 ,,fany pennlt, license Or 
authorization With respect to t.cssec's use nnd/of occupancy of the . leased 
P~mises, jnduding, but not limite<l to, ce,tilicales of occupancy; business 
licenses or charters. 

Upon the occuner\Cc of iI.h Event of Default: (i) for an Event of Pefau1t under lla, Lessor 
$hall provide Lessee with written notice of said Hvent of Default, and Lessee shall 11rrvc 
seven (7) days to cure s;:ime; (ii) for ii,n Event of Default \lfl9<Jf 8a through Sf, Lessor shall 
provide Lel}See with written notice of said Event ofDefl)ult, and Lessee shall 1,avc thirty 
(30) days to cute same {unless a curo cannot reasonably be eflcctua,led in 30 days, in 
which case !he fone to cure shall be exiende<l for a reasonnbie t\JJiouut. ◊f time: ptovided; 
however, that Lessee is diligently pwsuJng it cure), 

9. Rcm~dies 

Upon the 1)ccurrcncc of au uncured EveAt .of Defau\t, in addition to aIIY other remedies 
which m,iy be availn.blo to Lessor,Lessor may, at his optloi11 after prMi<ling t,1 Lessee 
any not/QQ required under fyfichig:.ut I.aw, d;;i mw ot more of (be following: 

a, 'Temrlnate this Lease and, upon i;uch tcnnination, this L<;ase shall come 1o an end 
and e;,:pire upon :Lessor's temtlnatlon. hut Lessee shall remain Hable for any 
damages Lessor may incur by reason of any default of' the Lessee t() comply with 
the .tenns and conditions of this Lease; ilhd/or 

b, Either with tlf wlthout tcnninatiitg thls Lease, Lessor may immediately or al any 
time after the uncured Event of Default ot after the date upon which this Lease 
shall expire, reenter the leased l'temise~ or any part thereof, Without notice, eltber 
by SUUll11ary promdings or by any other applicuble action or proceeding, 
(without being liable to indictment, prosecution or damages therefore), and mily 
repos.s¢iis the leased Premises and remove nny !Ul~ ull (ifJ,e$see's property .ind 
effects front 1he lcMe4 Premises; and/or 

c, Either with or withput terminating this Lease, Lessor may re.le! the whole or any 
part of the leased Premises from time to time, either in the name of Lessor or 
otherwise, to such tenant ot tena:Ms, tbrsur;b tct.o:t. or terms ~ndlng before,. on or 
after the cxpirnfom of this Lease, at :iuch rental ot renjal~ and upon $UCh othcl' 
conditions, which may include concessions and free t<;:nt periods, as Lessor, in its 
sole discretion, may detennine. In the event of any ~uch reletting, Lessor shall not 
be liable for thi:; failure to collect any rcnm! • due \l})On any such relet1ing, and. no 

HI 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 13 

JO, 

such failure shall operate to relieve.Lessee of any liability under this Lease or 
otherwit:e lti affect any such liabiHty; and Lessor may mnkc such rcpairlJ, 
replacelnents, alteratkm~, 4Mitious, improveme11ts, dec;orations ;mg otber 
physical changes in and to the leased Premises as Lessor, in its sole discretion; 
considers advisable or necessary in toruiection with any such rehtting or 
proposed reletting, without NHcving; Lessee of lillY liability imder this Lease or 
otherwise affecting such liability; p;oyided, however, that Lcssm· shall, nt all 
times, n1ake a commcrl;iaUy reusonable · eflurt to mitigate its clamuges; • and/or 

d. Ac:ci;llcratc all Rent dµe for the balance oftl1e Tem1 of this .1.ea~e atid declare the 
same to be immediately due and payable; and/ot 

c. Lessor shall have the right to recover aU aniol1nts payable by Les$ee hcrcubdcr as 
they betome du:e anti all o\hcrdamagcs incurtecf by Lessor us a result 1,1f rm 
1u11.;urcd Eve:nt of!)cfaul!Iucluding, without liniiui.tion, attorney's fees and cost:;; 
ano/qr 

f, Lessor may exercise any other right or remedy available atlaw or in equity. 

Controlling La,v; No Other Lease or .Representatives 

This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the State of Mk:higan. There are no 
understandings1 Leases, represenlations, or warranties, cxprcsb'ed or· implied, other than 
those set forth in ·a written addendmn or supplement executed siroultaneOU.'{ly herewith, 
or as herein set forth fully or mcorpprated by $peel fie reference, respectir).g this Lease or 
any r~ or pcrso)la.) • pro petty kase.d hetcund◊r, 

II. Non-Waiver; .Modifications 

No w;tiver of any provision of this Lease, or a breach thereot sh!lll be constnicd as a 
continuing waiver, not shall it ctinstitute a waiver of any other provision or breach. The 
acceptruice.ofpmi (but not oll) of n rent instaUment{s) due 'Lessor hercun<lc:1' shaU not 
l'onslitute a watver ofdefa.ult fa:reundcr for nonp(;lyment- of rent Tiie accl,)pfuncc oh.II or 
part .Qf a tent iostallment{s) due I..essqr hcreµndcr shall not c;onstltute a waiver of nny 
other type of .default hereunder. No modification, alterntion l;ll1d/or l\mCn<lment or tlus 
Lea-;e shall be birtding upon the other party hereto, .unless the same shall be reduced t1l 

Writing and signed hy the party against whom it is sought 19 be enfom;d. 

Whenever under this Leµse provision h: made for notice of any kin4 unJess otherWise 
expressly herein provided, it shall be in writing and shall be served personally, sent by 
registered or certified lliail, with postage prepaid, or sent by. Federal. Express or other 
similar ne~thusiness day air courier. Notke shall pc dcctni:;d given uponpersonal 
delivery or (ln/;l (l) business tlay ffJlfowing deposit with. an air c-ourier to the address of 
Lessor or Lessee, u.~ the case may be, a~ stated below, or iruch other address as either of 

11 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
APRIL 1, 2021 
PAGE 14 

13. 

the pru'ties may subsequently designate in writing by notice to the other party 1n the. 
ma.n11cr required herein: · 

To the Lessor ot: 

Dr. Carl Byerly 
4759 Owasco Court 
Clarkston, Ml 48348 

io the Lessee at: The Premises 

With a required copy to: 

Pahl A. Thi.irsam, Esq. 
Giarmarc.o, Mullins & Rot'ton, P,C, 
101 W. Biit B!la\;ilr Rd., Suit¢ 1000 
Troy; Ml 411084 

Purchase. Option 

L{lssor hereby grants Lcsse¢ au option to purcb:iSe the Premis1,is (the ;'Purchase Optio11'1
) 

durirtg the periods commeJ:idng as or April 1, .20)9 and ending on June 30, 2019, and 
commencing as of January 1, 2021 and ending on June 30, 202.l {each an "Option 
Period"), 011 the te.rms. and l,londltions set forth herein. 

a. ___ Comiidetalion. 'fbe considcrntion l\1r the J>urohasc Oplion_wil1be ilie e~ecutlo,n 
ofthi!l Ll.ln.~_c. 'flw parlies express]yaeknowletlge and agree that such consideration is of 
-significant value und that, ba~e<l upon such adequate consideration, the PI.U'.chnse Option 
is valid and fully enforceable. 

b. Limitation on Option/Exercise or Option to Purchase.The Putchase Option shall 
be valid. only if, at the ti,ne of exercise of the PurcbuscOplion and a~ of the Close of 
Escrow (rkGnetl bel<>w), Les;;ce is r1ol then in default }Ui.der the Lease (following mW 
applic4ple. l\Otice ®Q <_:Ure penod). Jf such condition is met (or expressly waive<:! by 
Lessor), Lessee may, subject to the provisions of1his Section, purchase lhe Pn.,-miscs by 
delivering to[essor not more tha11 lwo hundred. seventy (270) days and not less than 
ninety (90) days advance writteunotk-c prior to the <late ~elected by Lessee fqr the 
purchase oft.he Prc::-tniscs ofilic election to purchase. C'Excrcise Noticc0} in uceordancc 
with tl1e notice prov1s1oru; set forth hcrdtl. l~Pr clarity, the date selected bY tesseeJor tlie 
purohaRe of-the 1-.'reroises must m;cur duripg lhe Option l'¢tiod, 

c. Purchase Price,_ The purchase price for tfo~. Premises under the: Purchase Option 
datedAprill, 2019 and ending 011 June 30, 2019 is $3,1$0,000,00 The purchase price for 
the Premises under the Purclmsc Optiqn ilaLed January 1, 2021 lllld ending on J1me 30; 
2021 is $2,850,000.00 (each a 11Purchasc Price\ iis applicable). The Purcha\:e Price will 
be paid, in j:\111, iJJ cmih al Close orEscrow{us hereafter defined), 

12 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 15 

d. Escrow. Within thirty (30) days of the': Exercise Notice, the pal'tics will open 
escrow with the cornn1ercial esetow office of Lessor's choice (''EserQW Holder"). l..c~sor 
and Lessee will execute and deliver to Escrow Holder, i11 · a timely manner, all escrow 
instructions and other documenfa rea~cmably necessary to consummate the lmnsa~1ion 
contemplated by the exercise of this Purchase Option. 

e. Title. On the Closing, Lessor will convey title to the Prnmises together with all 
appurtenances, eai,eme.nts, dcveloptilc.nt rights, contract rights, pe.rmils, tangible and 
intangible property relating to 1hc Premise$, mineral, oil,. gas !}nd other hydrocarbon 
substances on, in or under the land, and all air and water rights, beneficial eaHemet\ts, and 
righti; ~)f way pertaining thereto by g,ood and sufficient Warnmty deed, along with ri bill 
of sale in the form and containing warranties in uccordance with th.e customs in llle 
County in which the Premises is located (the 1'Couniy''), free an(l dear of all liens and 
encumbrances (except as waived by tessee), but otlierwise in its AS IS, WHERE ls, 
condition, Cu!1'ent real property uixes sh:ill !,Je prora(<::9 on a due date basis as i>f rnidnight 
on the date of Closing, a~ though said taxes were paid in advance, 

f. Costs and Expenses. Any costs incurred through Bsc-,ow shall be allocated to 
LCS$Of or Lessee hereunder in the manner customary in llie County. Lessor shall be 
responsible for JY<iy:rru.mt ot' any transfer taxes, and for the cost of the title policy. 
conveying title to t1m Premises in the conditi011 required in. the Option Pttrcha~e 
Agreement (defined below) which, at a minimum, shali include: (i) a policy amount not 
Jess than the Purchase Price, and {ii) a policy delivered without standatd exc.eptions 
(except as maybe waived by Lessee). 

g, Close of Escrow. For piirposcs of this Agwerrmnl; 11Cfo11lng'1 i\ild ''Closi;i Qf 
Escrow'' will be defined as the date that the d.e.ed conveying title to the Pren-iises is 
delivered to Lessee. 

b. Execution of Option Purchase Agteemeilt. Within thirty (30) days after the 
Exercise Notice, Lessor and Lessee ~hall negotfo.te in good faith and enter into a purchase 
a~recmcnt completed il'I ac.co!'dancc with this Section (''Option PurcbltlllJ Agrc~numt"), 
The ~r».oun( of deposit ~hall be Three Hundred Thimsand Dollars {$300,000.00). The 
Option Purchase Agreement shall permit Lessee, within a 4.S-day period. to conduct due 
diligence of the Premises, title, enviromnental, survey, and any other matters cu:,tomary 
for the purchase of real property, and the deposit shall be. refundable to Lessee until the 
tinie for due diligence investigation expires. 

i. Tettuinaliort of Lease ort Clt1sc · of Escrow. After the delivery of the Exercise 
Notice, this LeaM will continue in full force and eff~ct until the Close of Escrow, and on 
the Close of Escrow, this Lease will tcmtlnatc and the parties will be released from all 
future liabilities lltid obligations accruing under this Lcusc, cxccpi those whfoh, by the 
provisions of tJ1is Lease, eJqJressly survive th~, expiration or 1emiinalion of the T~nn, 
Notwithstandine anything to the . contrary contained in this Len.~e or the definitive 
purcha~e agreement, ifthe Close ofEscrowis not consummated for any reason, including 

13 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 16 

default by Lessee, th.is Lease will remain in full force and effect If the Close ofEscrow 
is J\Ot consunimatcd 011 account of a default by Lessee hereunder or under the Opllon 
P\lfthMe Agreement, thci:tfor the avoidance of doubt, Lessee's right to the applicable 
Purchase Op1ion shall automatically extingui~h, 

j. Memorandum of Optfon. Lei,see shall be pei;mitted, at its expense, to ptepare and 
record with the appropriate Regislcr of Deeds office a Memorandum of Option 
1t1cmotializi11g the agreements of the parties set fotih in this Section. Any :such n::cotding 
shall not refere11ce the !14rchase Price: 

k. Basement and Parl...-1ng, Lessor is the. owner of the immediately adjacent parcel, 
819 Golf Drive (the "Adjacent Parcel"). As part (if the consummation of the Purchase 
Option, Lessor and Lessee agree to execute aIJ Easement and MaJntenancc Agreement 
that will provide, among othor tcnns: (i) that Lesse.e shall be gfl!J\ted a perpettuil, nou
e){clusive easement over the .ingress/egress l1Crvicing the Ptemfaes, and the cost of 
maintaining the casement shall be shared by the Lessee and the owner of the. Ac,ljB,1.Jt,mt 
Parcel; and (ii) the ercatioti iJf an verpetual, non-exclusive casement over and on the 
parking lot shared by the Premises and lhe. Adjacent l'arcel, which casement shall permit 
the visltorll of both parcels to park anywhere on the parkingJot (but mruntcnnnce shall nol 
be shared; the parcels shall be responsible for the main\elllli1Ce and repair of their 
respective porti011s of the parking lot). The Easement and Muin.tcnµnee Agreement $hall 
be recorded li.t Lessee's eX!Jetise at the Close. of Escrow, Lessor shall not sell, a~sir,'Tl, llr 

othenvise transfer any mvnernhip in Ot to the, Adjacent Parcel unless and until the 
Basement and Main.tenance Agreement shall be prepared and recorded. 

J .J: Damage/ Destruction 

If the Premises is damaged in whole or parl ~y lire ur 1Jtl1er insured cas\lalty, Lessor wiH 
give Lessee notice of Uie time which ,vill be needed to repair such damage, as determined 
by Lessor in its sole dist.1'ction; and the elecctkm (if any) whlch Lessor hns made 
acc,)rding to this Section, Such .notice will be given no later tlian Um forty-fifth (45th) 
day (the "Ntitfoo Dntc") after the fire or other i11sured casually, 

a, If the Premises is damaged in whole ~lr part by fire or other insured Casualty to 
an extent which may be repaired within ninety (90) days after the commetwcment of 
repaii:, as dctormincd by Lessor, Lessor will repair the damage to the extent of ava\Jabk 
insurance proceeds. In that eve11t this Lea.~e will conµnuc in full force and effect except 
that Buse Renl will be abated on .a pro rata bash from !be date of the fire or other 
insured casunltnin,!il the date ofthe sul)slautiai complction.ofsuch repairs (tbe "Rcpah· 
Period"} in proportion t.6 the rentable square footage of the Picrolscs \\•hich Lessee is 
unable to use during the Repair Period. There will be a similar abatement in the event the 
Building is not repaired to substantially the same conditi.on a.~ before the daml!ge. 
Notwi(hstlll.1ding the foregoing, Lessor shall not be obligated to repair any damage 
which occurs within the last Lwt:nty-fottr (24) months of the, Tom, and if Lessor so 
elects not to repuir, this Lease shall tecminate on the Notkc Dale; provided, however, 
thal Lessee shall automatically be granted a Purchase Option exercfriahle within seven 

14 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 17 

(7) days ot' receiving written notice of Lessor's election not to repair. 

µ. If the Preniises is damaged in whole or pad by fire or other insured casualty to 
an exte11t which may not be repaired within ninety (90) days after the commencement 
of repair with available insurance proceeds, but which may be rcp11ircd within one 
hu.ndred eighty (180) days after the commenceme□t of repair with available insurance 
procc1;,-<ls, ail determined· by Lessor,. then, ill Lessor's option, Lessor may rcpait ·:;uch 
damage lo the Premises. lf Lessor elects lei repair such damage, B;1se Rent ·will be 
abated d1hihg the Repau' Period in proportion to the rtntable square. footage of the 
Prcrniiics which Lcs~cc is unable lo use during the Repair Period. There will be a 
similar abatement Ju t1\e event the Building is not repaired to st\bstantially the same 
condition as before the damage. Tf Lessor does not elect :to repair such damage, this 
Lease \vill terminate on the Notice Date . 

. c, If tlw Premises is dainagecl in ~,Jwle or part by fire or other insured casualty to 
an exten) whlc:h cannot be repaired within one hundred eighty (180) days after the 
commencement of repair with available insurance proceeds, as determined by Lessor, 
t1K'll Lessor tnay cancel this Lease as ()fthc date of such damage by written notice given 
to Lessee on or before the Notice Date, If the .Premises is damaged in wholi'.! or part 
by :lire or other lnsure.d casualty to an extent which cannot be repaired within one 
hundred eighty (l 80) ;,fays 11-lkr the cQmtn<mecmcnt (1f rcpmr, .a., de(crmiue<l .by 
Lessor; then Le.ssee may .cancel this Lease as of the date of such damage by written 
notice given to Lessor within ten ( l 0) oays after Lessor's delivery of a notice that 
the rep:'lirs cannot be made within i::uch one hundred eighly 180 days. Ir neither 
Lessor nor Lessee so elects to cancel this Lease, Lessor wlU repair the .Premises, and 
Billle Renl will be ubuled during thl: ·Repair Period in proportion to the rentable square 
fo1)la~e of the Prernisc:s which Lessee i:s iiMble 1o use during the Repair Period, There 
will be a similar abatement in the event the B\1ilding is uot repaired io substantially the 
same condition as before the damage. 

d. Notwithstru1ding ib,e pmvisions of subseotlons (a), (b) or (c) above, (i) if the 
proc<lt!ds ofirts11rance are insufficient to pay tor the repair (Jfany da111age to the Premises; 
or ff the Premises is damaged .in whole or in part hy an unin')ured casualty, Lessor will 
have the option to repair such damage or terminate this Lease as of the date of such 
casualty by 'Written notice to Lessee on or before the Notice Da~; Md (ii) jf aoy such 
darm\ge by fire or other casualty Is the result of the willful misconduct, negligence or 
wrongful failure to act of Lessee or Lessee Parties, there will be no abatement of Hase 
Rent as oiherwise provided for in this Section, and Lessee sball pay, a1 Lessee's sole cost 
and expense, to Lessor upon demaud, the difforcnce betweert the cost of 1·epairing the 
damage und the insurance proceeds :i:eccivcd by Lessor, and Le:$sec: shall not have any 
right to terminate this Le~se. L;ssor shall be deemed to have complied with the 
re4uirements of this Section a.~ to the time of completion of repairs so long as Lessor 
makes diligent effort to complete the repairs in a reasonable ijl11ounl of time. Lossor 
shall not be liable to Lessee orits employees, agents, contractors, invitees or c\\stomcts 
for fo.ss or damage lo merchandi~e, tenant imptovemcnl!i, fixtures; automobiles, 
furniture, equi.pment1 computers, files or other 11roperty located al the Premises (expect 

i5 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 18 

for Lessor's indemnif1cation obligations set forth in Section 3). Lessee. shall rilpair or 
replace al) oi' Lessee's property und any Alterations at Lessee's sole cost ttnd expense to 
the eii:tent of ins\Jrancc . proceeds. Lessee ackJlOWledg~s thi.1.t lt is Lessee's sole 
responsibUity to obtain adequate insurance coverase to compensate Lessee for \lamage 
to I ,ei:see's prOJ'lC,ty and Altcl'ations. 

15, Successors and Assigns 

This. Lease and each µf the covenants, conditions, Md teases contained horchi shall be 
binding upoil each of the l)artiesnnd upon th.cirtcspc¢tive successors, representatives and 
asl.'ligns, subjcot to the provisions as to assignment, and tlm benefits shall in'ute to each of 
the parties and to their res~cHve permitted successors, repre?entatives and a5sJgti:i. 

1.6. No Representations 

Lessee acknoWkdges that no representation,. wrbal w written1 . has hee,1 made by ;.my 
broker, agent or employee of Lc$sorregarding the condition of the improvements 011 the 
Premises. This Lease is not made hi reli!mce upon any representation whatsoever, except 
as may be.provided hcrci.tl~ 

l 't Security Deposit 

The Lessorherewith acknowledges the receipt of 1 month of tent ($25,000.00), whkh he 
-ls to retain ii$ security for thefaithfu1 performance of all pf the covenants, cc,nditions, and 
terms of this Lease, bul in no event shali file Lessor be oblige<l lo apply the same upon 
re1'1ts or other chargesln arrears or upon.daJ.11agcs for Ute Lessee's failure to perform :;aid 
covent1nts; con~lilfons, and tetms; U1e Lessor i:Iir1y so apply lbe security at lils option; and 
the Lessor's right i-O the possci;sielu of the Premises for non~payment ofrcnt Qr for any 
other reason shall not in any event be affected by reason of the fact thattlie Lessor bolds 
this secµrity. 'l'he said sum, if not applied toward paymentofrent in arrears odoward the 
payment of damages suftered by the Lessor by reasori of' the Less~e's b,rcuch of the 
covc~ants, conditions, and Leases of this Leas11, is to be telurtmd to the Lessee when U1ii; 
Lease is ter111inal~<l, iiC\1otdit1g to the tetrns, bntin no event is tbi;i said security to l;,e 
rettutied until the Lessee has vacat~\d the Pwmfoes and delivei;ed posscssit1n to the [essor. 
In th!} eventthat fi,e Lessor repossesses hhnselfof the leased Prnmfaes becimse of the 
Lessee's defa11lt or because of the Lessee's failure to carry out the covcmmt1 condttions, 
lllld terms oft1tls Lease, the Lessor may apply the srud security upon all d;.uuage~ sufforeo 
to the. date of said repossession ~ild .. may retain. the said . scc1,1rityto apply upon imch 
damages as mny be suffered or shall accrue the.ieai\er by ren!l9n of UJe f,essee' s d'"fault 9r 
breach, The Lessor shall not be obliged to keep the sai!i security as.!\ separate fund, but 
may m.ix the ;;aid security with its own funds nor shall Lessor be required ~o obtain or 
o,ccount for any interest on said funds. 

I 8, Hcndlngs 

The headings of this Lea.~e are for purposes of reference only and shall noiHmit or define 

16 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 19 

till'.' mcanin~ of any provisions ot'this Lease. 

JP. HazardousMareria1s 

ti. Lessee shal I be tully responsible, at its own expense1 (br compliance with all laws 
and/or regul<JOons governing the ham1Hng of Hazardous. Materials or (itfo'ir 
subs!.ances used or stored .on the Premises in connection with Lessee's. business 
conducted th;rein, All )wzardot1s or potentially Hazi:ltdotis . Materials tihall he 
stored In proper . ~ontuincrn and llllall be further. protected against spiJI$ ·by 
:;llcondary contairuncnt facilities, Lessee shnll not spill, introcfoce, discharge or 
'bury .iny Jfa:zardous lvfatcrials, substanc.e or contaminant of lll)y kind in1 un, or 
under the Premises or any portion thereof or any adjacent Premises or into the 
~b)ent a\r. Lessee shall not permit the discharge of any Ha;,,ardous Materials 
into the sanitu:ry or st(lmi ~ewer at water system serving. the I'ftm1ises or any 
adjaceritJ?remises or i1* any municipal t)r ~ither g<swernmcntal water system o:r 
storin .;ml/or Saniial)'. sewer systert:L L~ssee sha,11 employ all appropriate 
safeguards and procedtite,~ necessary or appropriate to protl!Cl such systems from 
c<.mla!nitwtion, Lessee shall uridcrtake, al its expense, any necessary and/or 
app19priate c;leanup process in connection with noy breach of the t'orcgoin~ 
covenants, and without limiting LCS$e1/i; olher indemnity or insurauce obligations 
under this Lease, Lessee $hall indemnify and hold hannlcss Lessor froin .and 
against alllfobility whether direct; indtrect, co~cquennal or (lthorwise, arisitig 
from any incident or occwcnce on or about the Premises or any adjaGent 
l>remlses p!rtaini111r to Hazardous M11terials which r~\llts from tl-te acts or 
omissions of Lessee, its iigcnL~, employees or invitees1 during the Tenn herepf. 
The obligations of Lessee uoder lhh; secl\qn shall survive the tem1ination of this 
Lease; 

b. ''Hazardous Materi&ls" shall include, without lhuitaUon, arty chemical or other 
muterlal which i:;; or may beci;ime iqjuriqus to. !be {l\1blic health, safety or welfare, 
ot 1.0 the environment, tlanm1able explosives, petroleum. frae.tions, pesticides, 
rndk)actiw materials, regulated substances, hnr.urdou$ or toxic i.ubstm1cei;, 
con(aniinating pol1ut<111!:- or related nr ~imllar materials, includini by way of 
example, $\\bstan<,es or materials defined by any federal, slate oi foµ,11 
environmental law1 ordinance, nile or regulation,, including, without Jitnitation, 
the Comprehensive Envjronmcnt&I Response, Compensation and Liability. Act of 
1980, the Hazardous Materials 'frtmsportation A.ct, the Resource Conservation 
and Recov~ry Act, the federal Insecticide, Fungicide,. and Rodcntiqidc Act or I.he 
Michigan Env1m11mentai Rcsp(lnse Act, und the regu)atipns adopted and 
p\lbli<:ations promulgated pursuant thereto, all as trmertdcd, 

20, Asbesfoa 

I,e.irnee understands and agrci;,,s tbut ilis Les~etl'$ obllgatipn lo i;ornply with those port.ions 
of Michigan1s Asbestos in Educ-ationat Facilities Act ("AEFA"), 1he Federal Asbestos 
Hazard Emergency RcspOll!;>Q Act eAHERA''), the Federal Occuputionlll Safety and 

17 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 20 

Hea1th Act ("OSHA") and the MJchigan Dccupalional Safety aud Health Act 
("MIOSBA'') whicl\ apply to it, including any iind all regulat(ons promulgated thercttt'tder 
n;gulatlng asbestos.containing matetfals in any fashion whtitso11v11r (11(}1lcctivdy, tht: 
"Asbestos Regulations") with rospm:t to the leased Premises. All obli~tions ofI,essee 
under• the Asbestos Regulations shall be performed by asbestos abatement contractors or 
such other persons as. are trained and licensed to inspect, evaluate and abate asbestose" 
containing materials, or those materials that arc suspected or presumed 10 contail:i 
asbestos. Lessee hereby indemnifies, defonds and hol<ls Lessor harinless.froiu a11 costs, 
liability and loss of any kind and al) claims of loss or liability~ fo any way ;tti$ing out of 
6r by reason of Lessee's failure to comply with this .Sectfon 1111dh;it the Asbestos 
Regulations. Le.ssor represents and warrants that, !IS of the dale t1f this Lease, the 
Building is in compliance with the A~bcstos Regulations. • Lessor hereby indemnifies! 
defends and holds Lessee harmless from all costs, liability arid loss of any kind and all 
claim!> or!oss Ot liability, in auy way arising out of ()r by rea.<;on ofl,essor's breach of the 
foregofog s¢ntetic¢. 

Lessee h.is petmissh')n to erect Ql1 exterior iiign 9n the property of the leased Premises 
advertising the Lessee's intended IL~e. The size, type, design,Jegcnd, amJiocaUon mlL'll 
be in co111plfonce with all applicable laws and rc.~trictio1rn of 1-eco1·d. indudiog bul not 
limittid to, all applicable city 9rdinanc:es. Lessee hereby acknowlcd~M and agrees ti:J 
.maintain, at Lessee'~ .sole cost and expense, any 5ign erected by Lessee pursuant to this 
Section in good repnir ~d worl<lng order at all times, ln addition, Lessee hereby agre!ls 
to indemnify, defend and hold Lessor barrnle~s (Hsiug co11nsel ofLes~or's choice) from 
,and ;igainst :i.ny c;-0i;t., expense, dain.1 or liability, including reasoUAbfo nUomeys' 
Ji:es, !l.rising from or related to ruiy sign erected by l,cssce on ihe Jei-L~d PtellliS<lil or tl'\fi 
mruntenunce thereof. 

24. Lessur•s Cul'C 

All covenants, terms and conditions to be petfomied by Lestee under f.lllY cir !he terms of 
this Le:rne shall be at Ii~ riole cost and expense mid without uny ab&terncnt Qf ren.l. If 
Les$e¢sba9 foil t9pay ;my sum of money, other than the payme11t ofRent,rcquircd to be 
paid by it bcreunder or shall foil to perform any other aet on its part to be perfom,ed 
hereunder, Lessor may, but shall not be obligated so to do, and wjthoul waiving or 
releasing Lessee from any obligations of Lessee, make any such payment or p~rfonn an)' 
such other [!.Ct on Lessee's part to be made or performed asin this Lcusc provided. Le,ssee 
shall .reim~ursc all sumi, ~o paid by Lessor w1d all pecessary incid\:!il\.ill cost.s nlla(ed 
thereto ("Reimbursable Expen$es") within fifteen (15) days of receipt of written notice 
from i.c..'tso:r ("Delinquency Dale") of lbe !llllOUflt due. hi tho event Lessee faUs to 
reimburse Le.ssor alter receipt of Lessor's demand for Reimbursable Ex~nses, L11ssee 
shall be required to pay to Lessoi', on the Oclinqucncy Pate Hrid every thfrty {30) days 
thereafter 1,1ntil Lessor receives such reimlnitsernent in additioh Jo tbe ~moun( L'lf s~ich 
costs, a late fee in the amount of ten percent (l 0%) of the outsl(111din.g amount ofihe cost. 
Acceptance or the late fee or interest under this Section shall in no event constitllte a 

18 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 21 

wdiver of Lessee's default with respect to the overdue amount, nor prevent Lessor !tom 
exercising any of his rights Md remedies. 

All Reimbursable Bxp~'TliJes i;hall be de!:l111ed Additional Rent, and Lcssot shall have (in 
addition to any other right or remedy of LessQr) the same riglrts ;md remedies in the. event 
of the nonpayment thereofby Lessee ;is in the case of default by Lessee in the payment of 
rent. 

23, LCSSt>l'1ll RJghti! 1md Ntin-liability 

• Lr.ssor shall have the right from time to time, with at least 24-hour$ notlceto L~see, 
to insp~t tbe leased Premises to confirm Lessee's complhrnce with this L~e, 

• Lessor shall not be rcsponsil:ile_or liable to Lessee for: 
• any loss or damage that may be. occasioned by or through the ac.ts or 

omissions of persons occupying adjoining pnrce1s; or 
• anyioss or dnmage resulting lµ Le$see or its property fron.1 theft or a failure of 

llw !iccurity 1>ysfems, if any;. in the stru:cture/i oi: improvements on.the leased 
Premises; <>t 

• or any damage or Joss of· property withJnthe leased Premises from. any cause 
Other lhrm solely by t\;llson of the willful acts or omissions of.Lessor or ils 
agents,. ,ir Lessor's default under tins Lease beyond any applicable cure 
period, and 1\0 such occurrence shall he deemed to 00 an actual ot constructive 
eviction from the leased Premises qt rnsult in an ah3.ll:tnent of tCil!S. 

If Lessor shall fall to perform nny coV13nanl; lcrni or coridition of this Lease upon 
Lessor's part to ~. performed, LCS$Ce shall give Lessor notice ofsuch dctfoill and ten 
(10) days in. wlrich to cure such default; provided, if such clrre cullliot be reasoi1;i.bly 
eomplete<l within such l0°day pedod, then 1,ess~>r shall 1i.avo such additional time a$ 
necessary to cure $() lonl,1: .a$ Lessor commences to ¢Ure within such 10-day -period and 
diligent prosecutes such cure.to completion; lfas a consequcm;e of such default, U!ssee 
shall recover u. money judgment against Lessor, such judgment :,hull be satisfiei:l only 
against the 'rfght, title and inlercsl of Lessor in the leased I'remiseH and out Qi' rents or 
other income from U1e leased Premises by Lessor, Ol'QUt of the (;Ql1Si<len,Hon received hy 
J,.essor from the sale or uthtir disposWon of au o.r any part of Lcs/;Qr's tight) title and 
i11terei.i in the leased Premises, mu.l Lessor i>hall 11qt be liable for any deficiency.. Undr;r 
t11;) citct1mstanccs ~ha!J any present orfulure partner ofLesspr (ifLessods a partnership)1 
future men1bet or manager in Lessor (if Lessods a limited liability company), affiliate of 
L(Jssw,. or trustee or beneficiary (if Lessor or imy pactntJr or member of Lessor is. a trnst) 
(collectively, '1Ll'-l!Sllt' Pnrtie.s"), have µny HabiHty for I.he performance or Lessor's 
obligat)ons under this Lease. Notwithstl.\llding any contrary provision herein, netther 
Leilsor nc>t the l",'ssor Parties shall be foible under any circtHnstances for . injUl)' • or 
damage to, or interference with Lessee's bui>iness, or consequentjal damages, including, 
but not limited to, loss of profits, lO!i$ of rents m other revenues, loss of business 
opportunity, loss of goodwill or loss of use, in each case, however occllfring; provided; 
hmvever, that the foregoing limitation shall not uppJy tt1 Lessor'.s foi;iemr1ificn.tion 
obligations··her.ei\1. 

19 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 22 

24. 'ftansfe1• of Leased Premises by Lessor Ptohiblttd 

As long as Lessee's Purchase OptlotJs (or any one of then\) remai11 outstanding, Lessor 
shall have no right to sell, assign, or otherwise transfer its interest in the Premises without 
Lessee's consent. If i,mch a sale, assignment, or transfer is permitted by Lessee, Lessor 
shall autom:atically be relieved of any obligations or liabilities on lhe part of Lessor 
m:cruing frm.n and after llie date of such frausfor lllltl Lessee covenants and agrees to 
recognize iht lransforcc as the: Lessor unde.r this Lensc. Under no circumstances will 
Lessee permit a sale, assl,1,,rnment, or transfer of any interest in the Premises unless 
Lessee's Purchase Options as described herein are preserved. 

25. Subordm11tion and Non-01sturbance 

Thls Lease. aud the righL~ l)f the Les~e hereunder ate hereby made subje<;l tn and 
subordi11ate to .all mortgages now or hereafter pla~cd upon the leased Premises. Lessee 
covenants and %,'Tees to. executtt and deliver on demand an insLCTiment ot instnu;nents 
subordinating this Lease. to the lien .of any such mortgage or mortgages. In addition, 
Le:rnee agrees tbut, upot1 the request of Lessor or any mor!.gagee of Lessor, Lessee sbnil 
cxcc.ute a commercfally reasonable estoppel certificate on demand fn fonn satisfoctoty to 
Lessor or any mortgagee of Lessor. further, Lessee agrees to attor.n to Lessor's lender m 
lhe event of a foredosute. ln exchange for Lessee•~ subordination and attommcnt as 
provided in this ScctiOl\, Lessor agrees (on its behalf <)lld on behalf of its lender) that 
Lessee's possession ofth1:1 Premises under this Lease and Lessee's rights and privileges 
thereunder shall not be dlminished or interfored with by Lessor's li;ndcr, and Lessee's 
occupancy of the Prcmfoes shu.11 not he disturbed by Lessor's lender during the term of 
the Lease or any extensions or renewals thet'eof; Both Lessee and Lessor agree that they 
will cooperate in executing a cqmnwrolally reasonable Suhordia!ilion and Nort
Disturbnuce Agreement at the reques( of Lessor's lender, 

26, Attorneys' Fees 

If citbi,:r purty hereto fa.ils tn perform any of its obligations _under this I..ea.~e or if any 
dispt1le arise~ between the parties hereto conc.errtlng the meaning or interpretation of any 
provision of this Lease, then the defaulting party or the party not prevailing in such 
dispute, as the case m~y be, shall pay any and ail costs and expenses incurred by the other 
party 011 account oi'such defaultandlor in enforcing or establishing its rights hereunder, 
including., witl1oui Ilmilation, colll'I costs nud Teas1)Ti~bfo attorneys' foes !lfld 
disb11rsementi:, 

27. Holdover 

Lessee shall surrender the Premises to Lessor upon the .expiration or earlier lermil1qtion 
of t11ls 1.ealie in g6od order and condition, reasonable wear find tear exccp1cd, and 
otherwlse In complim1ce with · the tenns of this Lease. Any holding over after the 
expiration of the Term,. without 1he eXpress written consent of Lessor, shall cottstitute an 

20 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
APRIL 1, 2021 
PAGE 23 

Event of Default and, without limiting Lessor's remedies provided fn this Lease, such 
holding over $hall be construed to be a tenllilcy at sufferance, al a rental rate eqllill to 011c 
hundred fifty per\:ent O 50%) qf tl)c Base Rent last due iu this Lease, plus Additioni\l 
Rent, and sha11 otherwise, be on the terms and conditions herein specified, so for as 
applicable; provided, however, that in no event shall any renewal or expansion. option, 
option to purchase, or other similar righl or option contained in this Le11se be deemed 
applicable to any such tenancy at sufferance. lf the Premfoes are not surrendered at the 
end of the Tem1 or sooner ltmnination of this tense, Lessee shall indemnify, dcfontl and 
hold Lessor harmless :from and against any imd all loss, di,rect or indirect dilltiages or 
liability resulting from delay by Lessee .jn so stirrendcting the ,Premises including1 

without limitation, any lo~s or liability resulting from any claim against Lcs:mr made by 
nny succeeding tenant or prospective lenanl founded on or ~suiting fi:ohl such de)ay and 
los~cs to Lcsso;r due !o lost opportunities to lease any portion of lbe Premises to any such 
succeeding tenant or priJspective tenaut, together with, in each case, actua.J aiUJrneys' f¢es 
at'ld costs. 

28. ,Jury Wnivcr 

LESSOR AND LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE RIGHT T() TRIAL UV 
JURY IS A CONSTITUTH,)NA1 o.Nt<:, nut THAT IT MAY BE WAlVED. EACH 
PARTY, AFTER CONSULTING (OR lIAVlNG llAD TlIE OPl>ORT'ONITY TO 
CONSULT) WITH COUNSl~L OF THEIR CHOICE KNOWINGLY AND 
VOLUNTARILY1 AND FOR THJi:IH MUTUAL BE1\'EFIT, WAIVES ANY RIGHT 
·ro TRIAL l3Y JURY IN TIIE EVENT OF LITIGATION RIWARDlNG THE 
PEIU?OIUvlANCE OR .ENfbRCEMENT OF, OR IN ANY WAY REJ,ATICD 'l'O 
TIDSLEASE. 

29. Brokers 

Lessor and LcS!>cc c;1ch represent:$ and warrants to the other that' ndUier il nor its officers 
or agents nor onyone acting on its behalf has dealt with any real esiate broker in the 
ncgotiuting or making of this Lease, and e.nch pnrty agrees io indemnify and hold harmless 
the other from any claim or da1mR, and eQst11 and expenses, including at1orneys' foes, 
incur.re~ by the indemnified party 1n conjunction with any such ,claim or claims of any 
other broker or brokers to a commission in connection with this Lt:ase as a result of the 
actions of the inden:utlfying pimy. 

,"10, Financial Statements 

Wilhin ten ( 10) days aft.er Lessor's request, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor the then current 
financial siatements of Lessee (including interim periods following the end of the hist 
fiscal year for which annual statements are available, if such statements are :prepared), 
prepared or compiled by a certified public accountant, inclucling a b11lancc sheet a.n<l profit 
lin<l li;i~s statement lbr the most recent prim year, 

31. Mortgagee Protection 

21 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 24 

lf, in connectiM with obtaining finaucing for the Premises or any portion thereof, Lessor's 
kn~lct or investor shall-requ;;st te<JSonablc, de minim11.1· modificatfoni; tu thisLeusi:) l,essee 
shall not unreasonably withhold, delay or deter its consent to stJch modifications, provided 
that such modifications do not adversely affect Lessee's r1ghts or increase Lessee's 
obligation$ under this f,ease, l,e,~see shall give Lo any trust deed or mortgage holder 
("Holder") at the same time as it is gi'ven to Lessor, a copy of nny notice of default &riven 
to Lessor, provided ihat, prior to such notice, Lessee has been notified, ill writing (by WU)T 

(if notice of assignrnent of rents and foases, or otherwise) of I.lie address of ITT1ch Holder. 
Lessee furt:h(;lr agre;es. that if Lessor shall have failed i() cure such default within the lime 
provided for in this Lease, then the Holder shall have M) additional twenty (20) days after 
expi.n.1tion of such period, or afte.r receipt 9f such notice :from Lessee, whichever shall fost 
occur within wlrich to cnre such default or if such default cannot be cured within that time; 
thet1 ,<;µch additional tin1e as may be necessary Jf within such twcn:ty (20) days, llhy Holder 
,hns commenced and is diHge11tly pursuing the remcdiC$ DGCCSsary to cure such dcfaull 
(including, but not limited to, comim:ncement of foreclosure ptoceedh1gs, if necessary lO 
effect such c\il:e), in whlch event this Lease shall not he terminated. 

32. Construction 

This Lease shall be construed and intetpreted in accordnuce with the laws of the .Statt 
where. the. Premises i:, ltmaled. No rule of com;tro.ctiort to the effect that any ambiguities 
are to be resolved against the dralling party shall be employed in the 1nterpn:tation of this 
I.ease, including the Exhibits attached hereto. All captions in this Lease art fo1· reference 
only and shall not be used in the inlerpretatfon of this Lea~e. Whenever required by thQ 
c.ontext of this Lease. the singillnr sh1.1ll include the plural, the masculine shnll include the 
f e1riinh1e1 and Vice versa, lf any ptoviskm of this Le&se shall be dehmnined to be illegal 
or unenforceable, such detel1Tlination shall not affec.t any other provision of this Lease and 
alt such other provisions shall remain in full fon;e and effect. Neither this Lease, nor ,my 
;memorandum, affidavit or other writing with r~cct thereto, shall be recorded by Lessee 
or by ,my one acting through, t!ilder or on behalf of Lessee, and the recording thereof in 
violatiou of this provision shall make this Lease null ;:uni void at Lessor's election, 

33. Counterparts 

This Lease may be wcecutcd in multiple cow1krparls, each ofwhich shall be deemed an 
original and all of which shall constitute otle and the same instmmeut. This Lease 
may be executed by Lcs.sur or Lessee and delivered to the ulher party in PDF, facsimile l'1r 
similar electr'i;})lk format sh~ll be binding on tl,c party delivi;ting the executed document 
with the s~ne force and effect as tlie delivery of a printed copy of the doc,1ment with an 
original ink $ignature; 

22 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 25 

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

23 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 26 

In witne.'l.~ whereof, the parties heMn have executed this Lease the day lilld year first written 
above. 

ffi THE J>RESENCE 011: 

24 

f,i-SSEE: 

City of Pontiac 
Mayor 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
APRIL 1, 2021 
PAGE 27 

1t1 wltne~$ whereof, the pnrlies hereto have executed thl$ L¢asc the day n,1J yent fir4t wdttcn 
above. 

TNTDE PRESENCE OF: 

24 

br. Cnrl Byerly, J'mldeni 
Creative Schools Management, LLC 

LESSEE: 

c~.~ 

City of Pontiilc 
Mnyo, 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 28 

EXlHBITA 

1. Principal Office -Conference Table With 4 padded chairs and 4 wooden ch::ilrs 
2, Tech Room - 3 wood tables 
3. Front Office - Steel Desk with 2 wood chairs and file cabinet 
4. Gym - 2Vending Machines and 2 glass display cases; so,md system; 

scoreboard 
5. front oflke - Wo11d desk and a chairs 
6. flro11t Office - 2 wood tables a11d 2 wood chairs 
7. Front Office - Wood 'Table, 4 wood chairs, moon table 7 tall cabinet 
8. Front East ClassroQm -10 Rectangular Wood tables (4belong to JIA) and 70 

small elementary plastic chairs 
9. Room 18 - 3 file cabinets, 2 teacher desks, & 5 student desks 
10. Room 1.06-

A. 3$ Elementary Desk/ Chair combo tinits 
B, 22 Elementary Bhtc plastic chairs 
C. :Z6 Elementary Gray small hard plastic 1;:hairs 
D. 10 Middle School Hard Plastic chairs 
E. 15 Upper Elem, Adjustable desks 
fl. 2 science lab tables 
G, 3 Steel Office Desks 
H. 2 Middle School Desk/ Chair combo units 
I. 3 FHe Cabinets 
J. 2 Wooden Classl'oom Tables 

11. Choir Room - 2 Planos; Choir risers ( 11· sections) 12 1nusic sta11ds 
12. Band Room - ;L Pfano and Music storage cabinet 
13. Dance Room - Pallet Bars (4 sets) and me cabinet 
14. 'fireplace Room - 4 large book shelves, 2 wooden office desks, 4 -Wood chairs 

& 1 wood table 
15. Room 210 -Wooden teacher desk and 4 moon shaped tables 
16. Room 208-17 Middle School desk/ thulrcomho units, teacher's desk &file 

cabinel 
17. Room 209 -12 Middle Schoo) Chairs (peach cqlor) & wm;id,e.11 teacher desk 
18. Room 206 - (25 Middle School desk/ chair combo Uliits belong to JIA) 1 Aduit 

wood desks and !11e cabinet 
19. Room 207.,. 5 wood science tables 
20. Room 205 -11 Middle School desk/ chair combo units 
21. Room 203 - Wood T;ible 
22. Room 201 • (computer 1ah). 7 computer tables (assorted) (2 belong to'JlA) & 

20 chairs 
23. Teacher's lounge- refrigerator, 4 wood tables, microwave 7 20 chairs 
24. l<!tchen.~ 2 co1i1hlercial gas stoves, etc.? 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 29 

Job No, 11_:032 

Jf-~.nJ-,.t'f? Ii 
"~ n 
~). 

11l~ 
r1t~\S6:> 

M .. ----,,.u--.u, .. ~!t 

( fN F~m-> ) 
1 ilJo.h 200 n. 

B ffi!Elii11 of 2. 

GOI.F DR/Vfi (WIDTH VAR/ES) 



MEMORANDUM TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

APRIL 1, 2021 

PAGE 30 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS sumwr2 o/ 2 





: .:;. - .. - . - ...... _ -: . -:--· :: : ;,:.. 
·- ·- . ·-

~he C:Ur ... •,-, _; ~ gnti-ac Youth:_. :-~~ation C:ent~r:(p)'-~EC) i$ lo_~-
YR'E~ i:s: n~ott)wne~:.t)y·:the:~Clti,ef Pqf\ti~:c .. .. _ ~~-:-t · 

-r.~~ :Pftj=iJiren.t~ -,~as.~~~P·YRE6 :cfr9m ·•cfr~;=~-y~rley~~- == 

;; _:__ ~The Jeas:e'.f i;irp August 2°f}2j:~~~::~ " . ' ·:;~~-:~:_.: ·:· ~ .-
. :Th~ -~iti is ·irr;ci~eg"Qti'?ti~~s ... thcoJgh~.ii~. i~g-af cocin;ei_:0it_h-Dr.--Byerley-.Jo purchas:eJ>f e-xtend 

the_l,ease;· · -~\· .. . i• - - ·-. .-. - -- • :.~.. - .... .-:.. :.· - -· · -= ·-. 
: ,- . . .. = 

~:City 6[Co.uncirr~u~s e :. astbili~y-study~ort·~~~~DavicJ ·Ewart cei11e~ to::'be~·e"rfcj~~ed~. 
-_,~_/ ;Th~-c1ty.~g.W'1$.; tJ1e/ewa1t~G.~n.t~r: 1oiate~{Q~/f_filiY:·s1: · --~ <~=- ·- ~- - · ·- .- --~~.--~~:- : .. :·-~ __ :~} -: : . , .,: ~--
=:~:. . . _; : . ~ ~ : ·-~ :· . - - '· .. ~ ;:~! :·. . - - . ., . ~ -.;~~ :~ . - - ,, . :,_. - -! . : . - - .. , . ~~~! :· • - . : • :, · 

:··•=- .The-Depa.rtrnent .of Public,·;Works ~conducted-. a=,stte assessm-enl:.bf the. Ewalt -C:enterJn 20J6.----- ·/ 
·r.he'2_016.--E~0~l{Center as:~es~~e-nt req~ired H-~MAT'&'·air--~ii~~J.iY-~uit _·· _-_. _,_. -~ . . ··. ; 
Jhe-io.1·~: site~s~es~;~.eots pt6a~ced .. ~e~tor-atio'fi gup't~~-of ·ove~-$1:i 

_ .~·: ·T:he-~i°iy~~-Ri rJ_ .. re~eiJ)t° oft~~~~ ,quotes··f~i fe~;-tq;qddr~ss·~nY·~6(i~e w~rk~p~o 
~;;r :·; /it.js rea~oAaijly_ ~~de-r-sto_¢.i{t~atth~· pricet96sl~t~f the-propQse:·~: ~-~s,:o-- rk·),as s 

'(n_c..reased~~inH-~the·_subseque·nt·:eon·ditions worsened· si.n.ce 2Q} ·-
pw:rs·· .-·-- -· / _._ .. :~· _._.~- . .-:: .· ~-~-. . -.·-·. -r :; ,:. ossi:bl~::;• 

~ . ' : ' 



• .. pty oJ ·9.Q~nc11 r~g~estec:C,a,.te9siEf ~it{staal :. ~ 
. _of fl:)e David·Ewalt Cen_te_r fo ~~performed . .. -

· .. i~} :·.-·. ·,.: ··: ·;-1,~-~!t{~~~ni tt,~ -o"~vid ·E;;,t~C~nt~r.~=.-: ; ... 
::;;;~ :·· ••· - = located-OJlPerry St. within Pontiac.'~ :;~· :·_; · 
. . :· - .. - .. - - "the._.D~partment of PubO~ Works -~orictucted• :: 

) ~ite.-~s-ses-s'ment of.the'i:walt-Center'-in - ·. 
- :.i .01&; : 

;:_ . During :the. 20J6twalt Center si.te: ·- -. 
. -., asse:ssi:nent,~ criws req~irei Ha~a~dous . '"· . 

·,. · - ,. Material~ suit~ and .. air .. quaffty= . _ .. 
_ apP,ara.~u~~s;1o .enter the bui_l_diog ·---~_;; -~ --

~;~ ,,- . . -. :. - -; _:: - .The _.2016"sj~e -assessment, p_roducid . . _. : . -: 
. • ---~ "' i _:. .J'.'estoraticin .cfuot~s of over $2m from .t)No : _... . 
- .· . local .y.endor~_. - - · .. · . - =-- · .. _ 

• _ : ~The city _uporf r~Q~ipt of these quo.tes faiied 1 __ _ 

t0 pddre~s any ofthe work pr9pose_d. - -': .. 
. " ft is reasonably ~nder.sto~ithat· the - . 

-· .. '~- . "prrc'e/c~sUo~;t~~-pioposed W-ofk.-h~s _;· 
' . · ...: _ sign.ificaritlyincr~as~d_ and the.-::: ::::F";~ . _ 

:" _;. _ - :: · · - - su_bseq-u~'nt-cond_itions wor:senecf..1jnce- :: - · ;:;,~ .... ~-Y,.-•~ ... """i[''ic--i/41a, ·•,ir-: 

~~:) -; :. •_• ,.:.' -~01~::.. ~-~_:•.f •• i • _•_ .. : I ·: : :.. _-; • • ~.).-=-: • •-
• • __ : ~wait Center :WPLild not qe_ ready this ye~r 

: "··even·with sig:n'iJica.r:it finandal investment::::,,: 
• .. • 1. ~ 

.- _; Ye!{ e~~sible th~ site wo1il<! n~e_t:!_ fo oe· f; 
.. . - :. _ " .~~ro~iished. . - - -: . -

.:; ... - ~- .. - - :. --
, -::- ;·.-;- · .. ~ ~. 



. 

· he str0ctu.~ ·1 aspect$ of-the ~ 
huiidihg see·rt, -spuncfJ•.jc5r,e of 
~tlie~fouc w~ll~ .h'ave Beeh _;_~ ,. -~! 
COITIRrQp,~ed.:The builcffngj s :; 

··notJn a_DY.:.cfange( of thr~ar2f- : 
.. tollapsin~furider. the: wefght tif 
-· weather created events·: ,· ... ,- .. -· . -· · ,. . .. 

he b~ildiog·lnterio~ an 
uilding systerras.a1Lha 

.. een iev~r~_I_Y"'c·orr{pto . 
... :oof' : . - -

-· .:::... 

··• = - Electrical 
• .. -,. H~~;t_irigiboilers 

. ~~:· . . 

walls> ,:-. ~ 

. _'. ~:-:_. ~-~--e-iumb1ng. _ 
Environmehtal·0 

• 

• • ; · . - - · . 1 . -

f ~ci1ity ~wouJd nof b 
readfwith9ufsitfn·i 
i·rtvlstni~n.t.. 

I •• , . - . :·· . . . 



. •. ·. .. . 
.., I • • 

• ►• .. 
,-·· .. 

y.~owrfed ·1a..... .· 
.4 -- · .. : - . . -

__ er~_- is a :$1 · 
. - -.. 

a·nable 'to= 5 
V:REG:c 6 ri -tti ~ 

· ;-- -.- . . 
• •• I 

•.:_pr9po~d site~.~-
- ' . • . .!-: : :- - . 

• : ~ite_-.woutq ne~d~_=:~:=_ - · \ · 
. ,. _:; ~---··· _ . .- --·sigoJfic~~tmulU~~ ·:_,·.~ ;.· _1 ~:. ~·: 

··c~-- ! :.·- ~-~- _di~c-ipUh-~ ·p1~11_ni~·g;tg~ : .. · 
--g-et-p~ro]e¢t _complate:d-::· .. 

- •• I 

:.Sit~ wd:uld not. b~:. _ ···· 
., .. ~ : : - -

avall·aole; befote '. leas-
,s~up:_wJth 825~Gol. ~ . 

. ,:'"" ·---. . . - :- . 



·rreritl.y.-used : 
uth-Re-c -_:. , 

. Et;~a.s.s~d 
·anc(~O_Ufl 
]ns-jlec·~•o· 

:.:.2020.. ··· ..... 

. ~.IJhuugn~ ciiy· -~ _ 
ctirre.r)tJy·IEiases~=frJ1a,s ,: · · 

-· ·mafnt_ai ned--the --fa·c.ti)ty·. ;: · -: 
·an~a ·is-~ware of the :\~ ~--_ · .. 

· • -·· . . . -·· 

-~ ui Ip i_n~f ~ystery,~ -~ o d _;~f"·· 

. bper~tiohs L ·- • - ~ - • 

. =w~t:h··: relase-.ext~~sJo'h{ 
~ '.'~: -. :'. - .: --·or. p ulrc_h ~:se ~ ·PYR-E~C: ; :: -: 
_ . .;\~-~--~· ,,. · :·acli-v1ties . ahd ·: . ---~~ ~·-,·: ; .. 

_ ~-~--}~ .. · ~ ~: \>,r9gr~·rti~~wit'{~qtJ>$ ~~-{=-~ : = ·: · .. : _ 
·:- . _·Jnterrupteo.·. ,.. -~- ., .•• 

• 4 ~ -:_;.• :. -= :. . - ;: 't • • 

-.:- : . ~ .: . . :: -.. 
-cu.L._W_ .. _• ~~:~;~:•~; ~ ..... •-=..;.._...,._L........,,_C--' 



--'~-/ ;·: · umma =· nC'i1isl : _ ~-··· 
:;;~. • ► : •, • " ;; I 

: --- _. .- - ;: ::. -

ji?<·.it is, hum~n=1y-:i·h,p:6s~,ibl_e--t~i{EW,alt~ ·Perd~e.: or~Gtyst"al-Lake '.wfii\;~-~avai.lable ~-ncfr~~dy to ::: ~
. :\,,assuh1e-ope~ati.qns fo(PYR-E~ :prpgram .. and a9tiviiies ifthe dty __ fail_s_to purchas~ b.rr, - : ~ :.:.:., I:,:.· 

- •: ;'; - ' • •■ : • • - - : . • _. • • _-• - • ;. - :_ "" . : ;;.•_ .. • - ·:.•. - ' '. • • • ~ :- ·• • • I - • '.!. ;:-- :, s- • _, II ~ • :•~ 

.. · . =-extend ·1t~ -current lea~~ a.g-reement -· ~--~. :_::, -~ . ;-; - . ··..:!·~;, ;_~, -~ -__ ,. =- ;· - • · • ~ i :-~, ~~ .. . ;- ;· - . _ .. ~ ~~ ;.; 
:_~_,; 'rh~ ·aelirah9J>reSen1 ·tr~ a odiill,;bbli93tiOiit".ttiatWould be. req Wt.e.~ to r~~tOr~/Open,.,~ithe/ ... , . 

1
'.' 

:=~,:~~ -_Eviah or --P.efdtie frorfi~their-~~~crent :co~nditiorj~~f!tak~ them ·unt~r(a;ble·.as Clption~i~f".!h~::cifito ·- .:_:. 
=·-.:~ ~·c· o· n-s·,d··er - =--~ ... :··.~. ·_· · ... , --= · ,..--:.r.---. ·_ · · .. • ·. _-:.,.~-:..-;- ·: = · ·, __ , ". - -~---=-::~ ·-.-· ·_ · .. , ,·. - -,::-=-·--· :: • · ·· 

I - , I • .. I t - • , ... I , ,. ti "": • , •...- I • • •• •• I 

: • :-:\~Both ' Perd~e: arid;~Ewali"°h~Ve uriln-own 'envi:r~nmJntal hazards ·ana-·uabilit.re·s Which ,-\\j:: ' -·.: .. ·: -;~·:·. 
--~- ~exa_ce_rb~te·-~ny resto.rati6_n:cust;· rt reitqtation~i; -pbssibr~:-:; _:~ ~-~ --~-- ~; . , _- -··-~ :_~-= :·~ ~ .. -)_ .. :-;_ ~ .. ·_. :~ /~;? 

~:~-: 'D~.m~iiticiri~9f O~th Ewait '.incl ;p,e"rd\Jej [l. th~ir{~fl"ent state'~~d.:frie;erecti [lg ~laJe,W f~ci/itie;,· . ;: 
~"~~ ~:6_ri tfleir·sites;);tJ~y-_oe -6ettet'opti,9n$.lof lhe ·qtftQp~rsue j_trthe-1utµ_r~ .. -Ho¼(eve_rr-th~9t ~oes · :- ·- ·/ 
- ,->- not address~the imri1edi.ate .need:S· of PY.REC for.this fa:11 .and :-beyo:nd --· ..... -~ · ~ .. ~ ·-- '··> ::_ - · ... ___ · · ~~ 
: • ;.·:~lf wa; -~d~ie_r=miR~cfdu-ri:~9 ._the.-20~:$:·Ewalf O~_nter-~sj'(e a~:~~esslneniJ~at-g~~-r;.-$2m-iri;\vork~--~: '. ;-~ 

,, 'was· ne.ed~ij. The~ city ,upoa· r~ce;lpf of-thesa~q-0ot~s-la.jled-to.:adtjre$,S·~any· of.th~ worK ~~ ~~·;.- C: :c--~=: 
~;;~-:·· _"proposed>i~;;;--:~ _}·:·· _ _ ·:-, ,.- ,. - . .:- ,··:.· -- :: ·.:·=~-- ,·.:~~_,·_·. -·- .·:- ·.: .. ~- - . ·::-

~~~i-~di -is: ~e:as6-nat,Ly· unde~sto'o-d t8at]h~-p-rice/c6~tfor th~ proposed~-wirk::hassi"g-njfLc~-tly .~- : ":• -= 
,_ \ •. I ,. • . • . I •'••· I _ '••· j • 1.. I _ '•·· I 

.=::_:: increased ~nd.=the s~b.s.eqQent conditions wor?en1.~d since.2Ql6. .=i~- ·_ ~ ~:.~.. ::": ·_ - -t.· - :.~~-- :':· 
.,~!.!: :: - .. •·• = ., ... ~::- - .. . .· .. :-:::- - .. , . - . .. ,·::~- ~ .. - . . ·.!:::- = " - - ... _!·::?- - ~--

:-. - .. ~~erdu~~tcl1oo1 was-e$.ti,natectirt;Novemb-~r 202Q i~·reAuire~$t0m i~-raj)a_ifs_;by· ~~e -· >.::<: 
'•>; c·- n"tr ·c:-• ti . . '!: ':/-· .•• . ,:\;;'·.-~ : !;·· -:_;_-_---~c--,;=··.• .c~ ... ). ·. -~~----~"~"=-;=_·_ ~~ •. ;; ·. ::· -.-.-;,c.:-i=: ~-~ ·: !: . ,.,:_-··;:-·;.·?=: . ,. ::- -·· 0 a .. n_g .. _- ••' ,. ::- , ,-.-_, ... - -·· .. . :::- ·~·.:· ... - -·· . . . :::-r·c~•-,, . .- ••' . . .::- :·.s.· ,. -::-- _,, • ::: 

::::,-:; a~· - . - -~:--a.,, :-•- ·.:.-~::::~?"::•.; :··. . ·.:~_-·:; ::~?:'.;j "~·::_.! .... ,.'~~;F:~. ,=:_··..:.. .::~:~:/.::• ~r•. ~ 





City of Pontiac Youth Recreation & Enrichment 

Programs 2020-2021 

Enrichment Programming Ages Program Elements 
Educational Support/Learning Pods 5-17 • Daily 7:30am-6:00pm 

• Licensed School Aged Child Care Program 

• Instructional support for students in remote learning 

• Resource for families of essential workers 

• Breakfast, lunch & Snack daily 

• Recreation & enrichment activities 
Dance 5-7, 8-11, • Various forms of dance explored. 

12-17 • Introductory to intermediate and advanced levels taught . 

Arts & Crafts 5-17 • Youth are introduced to a variety of projects and art 
forms that explore their creativity. 

Music: Beginning Band with Charity 8-16 • Music exploration class that introduces youth to various 
Music {Program Partner) instruments. 

• Students learn the basics of playing wind, string, and 
percussion instruments. 

• Student are taught the basics of reading music . 
Cranbrook STEM {Program Partner) 6-12 • Youth explore science, technology, engineering and math 

through hands on activities and experiments 

Chess Club 8-17 • Coming Spring 2021 
Girl Scouts {Program Partner) 5-14 • Enrichment & Mentoring for Girls 
Sports Ages Program Elements 
Basketball Skills Clinics 5-7, 8-10, • Youth are taught the fundamentals of shooting, passing, 

11-17 and dribbling. 

• Teamwork, sportsmanship, and fun is stressed . 
Sheriff PAL Soccer Clinics {Program 7-9, • Youth are taught basic soccer fundamentals through drills 
Partner) 10-13 and games. 
Youth Golf 8-16 • Coming Spring/Summer 2021 
Youth Soccer League 7-9, • Coming Spring 2021 

10-12 
T-Ball 5-7 • Coming Summer 2021 
YMCA Port Sports {Program Partner) 6-14 • Provides sports sampling and free play activities for youth 
Community Engagement • PYREC Visioning Session was held to obtain feedback 

from community groups and stakeholders on March 
25,2021 

• Information and input from the session will be used to 
inform our program creation and implementation. 



#10 
RESOLUTION 

l 



~'f OF 
c,' . 

41 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members 
FROM: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
DATE: March 31, 2021 

RE: Resolution to Allocate a Maximum $50,000 for a One-Year 
Contract for Lobbying Services related to the American 
Rescue Act and Funding for Cities 

The purpose of this memorandum is to formally request the allocation of general fund monies 
to support the retention of a government lobbyist for the purpose of promoting and protecting 
the City of Pontiac's interest in the funding allocated by the American Rescue Act, the lack of 

proper funding for Pontiac, and other resources and appropriations that may enhance the 
City's opportunities to receive an appropriate share of the funds being distributed to Cities 

across the United States. 

BACKGROUND 
The City is now aware that the formula used to determine its share of the funds directed to 
City's under the American Rescue Act are grossly imbalanced when comparing the share 
intended for Pontiac against Cities in Michigan of similar size and demographics. As indicated 
by our outside accounting and audit firm Plante Moran: 

"The "Metro Cities" are cities/townships over 50,000 in population and are direct recipients of CDBG. "Other 
Non-Counties" are those under 50,000. Pontiac, despite your population being closer to 60,000, is on the 
"Other Non-Counties" tab. I suspect it is because Oakland County administers your CDBG. The Metro Cities are 
being funded based on the CDBG formula. The Other Non-Counties are strictly based on population. 

On a per capita basis, the funding for Metro Cities is all over the place, due to the CDBG formula. For example, 
Detroit is getting $1,312 per resident. Westland is getting $342 per resident. Canton Twp. is getting $109 per 
resident. 

On a sample basis, the Other Non-Counties appear to be approximately $92-$98 per resident. I believe the 
fluctuation is due to the source I'm using for population. I calculated Pontiac at $98/resident. The closest 
example to you that demonstrates this disparity is Pontiac vs. Royal Oak, just 14 miles straight down 
Woodward. You are getting $98/resident. With approximately the same population (just under 60,000), Royal 
Oak is getting $29.76M or $503 per resident. 



My understanding, based on a National League of Cities presentation earlier this week, is that these dollar 
amounts are NOT final. I do not know how soon they will be finalized or who has the final say. I do agree your 
best bet is to work through the MML and contact your own Rep and Senator." 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac has been preliminarily allocated less than $100 per resident of the 
intended localjimdingfrom the American Rescue Act; and 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac, by act the previous Emergency Manager who committed the City to 
the status of sub-recipient to Oakland County for certain Community Development Block Grant 
fimding, with that status now impacting the formula used to determine the need in the City,· and 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac is in substantial need of assistance from the American Rescue Act 
having been significantly affected by the economic effects ofCOVID-19 and continuing to realize 
those affects through loss of income tax revenue, closing of local businesses, increased 
unemployment, a pending eviction crisis, and general fimd distress. 

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that the City Council directs the amount of $50,000 be 
appropriated from the general fund an,l allocated to an account directed by the City's 
Finance Director to be used for the contracting a government lobbyist to promote and 
assist the City in engaging all opportunity to benefit from funding sources, or other 
appropriations, in response to the devastating economic effects of the COVID-19 crisis. 
It is further directe<l that the Mayor is authorized to perform such tasks as are necessary 
to consider, review and contract an appropriately registered and experienced person or 
firm to perform this service. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

April 1, 2021 

American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 

Attached is a presentation that provides an overview of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 
that was recently signed into law by President Biden. This Act provides approximately $362 
Billion of funding for state and local governments to help offset the economic impact due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Of this amount, approximately $65 Billion is being targeted to cities, 
towns and villages. 

Based on the initial projections, the City of Pontiac is expected to receive approximately $5 .8 
million in funding from the Act. However, due to the formulas being used to determine funding 
levels, the City of Pontiac is receiving a disproportionately lower amount of funding that other 
comparable cities. For example, the City of Dearborn Heights is projected to receive $25.9 
million, the City of Taylor is projected to receive nearly $12 million and the City of Royal Oak is 
expected to receive nearly $30 million. 

The formula being used that has created such a disprop01tionate funding level for Pontiac is a 
result largely of the use of CDBG funding in the formula. More specifically, cities are broken into 
two categories with one category being those cities that directly receive funding for CDBD and a 
second category for those cities that do not directly receive CDBG funds. Because the City of 
Pontiac is a sub-recipient of CDBG funds through Oakland County, this has resulted in negatively 
impacting the amount of funds that Pontiac is projected to receive from this Act. 

The Administration is currently working with officials at the county, state and federal levels to 
highlight this disparity and to identify ways in which this disparity may be addressed and 
corrected. 

Page I of I 



Estimated State and Local Allocation Spreadsheet 
Reference Guide 

How fast will state and local governments receive the aid? 

States, Tribal governments, teITitories, counties, and metropolitan cities (which generally have~ 
50,000 inhabitants) would receive their allocations within 60 days of submitting their certification of 
need to the Department of Treasury. 

Because it could take a full year for the Department of Treasmy to calculate and disburse the allocations 
for smaller local governments (generally those with under 50,000 inhabitants, comprising over 33,000 
entities), the Department of Treasmy is instead required to send those funds to the states within 60 days 
of the law's enactment. States would then have 30 days to disburse the funds to the local governments 
( called "nonentitlement units of local government") based on population. A state could ask Treasmy for 
an extension for distributing one or more of those allocations if necessa1y, but it would need to justify 
why the extension is warranted. States would have !!.Q. discretionary authority to change the amount of, 
or attach additional requirements to, the payments allocated to local governments. 

What's the difference between a "CDBG City" and a "Nonentitlement"? 

These terms are used on tabs 3 and 4 of the spreadsheet. "CDBG City" generally refers to cities of over 
50,000, which would receive their allocation from the Department of Treasmy based on a modified 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) formula. 

"Nonentitlement" is short for "nonentitlement unit of local govemment," which is the term used for 
cities, townships, villages, and small municipalities that generally have fewer than 50,000 inhabitants. 
Those allocations would be made proportionate to population and are subject to a cap of 75% of the 
locality's most recent budget as of January 27, 2020. 

How reliable are the estimates on the "Nonentitlement Rough Cales" tab? 

The spreadsheet estimates were calculated using public Census data, which poses four obstacles to 
getting precise nonentitlement assistance estimates: 

1. Analysts must manually remove all "metro city" governments and underlying areas located 
within those areas. As users review the spreadsheets and point out oversights, updated 
spreadsheets are being released. 

2. The Census data does not identify cases where local govemments overlap (for example, an area . 
with both a town govermnent and a township government). This not only leads to issues in 
allocating payments in these areas, as they will likely split their payment across such 
governments, but also affects ALL nonentitlement governments because it affects the total 
population base used to distribute nonentitlement payments nationwide. Acknowledging the 
significant effects that overlap could have on nonentitlement estimates, the tab includes two 
estimates: 



o The estimates in the "No Overlap" Allocation (Column D) are at one end of the 
extreme, and assume that whenever unclear, the overlap between governments is as small 
as possible. This means the nationwide population is as large as possible, and thus the 
payments to all governments are smaller because they cover more people. 

o The estimates in the "All Overlap" Allocation (Column E) are at the other extreme, 
assuming maximum overlap when presented with an unclear case. This minimizes the 
nationwide population eligible for funding, thereby resulting in greater payments to all 
nonentitlement governments. 

3. Local governments may have unique structures ( for example, if a city and county are 
consolidated) that mean they are left off the spreadsheet despite being eligible for funding. 

4. The data does not contain local budget information, so it does not reflect instances where a 
government would reach its cap of 75% of its most recent budget as of January 27, 2020. This 
cap may put a local government significantly below the "No Overlap" allocation estimate. 

Why are the nonentitlement estimates for a state different on the Nonentitlement tab compared to 
the State and CDBG tabs? 

On the "State and Level" tab, the "to Local Govts" column uses a "top down" simplifying estimate for 
nonentitlement allocations, assuming that the percentage of people eligible for nonentitlement assistance 
is constant across states. 

On the "CDBG City" tab, each state has a line called [State, State]. This amount is the total amount the 
state is estimated to receive for its nonentitlement units oflocal government (those listed on the 
"Nonentitlement" tab), and also uses the "top down" simplifying assumption. For example, the entry for 
"Idaho, Idaho" is the estimated amount that would be distributed across all ofldaho's nonentitlement 
units of local government listed on the ''Nonentitlement" tab. However, these figures present the 
following concerns: 

1. Some states have larger shares of people in nonentitlement governments than others, even if 
those shares can't be calibrated precisely with the publicly available Census data; and 

2. Knowing the total amount of nonentitlement assistance flowing to a state isn't helpful to local 
government officials who need more specific information about what their unit of government 
would receive. 

With that in mind, the ''Nonentitlement Rough Cales: tab uses a "bottom up" estimate that attempts to 
better describe the amounts flowing to individual towns using the Census data, understanding that those 
estimates will be inherently flawed. 

These two different approaches (top down versus bottom up) mean that the [State, State] line of the 
"CDBG Cities" tab will not match up with the sum of the state's entries on the "Nonentitlement Rough 
Cales" tab. 





What is the American Rescue Plan? 
The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 is a $1.9 trillion coronavirus rescue package 
designed to facilitate the United States recovery from the devastating economic and 
health effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The package includes direct stimulus payments of $1,400, extending unemployment 
compensation, continuing eviction and foreclosure moratoriums, and increasing the 
child tax credit while making it fully refundable. It also provides money for schools from 
kindergarten through eighth grade to safely reopen amidst the pandemic, and 
subsidizes Covid-19 testing and vaccination programs. Most importantly, the Act 
provides $362 billion in funds for state and local governments to help compensate for 
lost tax revenues and increased expenses due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 



8 

A 
bgleR!Yti • 

• Ontonagon t U-.ns~ 

... -- -

Marquette 

.... ... , lton M.ountaln .. 

I akr 
Sw111·ri1Jr 

• Munising 

Manlstiqu, 

' 

. 
Newb<rry 

,. ,.., 
's.ull 

SteM.ar,~ 

MICHIGAN 
Cities 

CANADA 

- - , Escanc1ba • 
heboyg;n • ' 

WISCONS IN 

l. EGE N D 
- · - Intl. Boundary 

Stale Boundary 
@ sta·ec.iprtal 
• ~lajor City 
• Ot erCily 

IO~A ILLINOI S 
I 0 , 50 

I 
100 Km 

I 

\ 
\ 

I 

Me omine}•. 

I,' 
I I 

0 Sll!l'J•• I 

Copyright © 2015 www.mapsofworld.com 1 

(Updaredon 16rhJan,2015) : 

' 
Charle\'O, _e•to,kE')' "' '-.. Roger>GIY \ Lah 

,L•ll nd , Bellaire •Geylo1d •Atlanta 1_Alpeoa Huron 
\ 

Traverse dty • ~;,l,<>>I, 
\ • .Grayling msvirle 

' B,;ulah • Mio . 
Loke Ci!Y Ro,commo West Branch T c· 

1
Manlst:-e • • • • ,,w , ,:y 

c.dil~c 
Ludi1910n Harrison• . s1,ndi1h 

1 
Baldwin • f eed CilY Gladwin 

• Big Rapids /1;~:~t S.yGIY 
H.ilt • • ,· • 

White Ooud Mid•1nd 
. 

t • Caro .s.,,du1ky 

• lth!a Saginaw 
,-Muskegon Sianton • 
• Sa!ntJohns Flint , L.peer 

\fichiga11 

Grand H12van • • 1ott2 • • • • 
Grnnd R:ipld~ Co, unn.l /Ort Huron 

@Lansing CAN AD A All tt,11Jng1 • Charlott, .Pontiac Mount/ 
egan • • ;kso~ • Howell • 0-:mens 

h Detroit / Kalamazoo• Ma,s oil Jackson • - · 
Sa rtJoi~ 'Paw Pa'li • t Ann •Arbor 1 

1 
• C-oldY;.3ter . Hm~ile 

C.mopo.'ls CentreiAlle • Adrian 

INDIANA 

i" 
I 
I 

OHIO 

,, 
,,. tdt frir 

The Money For Cities, Town and Villages 

• Cities, Town and Villages will split $65.1 
billion 

• 

• 

Entitlement Cities-generally those with 
populations of greater than 50,000-will have 
funds distributed using the current 
Community Development Block Grant 
{CDBG} funding formula. Entitlement Cities 
receive $45.53 billion. 

Non-Entitlement Cities {which includes the 
City of Pontiac}-distributed by the state on 
the basis of population. Non-Entitlement 
Cities receive $19.57 billion 



The Funds will be distributed in two tranches: 

The first tranche will go out 60 days from the 
signing of the law 

The second tranche will go out one year later after 
the first tranche 



How Cities Get Their Money? 

• Entitlement Cities will receive a 
direct allocation from the Treasury 
Department within 60 days of 
s1gn1ng 

• Non-Entitlement Cities (including 
City of Pontiac) will receive a pass 
through from the state within 30 
days 



Aid Distribution Amounts and Formulas 

Level of Government Amount 

State Governments $195.3 billion 

Local Governments $130.2 billion 

--+-------~---

Territories $4.5 billion 
..---- ---------------- ----

Tribal Governments $20.0 billion 

Distribution Formula 

Share of National 
Unemployment with CARES Act 
Minimum Payment 

Population and CDBG Criteria 

Base Allocation plus Population 

Treasury Determination 
--- -- -·--



Why was Pontiac Not Treated as a Entitlement City in the American Recue Plan Allocation? 

While confirmation has not yet been received as to why the 
City was excluded from the "entitlement city" allocation it 
appears to be due to the fact that the City's CDBG funds are 
administered by Oakland County. Entitlement Cities have 
projected funding based on CBDG criteria; Pontiac's funding 
projection is based on population. · 

Projected Funding Levels($ in millions): 
• Pontiac $ 5.8 
• Royal Oak $29.7 
• Taylor $11.9 
• Dearborn Heights $25.9 



CARES Act Funding 

This was the first of the COVID relief bills and was passed by 
Congress in March 2020. For the current fiscal year, the City of 
Pontiac has received $3.852 million in COVID related grants 
and reimbursements. 

Public Safety Reimbursement - Police (Oakland County) 

Public Safety Reimbursement - Fire (Waterford) 

Senior Services 

Coronavirus Relief Local Government Grant (Oakland County) 

Coronavirus Relief Local Government Grant 

Total 

$629,000 

$327,000 

$56,000 

$1,533,000 

$1,307,000 

$3,852,000 



Non-Entitlements Cities Restrictions 

• Non-Entitlement Cities may not receive more than 
75% of the city's most recent budget 

• Money may not be used for pension funds 

• Money remains available until December 31, 2024 



All recipients of money will have 
to provide periodic reports to the 
Treasury 





The Money For Cities, Towns and Villages 

For the first time all 19,000 municipal governments will be entitled to a 
difference-making level of federal funds by formula, not competitive funding, 
which will be allocated by the Treasury Department. 

The CARES Act went to cities with a population of greater than 500,000 

The rental assistant program passed in December went to cities with 200,000 
or more people. 

This is Historic. 



The Money For Cities, Towns and Villages 

Cities, Towns and Villages will split $65.1 billion. 

Entitlement Cities - generally those with populations greater than 50,000 - will 
have funds distributed using the current Community Development Block Grant 
funding formula. Entitlement Cities get $45.53 billion. 

Non-Entitlement Cities - distributed by the state on the basis of population. 
Non-Entitlement Cities receive $19.57 billion 



The Money For Cities, Towns and Villages 

When do Cities, Towns and Villages Receive the Money? 

The funds will be distributed in two tranches. 
The first tranche will go out 60 days from the singing of the law. 

'3> The second tranche will go out one year later. 



The Money For Cities, Towns and Villages 

How Cities Get Their Money? 

Entitlement Cities will receive a direct allocation from the Treasury 
Department within 60 days of signing. 

Non-Entitlement cities will receive a pass through from their state within 30 
days**. 



Non-Entitlements And Why This Is Not Like The CARES Act 

The CARES Act provided money to the top 34 cities directly. More than 6,000 
Cities, Towns and Villages never received any CARES Act funding either from 
their state or county. 

There is iron clad language in the statute that uses the word "shall" to ensure 
that states pass the money though. 

However, the Secretary of Treasury can allow up to 120 days for the state to 
pass through the money if they can show undue burden. Penalties on the 
states if they do not share. 



Allowable Uses 

"(A) to respond to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 
2019 (COVID-19) or its negative economic impacts, including assistance to households, 
small businesses, and nonprofits, or aid to impacted industries such as tourism, travel, 
and hospitality; 

(B) to respond to workers performing essential work during the COVID-19 public health 
emergency by providing premium pay to eligible workers of the metropolitan city, 
nonentitlement unit of local government, or county that are performing such essential 
work, or by providing grants to eligible employers that have eligible workers who perform 
essential work; 

~ This allows a municipality to provide up to $13 per hour above regular wages. 



Lost Revenue 

"(C) for the provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue of 
such metropolitan city, nonentitlement unit of local government, or county due to the 
COVID-19 public health emergency relative to revenues collected in the most recent full 
fiscal year of the metropolitan city, nonentitlement unit of local government, or county 
prior to the emergency; or 

Key here: prior to the emergency. The base year against which you will measure lost 
revenue happens not the most recent full fiscal year but the most recent full fiscal year 
prior to the emergency. 



Allowable Uses 

"(D) to make necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband 
infrastructure. 

A couple points: 
(/) The term "or". If this were "and" then all three might be allowed, but as I read this you 

only get to make an investment in one of the categories. 

The investment does not need to be tied to the pandemic 

If you have infrastructure in one of these three buckets that needs upgrades, go for it. 



Flexibility of Funds 

Recipient Governments can transfer funds to a: 

w Private nonprofit organization 

a public benefit corporation involved in the transportation of passengers or cargo, 

or a special-purpose unit of State or local government. 



Restrictions 

Non-entitlement cities may not receive more than 75 percent of the city's most 
recent budget 

Money may not be used for pension funds 

"(2) PENSION FUNDS.-No metropolitan city, nonentitlement unit of local government, or county 
may use funds made available under this section for deposit into any pension fund. 

Money Remains Available until December 31, 2024 



Reporting 

In the House version, there was no reporting requirement. 

In the final version, ALL recipients of money will have to provide periodic 
reports to Treasury. 

Recipients of "payment made under this section shall provide to the Secretary periodic reports 
providing a detailed accounting of the uses of such funds by such metropolitan city, 
nonentitlement unit of local government, or county and including such other information as the 
Secretary may require for the administration of this section." 



Next Steps 

NLC will begin working with the Treasury Department on the implementation 
of this section of the American Rescue Plan Act, as well as work to make 
suggestions on guidance. 

If you have any input or thoughts, you can email: 
Mike Gleeson I Gleeson@nlc.org 

Michael Wallace I Wallace@nlc.org 



UESTI NS? GET IN T CH. 

Michael Gleeson 

Manager, Finance, Administration, and Intergovernmental Relations 

Gleeson@nlc.org 

NLC's Federal Advocacy team 

advocacy@nlc.org 



@LEAGUEOFCITIES 





City of Pontiac, Michigan 
Department of Finance 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

To: 

From: 

Anthony Chubb, City Attorney 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

March 4, 2021 Date: 

Re: Review of Expenses and Grant in Clerk's Office 

The Finance Department has recently been forced to review a number of expenses and other items 
in the City Clerk's Office. More specifically, we have looked at expenditures that have been 
charged to the following budgets which the Interim City Clerk is responsible for as follows: 

• Clerk's budget (Dept. 215) 
• Elections budget (Dept. 191) (including the elections grant received by the Interim Clerk's 

Office in September 2020 from the Center for Tech and Civic Life) 

This internal investigation was caused by the lack of responsive information from the Clerk's 
office and our discovery that election funds were spent on materials directly related to the status 
and processing of medical marijuana application, an act which may cause the fund created by 
application fees to be out of balance and subject to attack. 

Several questions had been asked to the Interim Clerk to assist our Department in resolving this 
budgetary conflict and to protect the City from any exposure on the CTCL Grant, including but 
not limited to: 

• What authority did you rely on to spend election funds for personal communications and 
information on medical marijuana? 

• What attorney authored the opinion you have asserted in the medical marijuana newsletter, 
and under what authority did they act, and how were they compensated? 

• Is your office intending to act independent of the Charter and pursue a legal position and 
budget position that is contrary to the legal authority granted to the City Attorney in the 
Charter? 

The Interim clerk has not fully responded to our office, but we are providing this report based upon 
the information known, and basing our recommendations on that knowledge. 

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 



Center for Tech and Civic Life Grant 
This grant was received by the City in September 2020 in the amount of $405,564. The grant was 
received from the Center for Tech and Civic Life (CTCLG). This entity is a Chicago based group 
that is focused on expanding the election process to open and ease pathways to collect ballots and 
enhance voter count and participation. The purpose of the grant was for planning and operations 
for a safe election in 2020 during the public health crisis stemming from COVID-19. 

Some of the budgeted expenses for the grant, as detailed in the City's application included 
temporary workers, website improvements, media campaign and ballot drop boxes. The total 
planned expenses based on the application made were a total of approximately $405,000. An 
itemized breakdown of these expenses was provided in the initial application and is attached to 
this memo. There continues to be conflict with the Clerk's office in the manner in which website 
and other communications are completed including the dissemination of legal opinion that is 
contrary to the asserted and established position of the City. Those areas of conflict are not 
addressed herein, except to note the ongoing acts of the Clerk's office that are outside the scope of 
that office. 

The funds for the grant were received by the City in September 2020. The grant had an expiration 
date of December 31, 2020. As stipulated in the grant, any unused funds would have to be returned 
to the Grantor. In December, the Interim Clerk provided an update to Council that he has/will be 
requesting an extension of the grant's December 31 st deadline, but failed to provide this office 
timely and accurate information as to the intended use of the remaining grant funds, the process 
for the extension, fees or costs to be incurred, and other details that would assist this office in 
tracking and balancing the grant against the City's finances and accounting. As of that date, there 
was approximately $165,000 in unspent funds. This extension would allow for the remaining 
funds to be spent past the December 31 deadline. On February 4, 2021, the Interim Clerk received 
a formal notice of extension of the grant from CTCLG. This extension provided that the remaining 
funds could be used through June 30, 2021. 

After receiving appropriate information, we have reviewed the expenses that have been applied 
against the grant. Our Department has processed approximately $240,000 in expenses from this 
grant to a number of different vendors. The reviewed expenses include payments to temporary 
workers, computers and equipment. In reviewing these expenses, we have compared the actual 
expenses against what was requested in the original grant application. Based on the review, the 
expenses that have been charged against the grant are consistent with what was requested and 
planned from the grant application and there are no apparent inconsistencies. 

Our office would note that the City of Pontiac is the responsible fiduciary for this grant. It is our 
expectation that any requests for materials from a City Department must be provided by that 
Department. This is a key control for the Finance Department to ensure that the City is compliant 
with relevant policies, procedures and regulations. As detailed above, while the Interim Clerk has 
complied with several of our office's requests for important materials, there have been instances 
where our requests have gone unfulfilled or were not fulfilled at the time of request. 

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 



Department Expenses 
Our Department has performed a general review of the expenses that have been charged to the two 
relevant departments during this fiscal year. 

Of particular concern are questions regarding newsletters that have gone out of the Clerk's Office 
and that have been funded by the Interim Clerk's Elections budget. In the current fiscal year three 
newsletters were paid out by the Interim Clerk's Elections budget. Two of these newsletters were 
funded through the above referenced grant. Based on my review the expenses for the first two 
newsletters were expended as budgeted and in line with applicable City policies. The third 
newsletter was paid out of the Elections budget. The subject of this newsletter largely centered on 
the issue of the City's Marihuana Ordinance. 

Marihuana Newsletter 
This newsletter was sent by the Interim Clerk in November 2020 and was titled Special Issue: 
Medical Marihuana. We have looked at the expenses for this newsletter that were incurred with 
City vendor Oakland Strategies. Based on my review, the costs paid, approximately $10,000, do 
not appear out of order for this type of purchase. The significant issue in this instance, however, 
is not the reasonableness of the expense, rather, that the expense relates directly to medical 
marijuana application matters. This expense would properly be paid from the fee account created 
from applicant fees for medical marijuana. The paying of this expense from an um-elated account 
may cause a deficiency in the applicant fund when properly corrected as all expenses for the 
processing and award of medical marijuana permits must be accounted from the applicant fund. 

An additional issue of significance is the material that was communicated via this newsletter. The 
newsletter made certain representations about the City's Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance, 
zoning district boundaries and eligibility of certain applicants. Per the City Attorney's letter dated 
December 11, 2020, it found that a number of these representations were in direct conflict with 
City's official legal position. Additionally, this letter indicated that the material in this newsletter 
could subject the City to legal liability. There has been no offer of evidence as to where these 
incorrect legal positions derived, nor has there been an answer to how the Clerk's office will 
correct the improper statements. This may have further impact on the medical marijuana applicant 
fund as costs are incurred to correct these matters. 

Recommendations 
Based on our review as detailed above we are making the following recommendations: 

• Written notice be provided to the Interim Clerk demanding that the newsletter expense be 
properly allocated, with a corrective resolution from Council, and further demanding that 
the Clerk's office provide written confirmation of its abide by the legal authority of the 
City Attorney aa set forth in the Charter. 

• Restatement of City policy be provided to the Interim Clerk identifying the requirement 
that approval of expenses and requisitions be approved prior to incurring or committing to 
any expenses 

• Per the City Attorney's December 11, 2020 letter, any newsletters and mailings by the 
Interim Clerk will require a Resolution of approval by the City Council 

47450 WOODWARD A VENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 



• The Finance Department and staff will not approve or process any invoices for newsletters 
or mailings that do not have the Council Resolution as required by the City Attorney's 
letter of December 11, 2020 

• The Finance Department will work with the City Attorney to ensure that any newsletters 
or mailings from the Interim Clerk are reviewed to ensure that the information contained 
within these mailings are consistent with the policies and legal opinions of the City 

• The Finance Department staff will be provided with written notice of these new policies 
and processes to ensure that we are able to fully implement and comply with the proposed 
recommendation 

47450 WOODWARD A VENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 



Attachments 

A. Medical Marihuana Newsletter 

B. December 15, 2020 Council Agenda and Report from Clerk on Grant Extension 

C. Report to Center for Tech and Civic Life on Grant Expenditures 

D. Grant Extension Application 

E. Email from Center for Tech and Civic Life extending grant 

F. Cease and Decease Letter from City Attorney 

47450 WOODWARD AVENUE, PONTIAC, MI 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3100 · FAX: (248) 758-3170 



.._,fl OF 
C,' . 

f . CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
RE: 

Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council Members 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman, City Attorney Anthony Chubb 

March 31, 2021 
Resolution to Adopt Finance Director Recommendations 

The purpose of this memorandum is to formally request the enforcement of the Finance 

Director's Report dated March 4, 2021, attached hereto, wherein the office reported 

concerns regarding certain expenditures within the clerk's office and the impact and effect of 

those actions. 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Whereas, the City 's Finance Director conducted an internal investigation regarding the use of 
Election Funds for Medical Marijuana Application communications and other unrelated 
expenses; and 

Whereas, the Interim City Clerk has failed to provide a complete response to the inquiries of the 
Finance Director and there remains an error in the authorization and proper budget allocations 
for the expenses; and 

Whereas, the City Administration hereby requests that the City Council exercise its authority and 
enforce proper performance of duties by the Interim City Clerk and acknowledge and adopt 
the Recommendation of the City's Finance Director. 

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that the City Council directs the following action: 
(1) Written notice be provided to the Interim Clerk demanding that the newsletter expense be 

properly allocated, with a corrective resolutionfi·om Council, andfitrther demanding that 
the Clerk's office provide written confirmation of its abide by the legal authority of the 
City Attorney aa set forth in the Charter. 

(2) Restatement of City policy be provided to the Interim Clerk identijjJfng the requirement 
that approval of expenses and requisitions be approved prior to incurring or committing 
to any expenses 

(3) Per the City Attorney's December 11, 2020 letter, any newsletters and mailings by the 
Interim Clerk will require a Resolution of approval by the City Council 

(4) The Finance Department and stajfwill not approve or process any invoices for 



newsletters or mailings that do not have the Council Resolution as required by the City 
Attorney's letter of December 11, 2020 

(5) The Finance Department will work with the City Attorney to ensure that any newsletters 
or mailings from the Interim Clerk are reviewed to ensure that the information contained 
within these mailings are consistent with the policies and legal opinions of the City 

(6) The Finance Department staff will be provided with written notice of these new policies 
and processes to ensure that we are able to fully implement and comply with the proposed 
recommendation 





GARLAND s. DOYLE, M. P.A. 
lnten'lll Ci{y Clerk 
FOi/i Coordinator 

SHEILA GRANDISON 

Depu{y Ci{y Clerk 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council 

FR: Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

DA: April 1, 2021 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

4 7 450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Phone: (24 8) 758-3200 

Fax: (248) 758 3160 

RE: City Clerk's Response to Nonfactual Report from the Finance Department Regarding 
Alleged Diversion of Election Division Budget Funds 

cc: Darin Carrington, Finance Director and Anthony Chubb, City Attorney 

The following are my responses to the questions from the Finance Director and City Attorney. 
The response was dated March 11, 2021. 

First of all there was no improper use of Election funds. Since being appointed City Clerk, 
I have been fully transparent. The following are my responses to your questions. I have 
previously answered many of these questions. 

1. Please provide the rationale and source of the authority for using General Fund Election 
dollars for Medical Marihuana purposes related to the Fall 2020 Special issue Medical 
Marihuana newsletter. Additionally, provide copies of any other expenses that used 
General Fund Election dollars for Medical Marihuana-related expenses. 

Answer: Since Ordinance 2357(B) "City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities 
Ordinance" was approved at the Primary Election on August 7, 2018 and affirmed after 
the recount on September 12, 2018, it was appropriate to allocate the newsletter 
expenditure to accounts within Dept 191 Elections. The purpose of the newsletter was to 
give citizens an update on a ballot approved initiative. I have received many inquiries from 
citizens about the ballot initiative. 

It would have been inappropriate to spend Dept 255 Medical Marihuana budget dollars 
since the dollars within that budget are derived from the Medical Marihuana Application 
Fee. The application fee is to help defray administrative costs associated with the review of 
Medical Marihuana facility applications. 



2. From whom did you obtain the legal opinion used for the material contained in the 
Medical Marihuana newsletter? Please provide a copy of this legal opinion. 

Answer: I did not receive a legal opinion prior to the distribution of the newsletter. Since 
the newsletter publication, I have received an independent legal opinion that validates any 
statements that were made in the newsletter. I have attached a copy of the legal opinion. 

3. Regarding question number two, do you recognize and abide by the responsibilities to 
have and fully describe to the finance department/director any fiscal information that the 
finance department is requesting? 

Answer: What fiscal information is the Finance Department requesting regarding question 
number 2? I have given the Finance Department all relevant information regarding the 
newsletter invoice. I have attached another copy. 

4. Do you further understand the finance department is accountable for making sure that 
expenses/use of city funds are acceptable in accounting standards and/or subject to audit? 

Answer: With over twenty years of professional municipal government experience, I am 
very familiar with government accounting standards and audits. Are you aware that the 
Charter gives the City Council the authority over the budget? As the fiscal stewards of the 
city, they have requested and are entitled to a forensic audit. 

5. If you were aware that the statement in the newsletter conflicted with the official City 
ordinance established by the City Attorney per the City of Pontiac's charter, do you 
understand your duty to abide by the policy? 

Answer: I am very familiar with the City Charter. I also know the ignorance of law is no 
excuse. I have stated publicly that the City Attorney was telling me to break the law. I am 
supported by an independent legal opinion. 

6. It was hard to get information from you; please note my original request. Have you 
complied with supplying the information requested by the Finance Director? Why were 
you delayed in responding to the request for information? 

Answer: I was troubled by your request. If you had any concerns about the invoice, then 
the vendor should have not been paid until your questions were answered. I do not have the 
authority to issue checks. Since the vendor had been paid, there was no need for an 
immediate response. Furthermore, I do not understand why payments for invoices 
unrelated to the newsletter have been held up. Please clarify, why? Again, I would think if 
you had questions about the newsletter, than that invoice would have been held but it was 
approved and paid by the Finance Department. Why are selective invoices being held? 
Please respond. 

2 



7. You stated that you are abiding by the opinion of an outside legal counsel but have 
declined to state who that is or how they're being compensated. Do you realize that secret 
legal counsel is inappropriate? 

Answer: There is no secret legal counsel. I have attached the independent legal opinion. In 
order to protect myself from any civil and/or criminal liability, I felt it was necessary for 
me to engage independent legal counsel. I believed City Attorney Chubb was telling me to 
perform an illegal act. No city funds were used to compensate The Curcio Law Firm. 

3 



Oakland strategies Group 

Directions 

106 Tregent St 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

Phone: 248.895.6061 
E-mail: jasonbauer@gmail.com 

Please make check out to: 

Jason Bauer 
106 Tregent St 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

Invoice#: 000366 
Date: October 28, 2020 

Customer: 
City of Pontiac 
Elections Division 

25,00() Printing 
11x17 Election Mallers (8 page folded In 
half and stapled Full color w/bleed) 

Design 8.5x11 r-lall Piece 

24,253 Postage USPS Postage 

24,253 Handling Mail Handling 

.::D'i\lo)ce.. \)5)-·3:. c.ha..<:3E:_d t-o lo1-1°1\·-8l6,o\0 
\ V\QC)\IC<...+\ y I 
CJ~r~:f-L n \lo\c.Q. o...s ~ \ \ ows 
10\-l9\-8,\';s,ooo ·- ·\\> '--\/1:s;o 
LO\- \C\\-S<g&,O'Db-J$ lDOD 

to,-,0,\-'1'1.B,OOO \t. 5::i·\o,SLI 

. $4,950.00 

$600.00 

$4,365.54 

$975,00 

Subtotal $10,890,54 

Tax TAX EXEMPT 

Shipping 

Miscellaneous 

Bnfance:Due $10,890.54 



Dear Resident, 

This past summer, we officially launched the Medical Marihuana 
application review process. Ordinance 2357(8) the City of Pontiac 
Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance approved by Pontiac voters 
gives the City Clerk the responsibility to review, evaluate and/or score 
applications. 

After voters approved Medical Marihuana, the City of Pontiac adopted 
Ordinance 2363 a zoning ordinance to regulate where Medical 
Marihuana facilities could locate in the City. Ordinance 2363 established 
the Cesar Chavez, Downtown, and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana 
Overlay Districts as shown on pages 2-3 of this newsletter. As the City 
Clerk, I am required to follow both ordinances as the review team assists 
me in evaluating and/or scoring applications to determine if an applicant 
should be awarded a permit. I have assembled a team of professional 
experts to assist me with the review of applications to ensure that the 
City of Pontiac awards licenses to the most qualified applicants. The 
review team members are listed on page 7. Each member of the team 
was required to sign confidentiality/non-disclosure and conflict of 
interest forms to ensure that they do not have any conflicts or any 
financial interest in any of the applicants being awarded a license. I am 
committed to a review process that has integrity. 

Ordinance 2357(8) allows the City to award no more than 20 
provisioning center licenses using a 130 point scale. According to 
Ordinance 2363 the zoning ordinance, no more than 5 provisioning 
center permits will be awarded in the Cesar Chavez Overlay District. No 
more than 5 provisioning center permits will be awarded in Downtown. 
No more than 5 provisioning center permits will be awarded in the 
Walton Blvd Overlay District and no more than 5 permits will be 
awarded in the Non Overlay, for a total of 20 provisioning center 
licenses. 

As a part of each applicant's application, they are requ ired to make 
significant investments in our community. It is my responsibility to 
ensure that these commitments are fulfilled. This is why, I created the 
community benefits scoring system as a way to evaluate these 
commitments. 

In addition, the Clerk can award an unlimited number of permits for 
grower and processors if they, satisfactorily, fulfill the application 
requirements and will locate in either the Cesar Chavez or Walton Blvd 
Overlay Districts only. Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter 
permits can be awarded in each of three medical marihuana overlay 
districts as well as C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 zoned properties located 
outside of the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. See p. 4 for the City 
of Pontiac Zoning Map. The review process has several phases as shown 
on pages 5-6. In an effort to be fully transparent, all of the applicant 
proposed locations and type of license they are seeking are listed on 
pages 3-5. 

As your City Clerk, I am committed to a review process that is fair. 

Garland Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

Provisioning Center Scoring System 

Category Max 
Points 

1. Content and Sufficiency 
Background Information (up to 5 points) 
Financial Background (up to 10 points) 
Economic Benefits (up to 10 points) so 
Community Development (up to 10 points) 
* scored using Community Benefits Scoring 
Planning (Facility) (up to 10 points) 
Patient Education (up to 5 points) 

2. Land Use 20 

3. Community Impact 10 

4. Managerial Resources 10 

5. Financial Resources 10 

6. Job Creation 10 

7. Philanthropic & Community Improvement 10 

*scored using Community Benefits Scoring 

8. Physical Improvements 10 

I Total Possible Score 130 

Grower, Processor, Safety 
Compliance and Secure 

Transporter Applications 
and not scored they will be 

evaluated using a satisfactory 
vs. unsatisfactory system. 

Inside This Issue 

2-3: Medical Marihuana 
Overlay Districts 

4: Non Overlay 
5-6: Review Process 
7: Review Team 



~ OF 
c,' " 

'.Y. 
: :\ ,/":. , 

,: .. Medicial Marihuana Overlay Districts 
IC 1-~ 

Cesar Chavez Overlay District Map 

-Yale 

i . 
Ypsilan!r 

• AnnArbor 

' 

Available License Types in the 
Cesar Chavez Overlay District 

1.) Grower 
2.) Processor 
3.) Secure Transporter 
4.) Safety Compliance 
5.) Provisioning Centers (No more than 5 

Provisioning Centers will be selected in 
this district) 

Applications on page 3 

Downtown Overlay District Map 

( 

,I 

Available License Types in the 
Downtown Overlay District 

1.) Secure Transporter 
2.) Safety Compliance 
3.) Provisioning Centers (No more than 5 

Provisioning Centers will be selected in 
this district) 

Applications on page 3 

Page 2 Office of the City Clerk _ _ ._.j 

- ~ ~ ~ ' 



Medicial Marihuana Overlay Districts 

Walton Blvd. Overlay District Map 

Applicants 

Cesar Chavez District 
Grower 4nnllcatlons 

Establishment Name Establishment Address 
Misty Mee LLC 1248 Cesar E Chavez 48340 

Nat ure's Gold LLC 585 W Kennett 

PGSH Holdines Inc. 1054 Durant 48340 

Processor Application 
Establishment Name Establishment Address 

Nature's Gold LLC 585 W Kennett 

Provisioning Center Applications 
Establishment Name Establishment Address 

Caesars Garden 910 Cesar E Chavez 

Greenhouse Farms Pontiac LLC 985 Cesar E Chavez 

Herb Wealth LLC 856 Cesar Chavez 

Larren Investments LLC 986 Cesa r E Chavez 

Mistv Mee LLC ' BloomCitv Club Pont iac 1248 Cesar E Chavez 

OP Holdings II LLC TBO 

PGSH Holdines LLC 1054 Durant 

Prime 7 LLC 658 Cesar E Chavez 

Pure Life Solutions II LLC 676 Cesar E Chavez 

Rlze Cannabis 772 Cesar E Chavez 

southeast Provisioning Center LLC 784 Cesar E Chavez 

The Cured Leaf TC Inc 962 Cesar E Chavez 

The Dixie Depot TBD 

Top Hill Comoassion Center 946 Cesar Chavez 

U-Versity Medz 1024 Durant 

West Fort Holdinl?S UC 870 Cesar E Chavez 

Yellow Tail Ventures Inc 1025 Cesar Chavez 

Walton Blvd District 
Provisioning Center Applications 

Establishment Name Establishment Address 
3967 Euclid LLC 85 E Walton 

444 Commericial Consulting LLC 529 EWalton 

5303 Portage Inc 298 W Walton 

Cure Wellness LLC 547 Walton 

Glacial Waters Ventures Flourish 177 W Walton 

Michiga n 
Green Facilities Development LLC 156WWalton 

Available License Types in the 
Walton Blvd Overlay District 

1.) Grower 
2.) Processor 
3.) Secure Transporter 
4.) Safety Compliance 
5.) Provisioning Centers (No more than 5 

Provisioning Centers will be selected 
in this district) 

Downtown District 
Provisioning Center Applications 

Establishment Name Establishment Address 
3 Green LLC 81 N Saginaw 

Battle Spring LLC 49 N Saginaw 

Clean Roots LLC 2 & 4 N Saginaw 

Common Citizen 17 S Sa~inaw 

Detroit M edical Concepts LLC dba 177 N Perry 
Kaleafa Pontiac 

Green Bronco Ill LLC 50501 Woodward 

Green Buddha II LLC 20 Whittemore 
Green Buddha/Marelus Br ice 18W Pike 

Greens tone East LLC 87 N Saginaw 

JDS Brothers LLC 7073 Trallway 

JNN Property UC 33 N Saginaw 

JNN Property LLC 45 N Saginaw 

Michigan Supply and Provisions 50 N Saginaw 

Nature 's Medicine 17 W Lawrence 

Nature's Medicine 101 Saginaw 

New Gen Meds 1 N Saginaw 

Pontiac Provisioning LLC 140 N Saginaw 

Pure Roots LLC 23 N Saginaw 

QPS Michigan Holdings LLC 21 N Saginaw 

RTMC Enterprises; Inc dba 123 N Saginaw 

Northern Trellis 

RTMC Enterprises Inc dba 10-12WPike 

Northern Trellis 

VB Chesanin2 91 N Sa2inaw 

Zenith Ventures LLC 22 N Saginaw 

Walton Blvd District 
Lake Effect 108 WWalton 

Leafco Ventures Inc 1461 Baldwin 

Lucid Detroit 114 wwalton 

Nature 's Relief Pontiac TBD 

Nature's Remedy of Pontiac LLC 278/290 W Walton 

Oak Flint LLC 500 EWalton 

Ocean Capitol LLC TBD 

REM Pontiac LLC 1430 Joslyn 

Shine Cannabis 41 E Walton 

Office of the City Clerk Page 3 
• • - - _i. J.. ~~ •-~L - - • - - .0. _,._, 



,,~ OF~ 

t 
" 
~ Non-Overlay 

J 

lii1c c."" 

Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers are 
permitted in C-1, C-3 and C-4 zones properties 
located outside of the Cesar Chavez, Downtown 
and Walton Overlay Districts. 

Prior to being issued a permit, the applicant will 
need to obtain a special exemption permit from 
the City of Pontiac Planning Commission. 

Available License type in the Non-Overlay 
Provisioning Centers (No more than s provisioning 
centers will be selected in the Non-Overlay) 

Zoning Map 
City of Pontiac, Michigan 

'"""""""' 
□ ~1Al,lc,d)., .. l OIOrc r ..... ,,,~ 

IJ2J ~U L-,•ttlOIOrcf~o...£:r,g 

c::J "-10nh""'10.....:.-.9 

c::::J ~-lT...,f, ,..4)'..,dkrr•d.,._..,~ 

D ~l .,,.,.,·,i.,., .. .:,~~, 
- ~◄ Jl,/t 'p'cf o!clJ~~fBn"o lOl/i:ot'l"t,t 
- ,u1,.::., c-11, .. , 
D R-Ollc<,.olM\OJ,..,Jp•u 

-D C~ Ofhelv,'rc:u 

c::J C•1 L0<dl~, •,c:u 

- C·J Cott'C:otC-,rCJdo/ 

CI§ «s~i..,1-;u,1u.'uu 

D T<f-,(utc, 

- WUOlo&lldVuO~ll<I 

D 001 Cio>vr.1'tt.tOlfultd-".llol0->11lU 

Zoning Map Eff1ctlv1 J1;nuuy 2012 

Zoning M11pAmendments; 

o, te Ordln.an<tl 0 ,1, Ofdlt,incet 

02--02-12 22S0 07-1 6-1 4 
04 -1 7-12 2257 11 ·26-1 -4 

06-22-12 n64 
08.(17-12 2269 

__,.,, 
D ~ -1 1r-c1 .. 11..1, .. , 

- M-1l~t.1Mo,..,t,,t,.,',,g 

- ll·lllt '"'7-.Ur~h<t1.tr.9 

. ... 1,.,.:.-., 
- ~Sf<Wl"'-•po,e .. _ ............... __. .... ~ ... . -~ ......... .,,, ____ ............ _ 
.................... _ .. _..., ... ...,C-0 .. ...... _, .. .....,.__, ... , __ _ -·-

• 114 ,....., )µIf 

-=-'"' 

Non-Overlay 
Provisioning Center Applications 

Establishment Name 
Attitude Wellness LLC 

Baldwin Investment Group LLC 

Blue Transit LLC 

Common Citizen 

Core Canna 

CRO Ventures LLC 

Cure Pontiac 

District 

District 

OSK Holding Companv LLC 

Genesis Wellness Center 

Get Your Greens LLC 

Green Station Depot 

Green Zone 

Greenhouse Farms Pontiac LLC 
Greenstone Michigan LLC 

Greenstone Natural Remedies 
Hayat Quality Provisioning I Inc 

Herb Wealth 

HKM Group LLC 

JARS 
JDS Brothers LLC 

JIS LLC 

Joyology 

KG Capital Investments LLC 
Larren Investments LLC 

MK Group Ml LLC 

Nature Releaf Pontiac 

Nature's Remedy of Pontiac LLC 

Nirvana Operations Ml LLC 

Nirvana Operations Ml LLC 

NOBO Michigan LLC 

Ocean Capitol LLC 

PGSH Holdings LLC 

Pharmaco Inc 

Pharmaco Inc 

Pleasantrees 
Pu re Roots LLC 

Pu re Roots LLC 

Qua li ty Roots LLC 

RTMC Enterprises Inc OBA 
Northern Trellis 

SJMB Holdings LLC 

Supherb Dank Inc 

The Pier Provisioning Center 

West Coast Meds LLC 

Wish Pontiac LLC 
Zen Republic LLC 

Zen Republic LLC 

Establishment Address 
45258 Woodward 

1245 Baldwin 

49730 Woodward 

45671 Woodward 

101 E Walton 

348 Franklin 

TBD 

307 Cesar E Chavez 

44784 Woodward 

241 S Telegraph 

746 N Perry 

645 S Telegraph 

TBD 

50300 Woodward 

51616 Woodward 

284 S Telegraph 

205 N Opdyke 

701 Orchard Lake 

791 Baldwin 

50800 Woodward 

869 Orchard 
3 S Glenwood 

254 N Telegraph 

1001 Orchard Lake 

689 Baldwin 
44911 Woodward 

51848 Woodward 

454-460 W Huron 

939 Orchard Lake 
644 Cesar E Chavez 

2212 Glade 

735 Auburn 

1065 Perry 

44732 Woodward 

345 WWalton 

1 S Glenwood 

44821 Woodward 

984 Orchard Lake 

44731 Woodward 

890/892 W Huron Ste C (Current) 
18 N Telegraph (New) 

270 S Telegraph 

684Auburn 

23 W Montcalm 

TBD 

390 W Huron 

422 W Huron 

645 W Walton 

935 Orchard Lake 

Office of the City Clerk Page 4 
.. . - . ' 



Other Applications 

Safety Compliance are permitted in C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 zoning districts outside the Medical 
Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

Secure Transporters are permitted in C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 zoning districts outside the Medical 
Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

Ordinace 2363 only permits Grower or Processors to be licensed if they are 
located in the Cesar Chavez or Walton Overlay Districts 

The City has received the following grower and processor applications that are not in either the Cesar 
Chavez or Walton Blvd Overlay Districts as required by Ordinance 2363. 

Grower Applications 
Establishment Name Establishment Address 

Botanical Greens Inc. 1651 E Highwood 
Family Rootz 1-97 S Glenwood Bldg. C 48342 

Family Rootz 1-97 S Glenwood Space 35 Unit 100 48342 

Pharmaco Inc. 13 S Glenwood 48342 

Processor Applications 
Family Rootz 1-97 S Glenwood Space 35 Unit 100 48342 

Pharmaco Inc. 13 S Glenwood 48342 

What will happen to these applications? 
In January 2020, the City Council submitted a proposed zoning map amendment to the Planning 
Commission to allow grower and processor facilities to locate outside of the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd 
Overlay Districts. The Planning Commission has yet to issue a recommendation to the City Council. The City 
Council must receive a recommendation from the Planning Commission prior to amending Ordinance 2363. 
Until Ordinance 2363 is amended these applications cannot be licensed by the Office of the City Clerk. 

Review Process 

Review Phase 1 (i1 -+ Content Review 

-+ Clerk staff will review application to make sure all information and exhibits have been submitted. 

Review Phase 2 (iJ -+ Default Review 

-+ Staff from each department/division checks the applicant name and stakeholders to ensure they 
are not in default with the city. 

(il -+ Evaluation and/or Scoring Review 9 Review Phase 3 

-+ Review team members evaluate and or score their respective sections of the application. 

9 Review Phase 4 (il -+ Compliance Review 
-+ The legal and planning advisors ensures that satisfactory and unsatisfactory standards have been 

consistently applied by reviewers for Grower, Processor, Secure Transporter, and Safety 
Compliance. 

-+ The legal and planning advisors ensures that Satisfactory, Somewhat Deficient, and Very Deficient 
scoring for Provisioning Centers has been consistently applied by reviewers. 

Office of the City Clerk Page 5 
.., .•_, ....... __ .a.....: .. :... ■ -~I,; _ \,t -::.-. .,_ __ __.__1o_.,-.....,I,. ...__tL_....--~ 



Review Process 

Review Phase 5 (iJ • Background Check 

Review Phase 6 (iJ • Conditional Approval or Application Denied 

• If applicant receives conditional approval, they advance to Phase 7. 

• If application is denied, applicant can file an appeal. (See Process for Appeal) 

Review Phase 7 

• Site Plan Approval and/if necessary Special Exemption Approval Appeal. 

Review Phase 8 

• Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy from Building and Fire. 

Review Phase 9 

• Clerk issues a permit provided you have been issued your pre-qualification from the State of 
Michigan. 

Get monthly updates on the review process at pontiaccityclerk.com/medical-marihuana 

Process For Appeal 

Pontiac City Clerk makes decision on application 

Applicant submits written appeal to 
Pontiac City Clerk within 14 days. 

Pontiac City Clerk appoints hearing officer to hear 
and evaluate appeal. 

Hearing officer conducts hearing on appeal and 
makes recommendation to Pontiac City Clerk, 

who makes a decision on the matter. 

Applicant may submit further written appeal to 
medical marihuana commission within 30 days. 

Office of the City Clerk Page 6 
- -~_,;, _ ..,...._ ,~~,---~ ....... "--..,,.....,._...._.._.. -""-l --;;._,__,,__.. __ ~~ 



Review Team 

Garland Doyle, M.P.A., CNP, Interim City Clerk 
Garland Doyle was appointed Interim City Clerk in October 2018 by the Pontiac City Council. He previously 
served as the Deputy Director for Community & Economic Development in Pontiac. Also, he has been an 
administrator for the City of Detroit. City Clerk Doyle is a results-driven local government leader. He is a 
certified nonprofit professional (CNP). 

Doyle holds a Master of Public Administration with a concentration in Nonprofit Administration and a Graduate 
Certificate in Local Government Management from Eastern Michigan University. His Bachelor of Arts degree is 
from Wayne State University. 

Jonathan Starks, Special Assistant to the City Clerk 
Jonathan Starks joined the Office of the City Clerk in 2019. His primary responsibility is assisting the City Clerk 
with the medical marihuana review process. Jonathan received his Bachelor of Business Administration in 
Accounting from Cleary University. 

Professional Experts 

Sherman J. Taylor, JD CPA, Financial Advisor 
Sherman J Taylor received his bachelor's degree in Business Administration in Accounting and Taxation from 
Grand Valley State University in 2008. He went on to study public interest law at the University of the District 
Columbia's David A. Clarke School of Law. As a senior staff accountant, he led engagements focused on 
projecting cash flow and forecasting sales trends to evaluate the worth and viability of both budding and 
established enterprises. 

His work with Michigan Cannabis companies began in 2017. He's given multiple lectures on cannabis taxation 
and wrote numerous periodicals including, "When money grows on Michigan Trees, The Taxation of Medical 
Marihuana under the Michigan Medical Marijuana Facilities Licensing Act," published in the Oakland County Bar 
Journal in 2018. 

Robert Huth, Jr., Esq., Legal Advisor 
Robert Huth is a partner with Kirk, Huth, Lange and Badalamenti, PLC. Attorney Huth has thirty years of legal 
experience. Rob's expertise is in municipal matters relating to litigation, and ordinance drafting. During the 
"Great Recession" he was appointed a founding member of the Michigan Government Turnaround Association 
and in that capacity was often called upon by the Michigan Treasurer to assist municipalities during difficult 
financial times. 

Jill Bahm, AICP, Planning Advisor 
Jill Bahm is a partner at Giffels Webster and has a broad planning background that includes work in both the 
public and private sector. Jill's municipal experience as a city planner and DDA executive director, combined 
with her commercial real estate experience, design, marketing and promotional skills, allows her the opportunity 
to assist clients with a variety of projects . Jill also enjoys exploring how new technologies can be used to 
engage the public and improve service delivery. Jill serves on the Main Street Oakland County Advisory Board 
and the Michigan Association of Planning Information & Education Committee. 

John Fraser, Esq., Appeals Hearing Officer 
John Fraser is an associate attorney with Grewal Law PLLC and leads the firm's Cannabis Law division. He is the 
Chair-Elect of the Council for the Marijuana Section of the State Bar of Michigan. In addition, John is an adjunct 
professor of law at Western Michigan University Colley Law School where he teaches a course on Medical 
Marijuana and law. He also regularly lectures and presents on cannabis law topics to attorneys and the 
community. 

The following City Departments and Divisions are a part of the review team. 
Planning, Building, City Engineering, and the Waterford Regional Fire Department. 

Office of the City Clerk Page 7 
~ - - , -ca-• • _._~ ._ -• .i. "'- ~ ~ • - ,,. _...,_~~•~-----.l-..-:.il 



Garland S. Doyle, Pontiac City Clerk 
47450 Woodward 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

M~259 ~) 

Contact Your City Clerk (248) 758-3200 

~ clerk@pontiac.mi.us 11 / PontiacCityClerk 

Cl / PontiacClerk a Pontiac City Clerk 

http://pontiaccityclerk.com 

Drive-Up Official Ballot Dropbox Locations: 

» Bowens Center 52 Bagley 
» City Hall 47450 Woodward 
» Fire Station 787 W Huron 

~ 
~!; 

- i>l ~ 

» Herrington Elementary 541 Bay · :sa 
~ 

» Kennedy/Owen School 1700 Baldwin ·· 
» Ruth Peterson Center 990 Joslyn 
» Walt Whitman Elementary 125 W Montcalm 

Pontiac Elected Officials 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman, MD ................................... (248) 758-3181 

Council President Kermit Williams, Dist. 7 ....... (248) 758-3017 

Council President Pro Tem Randy Carter, Dist. 4 .... (248) 758-3014 

Council Member Patrice Waterman, Dist. 1 ....... (248) 758-3018 

Council Member Megan Shramski, Dist. 2 .... ...... (248) 758-3015 

Council Member Mary Pietila, Dist., 3 .............. .. .. (248) 758-3019 

Council Member Gloria Miller, Dist., 5 ............ ..... (248) 758-3016 

Council Member Doris Taylor Burks, Dist. 6 ......... (248) 758-3027 

PRSRT STD 
US POSTAGE 
P A I D 

MASS MAILING 



~ 
r 

~ DEPARTMENT HEAD: FINANCE: 

REQ. CREA TED *-►~t.:;l ~,:--A-p__,p_ro_ve-::;d~1==0::::/2;:;:9:;::,/2:::-:,0:20::=~il--l► ~'==A=p=p=ro=v=ed= 10=/=29:::::/:::::20:::::::2::::::0=::""' 

PURCHASING: 
Approved 10/29/2020 

DENIED/CANCELLED 



Date 

10/01/2020 ---
10/29/2020 GJ 

10/29/2020 GJ 

Date I JNL 
10/01/ 2020 

10/29/2020 GJ 

10/31/2020 

Date I JNL 

10/29/2020 GJ 

I Description 
101-191-728.000 Postage 

RECLASS ELECTION INV PER GARLAND DOYLE 11679 

RECLASS ELECTION INV PER GARLAND DOYLE 11679 

· 1 Description l Reference~# 

101-191 -818. 000 Other Professional Services 

RECLASS ELECTION INV PER GARLAND DOYLE 11679 

101-191-818.000 END BALANCE 

I; Description If Reference# 
~01-191-882.000 Pro,fS~i6?s - Pubfic Relatio,n~ , 

RECLASS B.ECTION INV PER GARLAND DOYLE 11679 

$975.00 
+4,365.54 
+4950.00 
+600.00 

Total $10,890.54 

Ii 

10148'6.35 

975.00 11,461.35 

4,365.54 15,826.89 

....L Debits r eredits I Balance 

0.00 

4,950.00 4,950.00 

4,950.00 4,950.00 

- Debits r credits r Balance I 
o.oo ! 

600.00 1, 500.00 



CILIF 
TH E CURCIO LAW FIRM 

Attorney Memorandum1 

To: Garland Doyle, Pontiac City Clerk 

From: Nick Curcio, Attorney 

Re: Locational Requirements for Marijuana Growers and Processors 

Date: March 9, 2021 

In 2019, the City of Pontiac adopted Ordinance Number 2363 to establish zoning 

requirements for medical marijuana facilities. 2 Among other things, the ordinance 

establishes three medical marijuana overlay districts (MMODs), known as the Walton 

Boulevard MMOD, the Cesar Chavez MMOD, and the C-2 downtown MMOD. The 

stated purpose of MMODs is to "provide for the placement of Medical Marihuana3 

related uses ... with a goal of minimizing potential adverse impacts on adjacent property 

owners, neighbors, and the City. "4 Over the last year, questions have arisen as to 

whether, and in what circumstances, the zoning ordinance allows parcels outside the 

MMODs to be approved for marijuana-related uses. To help clarify this issue, you asked 

for my opinion as to whether the Planning Commission is authorized to grant a special 

exception permit for a marijuana grower or processor at a location outside of the 

MMODs. You also asked if a conditional rezoning agreement could authorize the 

Planning Commission to do so, without rezoning the property in question to be part of 

anMMOD. 

For the reasons described below, I believe the answer to both of those questions is 

"no." If called upon to interpret the City's zoning ordinances, a reviewing court would 

likely conclude that the MMODs are the exclusive locations in the City where growers 

and processors can legally operate. While the zoning ordinance expressly allows other 

1 This memo is one of several that you asked me to prepare as your privately retained legal counsel. 
During our initial consultation, you explained to me that you felt pressured to take actions in your 
role as City C lerk that you believed to be contrary to applicable law. Accordingly, you asked for my 
opinion on various legal issues to help you decide how to respond to those pressures. Please note that 
I do not represent or have any relationship with the City of Pontiac. Pursuant to Section 4.202(a) of 
the Pontiac City Charter, the City Attorney is responsible for "supervising the conduct of all the legal 
business of the City and its departments." 
2 The statements of fact in this opinion are based primarily on your representations to me during our 
initial consultation. For the most part, I have not independently verified those representations. 
3 Notably, both the City's zoning ordinance and various state statutes use an antiquated spelling of 
"marijuana" that includes an "h" instead of a "j." This memo uses the more modem spelling except 
where quoting directly from ordinance or statutory text. 
4 Pontiac Zoning Ordinance § 3.1101. 



types of medical marijuana facilities to be located outside of the MMODs subject to a 

special exception permit, it makes no such allowance for grower and processor uses. 

Accordingly, the City cannot reasonably interpret the zoning ordinance to provide such 

an allowance, nor can it create such an allowance through a contract with a private party. 

Rather, the only scenarios in which a parcel that is currently outside of an MMOD could 

be lawfully approved for grower or processor uses would be if: (1) the parcel is rezoned 

to be within an MMOD; or (2) the City amends the zoning ordinance to allow medical 

marijuana growers and processors in other locations, either as permitted uses or special 

exception uses. 

By way of further explanation, there are several sections of the zoning ordinance that 

are relevant to answering the question posed above. First, section 2.201 explains the 

distinction between the different designations for zoning uses in the City of Pontiac. A 

"permitted use" is one that is clearly compatible with a given zoning district and therefore 

"require[s] a minimum of limitations." Permitted uses are allowed "by right," subject 

only to site plan review to the extent required by section 6.202. A "special exception 

use," by contrast, is a use "presenting potential injurious effect upon residential and 

other property, unless authorized under specific imposed conditions." In particular, 

special exception uses require a special exception permit issued by the Planning 

Commission pursuant to a more rigorous review process provided in article 6, chapter 3 

of the zoning ordinance. If the zoning ordinance does not authorize a defined use as 

either a permitted use or a special exception use in a particular zoning district, section 

2.202 provides that the use is prohibited in that district. 

Pursuant to section 2.204 of the zoning ordinance, a table labeled "Table 2" lists 

"the uses that may be permitted in each zoning district." In doing so, it uses different 

symbols to distinguish uses that are permitted by right from those that require a special 

exception permit. Among other things, Ordinance Number 2363 amends Table 2 to 

include five different types of medical marijuana facilities, each of which is defined and 

2 



authorized by the Michigan Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act. The new 

sections of Table 2 appear as follows: 

Medical Marlhuana Growor 

Medical Marlhuana Processor 

· Medlcol Marlhuancf Provisioning 

Centers 

Medical Marlhuana:Safely ;:

compliance raclllly 

Medfcal Marlhu~na Socuro 

Transporter . 

Commorolal, Office, and Sorvlce Ui;os 

Resldontlal 

Districts 
Commorolal Districts 

Jhdustrlal 

Districts 

R-1 R-2 R-3 C·O C-1 C-2 c.a C-4 M-1 M-2 IP-1 

) 

; , * I 
:. :l o 

I 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

•k * ; 0 . .. 0 . : . 0 

* * * * o · ·'. :' o o 0 
_.; ' •, 

... .... . 
* '.f j ; * 

o o - .. , ·. ~,:o . o 0 

* Special Exception Permit Uses 04tslde the Medical Marlhuana Overlay Dlstrlcts · 

o Principal Permitted Uses In the Medical Marlhuana Overlay Districts 

Section 

2,544 

Section 

2,545 

Section 

2,546 

Section 

2,547 

As shown above, the rows in the table for grower and processor uses are identical, 

with both having a circle symbol (o) in the M-1, M-2, and IP-1 columns. According to 

the key below the table, that symbol indicates that a use is a principal permitted use in 

the MMODs. In otherwords, when a parcel is zoned M-1, M-2, or IP-1 with an MMOD 

overlay designation, grower and processor uses are permitted by right. Notably, the rows 

in the table for grower and processor uses do not include any asterix symbols (*), which 

indicate that a use can be authorized via special exception permit for parcels outside the 

MMODs. By contrast, the rows for the other three types of medical marijuana uses 

contain asterix symbols in various columns. 

In addition to Table 2, there are several other sections in the zoning ordinance that 

are potentially relevant to the question posed. For each use type, Ordinance Number 

2363 creates a new zoning section that provides locational and other regulatory 

requirements. For example, section 2.544 pertains to grower facilities, and states in a 

subsection entitled "Licensing" that "Medical Marihuana Grower uses are not permitted 

3 



outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts." 

Section 2.545 pertains to processors and has a nearly identical provision. By contrast, 

sections 2.546, 2.54 7, and 2.548, which pertain to provisioning centers, safety 

compliance facilities, and secure transporters, respectively, state that each of those uses 

may be located outside of the MMODs. For example, section 2.546 states: "No More 

than five (5) Provisioning Centers shall be established in the C-1, C-3, and C-4 zoned 

properties combined outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts." Sections 2.547 and 

2.548 include similar language. 

The final relevant section of Ordinance Number 2363 is section 3.1106, which 

provides: "Medical Marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts are 

subject to Planning Commission approval following the Standards for Approval of 

Section 6.303 for Special Exception Permits, and Article 2, Chapter S, Development 

Standards for Specific Uses." 

In my opinion, these sections collectively indicate that growers and processors can 

only be located in the MMODs, where they are permitted by right. I understand that 

some have suggested otherwise, asserting that section 3.1106 allows all five types of 

medical marijuana uses to locate outside of the MMODs if the Planning Commission 

approves a given location by issuing a special exception permit. This reading of the 

ordinance is contrary to two principal rules of legal interpretation, and therefore is not 

legally viable. First, when possible, courts must "give every word meaning, and should 

seek to avoid any construction that renders any part of a statute surplus or ineffectual."5 

As the Supreme Court has explained, "when there is tension, or even conflict, between 

sections of a statute, this Court has a duty to, if reasonably possible, construe them both 

so as to give meaning to each; that is, to harmonize them."6 Here, if section 3.1106 is 

read to allow all five types of medical marijuana uses to locate outside of the MM ODs, 

the sections of the ordinance that expressly prohibit growers and processors from 

locating outside of the MMODs (i.e., Table 2 and sections 2.544 and 2.545) would be 

superfluous and ineffectual. On the other hand, all of the relevant sections can be easily 

harmonized by reading section 3.1106 more narrowly, so that its reference to "Medical 

Marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts" refers only to the 

5 In re Turpening Estate, 258 Mich App 464, 465; 671 NW2d 567 2003). 
6 Nowell v Titan Ins Co, 466 Mich 478,483; 648 NW2d 157 (2002). 

4 



three specific types of uses that are expressly allowed to locate outside of the MM ODs 

pursuant to other sections (i.e., provisioning centers, safety compliance facilities, and 

secure transporters). This reading is perfectly consistent with the text of the ordinance, 

in that it does not require giving any words or phrases irregular meanings. 

A second relevant principal of interpretation is that when two sections of a statute 

or ordinance are in conflict with each other, the more specific provision takes precedence 

over the more general one. 7 This rule is thought to help courts give effect to the 

legislature's intent, on the theory that "the specific provision comes closer to addressing 

the very problem posed by the case at hand and is thus more deserving of credence."8 

Here, to the extent that the various provisions of the zoning ordinance are in conflict 

with each other, the provisions that directly address the locational requirements for 

growers and processors are more specific than section 3.1106, which refers to medical 

marijuana uses more generally. Accordingly, a court would likely find that the more 

specific provisions that prohibit growers and processors from locating outside of the 

MMODs take precedence over any language in section 3.1106 that might suggest 

otherwise. 

Aside from the interpretive issue involving section 3.1106, some have suggested that 

the Court of Appeals's decision in Reilly v Marion Township9 empowers the Planning 

Commission to grant special exception permits for growers and processors outside of the 

MM ODs, even if the text of the ordinance does not do so. This suggestion is based on a 

fundamental misunderstanding of the holding in Reilly. In that case, the Court 

considered a narrow issue of interpretation involving the Marion Township zoning 

ordinance: whether the zoning board was authorized to grant a special exception permit 

for a commercial trucking operation even though commercial trucking was not 

specifically listed in the zoning ordinance as a special exception use permitted in any 

zoning district. 10 The court concluded that the zoning board had the power to do so, 

because language in the ordinance specifically "empowered [the board] to add to the list 

7 See, e.g., Bruwer v Oaks (On Remand), 218 Mich App 392, 396; 554 NW2d 345 (1996). 
8 Scalia & Garner, Reading Law: The Interpretation of Legal Texts (St. Paul: Thomson/West, 2012), 
p 183. 
9 113 Mich App 584, 317 NW2d 693 (1982) . 
10 Id. at 588-589. 

5 



of special use exceptions those exceptions deemed necessary to protect adjacent 

properties, the general neighborhood, and its residents and workers." 11 

There are at least three reasons why the decision in Reilly has no bearing on the 

question you posed above. First, unlike the ordinance in Reilly, the Pontiac Zoning 

Ordinance is not silent as to whether the various medical marijuana facilities are allowed 

as special exception uses. Rather, Table 2 and other sections of the ordinance specifically 

indicates that some are and some are not. This fact alone distinguishes the present 

circumstance from Reilly. Second, also unlike the ordinance in Reilly, the Pontiac Zoning 

Ordinance does not include any language indicating that the Planning Commission can 

add to the list of uses that are permitted by special exception permit. Third, it is 

questionable whether Reilly remains good law after the passage of the Michigan Zoning 

Enabling Act (MZEA). In Whitman v Gallien Township, 12 the Court of Appeals held that 

the MZEA, which was enacted in 2006, "require[es] that a zoning ordinance specifically 

enumerate the land uses and activities that are eligible for special-use status." 13 In doing 

so, the court seemed to indicate that the open-ended list of special exception uses at issue 

in the Reilly may not comply with the new requirements in the MZEA. 14 

Finally, some have suggested that the City can allow growers and processors to locate 

outside of the MM ODs by entering into conditional rezoning agreements wherein the 

City agrees to rezone a parcel to a zoning designation that does not ordinarily allow 

growers or processors (i.e., a zoning designation outside of the MMODs), but then 

provides in the agreement that the parcel can be used as a grower or processor via a 

special exception permit. In my opinion, the MZEA does not allow this type of 

arrangement. The relevant provision of the MZEA authorizes conditional rezoning 

agreements by providing that "[a]n owner of land may voluntarily offer in writing, and 

the local unit of government may approve, certain use and development of the land as a 

condition to a rezoning of the land or an amendment to a zoning map." 15 When used in 

the zoning context, the word "condition" refers to a "limitation[] on the use of the land 

and to protect nearby owners." 16 Accordingly, the purpose of a conditional rezoning 

11 Id. at 588. 
12 288 Mich App 672; 808 NW2d 9 (2010). 
13 Id. at 17. 
14 Id. 
15 MCL 125.3405. 
16 City of Troy v Aslanian, 170 Mich App 523, 528; 428 NW2d 703 (1988). 

6 



agreement is to place additional limitations on a specific parcel that would not otherwise 

exist under the zoning designation to which the property is being rezoned. For example, 

a community might choose to rezone a residential parcel to a commercial designation, 

but then provide by agreement that the parcel can only be used for a lower-intensity 

commercial use, like an ice cream store, rather than for any of the commercial uses 

ordinarily permitted in the district. 17 Importantly, nothing in the text of the statute 

indicates that a rezoning agreement can authorize a property owner to engage in uses 

that are not allowed in the zoning district to which the parcel is being rezoned. Such an 

arrangement is inconsistent with the common understanding of the word "condition," 

which refers to imposition of additional limitations rather than granting of additional 

rights. Therefore, if the City wishes to use conditional rezoning to allow growers or 

processors in new locations, the only permissible way to do so would be to rezone the 

parcel in question to an MMOD zoning designation. A reviewing court would likely 

determine that a rezoning agreement that rezones a parcel to a different zoning 

designation, outside of an MMOD, cannot authorize grower or processor uses to operate 

via special exception permit. 

I hope this memo sufficiently answers your question. Please let me know if there is 

anything further I can do to assist with this issue. 

17 As one prominent commentator has explained, "To reduce controversy or concerns the applicant 
might volunteer to condition the zoning amendment to restrict the use of the parcel(s) to only a 
specific certain land use. For example an ice cream store rather than all the possible land uses in a 
commercial district. If the zoning amendment is approved something like a deed restriction is placed 
on the parcel so that only the restricted uses of the parcel are possible." Kurt H. Schindler, Michigan 
State University Extension, "All zoning does not have to include everything in the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act," August 19, 2015 

7 



Garland Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk Releases 
the Entire List of Center for Tech and Civic Life 

(CTCL) Grant Expenditures 
Purpose of the Grant: Support the 2020 Pontiac Safe Voting Plan 

Grant Award: $405,640 

Grant Expenditures: $249,108.21 (as of April 9, 2021) 

Grant Remaining Balance: $156,531.79 

The grant balance must be spent by June 30, 2021. Any unused funds 
have to be returned to the CTCL. 



As of April 9, 2021 

Funding Source Grantee Total Budget YTD Expenditures Remaining Amount 

Center for Tech and Civic Life {CTCL} City of Pontiac Office of the City Clerk $405,640.00 $249,108.21 $156,531.79 

Center for Tech and Civic Life 
Vendor/Company or Last Name Vendor/First Name BSA Invoice Description YTD Expenditures 

Ballot Drop Boxes $20,892.27 
Elam Service Group Ballot Boxes (7) - Installation $5,250.00 

Amazon Temporary Security Cameras (Ballot Boxes) $474.72 

American Security Cabinets LLC Ballot Boxes (7) - Development & Design $14,298.00 

American Security Cabinets LLC Ballot Box Covers (7) $869.55 

Election Administration Equipment $16,126.63 
Done Right Engraving Pontiac Polling Site Signs $270.00 

Election ·Expenses Reimbursement - Uhaul Rental 

Doyle Garland to Transport Election Equipment to Precincts & 
office supplies $230.10 

Estwo Promotions Election Aprons $3,599.20 

Amazon Services Election Scanners $2,549.70 

Insight Public Sector Computer Equipment $6,884.11 

Insight Publ ic Sector 
Computer Equipment (2 computers & 2 monitors) $1,837.12 

Staples Business Advantage Equipment (Drop Box Covers, Laptop bags, etc.) 
$756.40 

Non-partisan voter education $30,705.84 
iHeart Radio Election Day Non-partisan Ads $4,000.00 

Sawicki & Son Signage (Yard signs reminding citizens to vote) $1,650.00 
Staples Labels & Stapler $268.55 

21st Century Media Notice of Registration & Election $6,382.00 
I Professional Services (Publ ic Relations) - Safe 

Thompson Damon Voting Video $450.00 

Oakland Strategies Group Postage & Mailings (General Election Absentee 

Voter postcards & sample ballot ma ilings) $17,355.29 

Jackson Thomas Canvassers - General $200.00 
Jacson Yvette Canvassers - General $200.00 
Williams DeNicco Canvassers - General $200.00 

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for 

staff, poll workers or voters $1,903.79 
Daily Printz w/BT Face Masks for Election Workers $1,750.00 

Doyle Garland 
Election Expenses Reimbursement - COVID 

Supplies & Signage $153.79 



Polling place rental and cleaning expenses 
$650.00 

Amarge Development Polling Location Rental Fee $650.00 
Poll worker recruitment funds, hazard pay 

and/or training expenses $109,771.49 
Adams Jack Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Alexander-Estill Carol Chair - General $425.00 

Allen Camillya Absentee Voting Processor - Primary/General $375.00 
Allen Christine Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Anantharaman Krishnan Co-chair - Primary/General $605.00 
Ansari Amr Sanitizer - Polling Location - General $305.00 
Atwater Brian Election Day Pollworker Tra ining - Genera l $25.00 
Bailey Leslie Co-chair - Primary $250.00 
Bambury Mark Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Barnes Tempest Chair - Primary/General $725.00 
Bates Valerie Cha ir - Primary/General $725.00 
Baylor-Boothe DaQuetta Co-chair - Primary/General $825.00 
Beck Rhonda Inspector - Primary $330.00 
Black Pauline Co-Chair -General $375.00 
Blacknall Rodney Inspector- Primary/General $560.00 
Blauwaert Eric Inspector - General $330.00 
Blunt Cameron Inspector/Social Distance Monitor- Primary $150.00 
Bouchard Michael Election Day Pollworker Training - General $50.00 
Bowlby Anne Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Boyes Christine Inspector - Primary/Genera l $585.00 
Bradferd Cassandra Chair - Primary $300.00 
Bradley Valerie Absentee Voting Runner - Primary $400.00 
Bricker Jeff Absentee Voting Runner - General $375.00 
Briggs Jacqueline Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Briggs Mitzi Phone Bank - General $330.00 
Brooks Charles Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Brot hers Ann Inspector - Genera l $355.00 
Broussard Yvette Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Brown Deandre Inspector/Social Distance Monitor - Primary $230.00 
Buchsbaum Jesse Co-Chair - General $350.00 
Bullock Kaylie Receiving Board - General $275.00 
Bullock Zelma Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 
Burks Kimberly Inspector - General $355.00 
Cabbil Sheryl Inspector - Primary/Genera l $560.00 
Camp Joshua Election Day Pollworker Training - Primary $25.00 
Cannon Pernia Election Day Pollworker Training - Primary $25.00 
Carley Robert Inspector - General $330.00 



Carson John Location Monitor - General $350.00 
Carson Pauletta Inspector - Primary/General $655.00 
Carthane Kim Inspector - Primary/General $535.00 

Cash Alonzo Mover - Primary/General $575.00 

Castro Alissa Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 

Castro Benansio Chair/Mover - Primary/General $1,150.00 

Castro Irene Co-chair - Primary/General $600.00 

Chamberlain Melanie Inspector - General $330.00 

Chambers Joyce Inspector- General $355.00 
Chen Kevin Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 

Clark Quanicia Inspector - Primary/General $630.00 

Cobos Ana Co-chair - Primary $250.00 
Cohen Tina Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 

Coleman Loretta Inspector - Primary/General $255.00 
Coleman Mavis Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Cook Ronald Election Day PollworkerTraining - General $25.00 
Cooper Elisa· Co-Chair - General $375.00 
Cosby Kelly Location Manager - Primary/General $925.00 
Crawford Karmaleeda Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 

Crimes Vanessa Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Davies Barbara Inspector - Primary/General $255.00 
Davis Paula Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Dempsey Debrie Co-chair - Primary $250.00 
Dewalt Jenaya Election Day Pollworker Training - Primary $25.00 
Dillion Sharon Location Manager - Primary/General $950.00 
Donahue-Bey Lindburg Mover - Primary/General $450.00 
Donalson Christine Chair - Primary/General $725.00 
Dooley Jennifer Chair - Primary/General $725.00 
Dooley Robert Sanitizer- Polling Location - General $305.00 
Dowelll Fern Inspector - Primary/General $605.00 
Dugan Amyre Inspector - General $330.00 
Easley Marsha Co-Chair - General $350.00 
Edison Callie Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 
Elam Jamia Social Distance Monitor - Primary $200.00 
Elam Jordyn Social Distance Monitor - Primary $200.00 
Elliot Willie Location Monitor - General $330.00 
Ellsworth Delores Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 
English Lula Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Eppenyer Quinton Election Day Pollworker Training -Primary $25.00 
Esguerra Jody Receiving Board - General $275.00 
Estes Nicole Inspector - General $330.00 
Estill Ill Russell Inspector - General $355.00 
Estill IV Russell Inspector - General $355.00 



Fairley-Hunter Katie Inspector - General $355.00 
Fed Sandra Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Fleming Jennifer Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 
Fletcher Antijuan Social Distance Monitor - Primary $230.00 
Fletcher Marneshia Inspector - General $355.00 
Ford Corene Inspector - General $330.00 
Foster Monetta Phone Bank- General $330.00 
Foster Shani Chair - Primary/General $725.00 
Fowlkes Darryl Supervisor/Mover - Primary/General $1,350.00 
Franklin Ruperta Co-chair - Primary/General $605.00 
Fultz Kuwan Inspector/Social Distance Monitor - Primary $230.00 
Fultz Kwanzell Inspector/Social Distance Monitor - Primary $230.00 
Gaba Charles Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Gallucci Mia Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Giles Nicole Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Gorcyca Mary Jo Inspector - General $330.00 
Gordon John Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Gordon Carolyn Co-chair - Primary/General $580.00 
Green Levon Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Green Julia Chair - Primary/General $625.00 
Hamilton Vilisa Chair - Primary/General $625.00 
Hardie La Keshia Chair - Primary/General $650.00 
Hardie Kimari Co-chair - Primary/General $555.00 
Harris-Carter Sharon Inspector - General $355.00 
Hauser-Pyeatt Carrie Inspector - Primary/General $505.00 
Hawkins Jozette Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Hawley Lisa Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Haynes Debra Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Helman Marcus Co-Chair - General $375.00 
Henderson Millicent Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Henk Kathleen Inspector - General $355.00 
Higginbotham Andrea Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Hodges Beverly Chair - Primary/General $625.00 
Hodges Lyketta Co-chair - Primary/General $625.00 
Hoen Mary Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Hunt Tamika Co-Chair - General $350.00 
Ivey LaTina Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Jackson Destiny Sanitizer - Polling Location - General $305.00 
Jackson Odessa Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Jacobs James Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Jacobs Lezel Election Day Pollworker Training - Primary $43.00 
Jacobs Denise Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Jeffery Bret Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 



Jeffery Ruth Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Johnson Kerry Inspector - General $330.00 

Johnson Irma Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 

Johnson John Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 

Johnson Z'areyah Inspector - Primary $200.00 

Johnson Larnidra Election Day Pollworker Training - Primary $25.00 

Jones Francine Election Day Pollworker Training $25.00 

Jones Vanessa Co-chair/Social Distance Monitor - Primary $250.00 

Jones Maurice Absentee Voting Runner - General $350.00 

Jovanovic Tanja Co-Chair - General $375.00 

Kapanka Susan Inspector - Primary $230.00 

Kirkland Andrew Inspector - Primary $230.00 

Knowles Andrea Inspector - General $370.00 

Koenig Richard Inspector - General $330.00 
Kovacek David Inspector - General $330.00 

Lafferty John Inspector - Primary $230.00 

Lambert Kristen Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 

Latimer Lesia Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Lavalais Corsey Location Monitor - General $330.00 

Le Duff Octave Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 
LeDuff Jr Octave Sanitizer - Polling Location - General $305.00 

Lee Carolyn Inspector - General $355.00 
Lewis Latina Chair - Primary $300.00 
Lewis Nancy Inspector - Primary/General $255.00 
Liss Jonah San itizer- Polling Location - General $305.00 

Lombardo Shawn Inspector - General $355.00 
Lopez Stephany Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Lucas Earl Inspector - Primary/General $535.00 
Lucas Victoria Inspector - General $330.00 
Lucas Jackie Absentee Voting Runner - General $375.00 
Ludtk Shelby Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Machado-Wright Maria Co-chair - Primary/General $580.00 
Manilla Joanne Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Manzoor Iman Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Martin Taylor Co-Chair - General $375.00 
Martin Catherine Inspector - General $330.00 
Mason Mya Chair - General $400.00 
McAdoo John Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Mccathern Charmeen Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Mcclenon Eunice Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
McKinley Trina Election Day PollworkerTraining - General $25.00 
McQuade Peggy Inspector/Social Distance Monitor - Primary $230.00 
Meas Savannah Inspector - Primary/General $580.00 



Miller Elaine Chair - Primary/General $725.00 
Miller Iola Inspector - General $330.00 
Mohan Briana Co-cha ir - Primary/General $600.00 
Moody Debra Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Moragne Brenda Absentee Voting Sorter - General $330.00 
Moragne Linda Absentee Voting Sorter - General $330.00 
Morway Cheryl Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Nagy Mary Lou Inspector - Primary/General $355.00 
Nagy Ernest Inspector - General $330.00 
Nauss Harrison Sanitizer - Polling Location - Primary $200.00 
Neal Mark Co-chair - Primary/General $600.00 
Newburn Steven Canvassers - General $200.00 
Newman Malkia Chair - Primary/General $700.00 
Newman Debrae Co-chair - Primary/General $630.00 
Nicholas Regina Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Northcross-Lateef Kahlil Sanitizer - Polling Location - General $305.00 
Nuccio Beth Inspector - Primary $230.00 
O'Connor Carolyn Inspector - General $330.00 
Oneill Tim Inspector - General $355.00 
Opthoff Donna Inspector - General $355.00 
Otis Paula Inspector - General $375.00 
Palise Mark Inspector - General $330.00 
Pascot Diane Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Patterson Neleita Inspector - General $355.00 
Payne Nicholas Inspector - General $330.00 
Peals Calvanita Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Penson Teresa Election Day Pollworker Train ing - Genera l $25.00 
Peters Mavis Election Day P_ollworker Training - General $25.00 
Pugh Johnetta Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Rahman Tasawwar Co-Chair - General $350.00 
Ramos Johanna Election Day Pollworker Training- Primary $25.00 
Ramos-Ortiz Neftali Inspector - Primary/General $655.00 
Rector Dana Receiving Board - General $275.00 
Reece Janiqua Co-chair - Primary $250.00 
Reed John Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Robbins David Co-chair - Primary/General $625.00 
Roberts Veronica Inspector - General $330.00 
Rogers Lori Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Rose Arthur Chair - Primary/General $735.00 
Rose Shelbie Inspector - General $330.00 
Rowells Brandon Inspector - General $330.00 
Salahou Abiba Receiving Board -General $275.00 
Sanderson Mary Inspector- General $330.00 



Settles Cortez Trouble Shooter - Primary $500.00 
Shade Vivian Election Day PollworkerTraining- General $25.00 

Sharpton Canovia Co-chair - Primary/General $625.00 
Sheltraw Joseph Inspector - General $355.00 

Shelvy Demetri Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 

Shields Gwendolyn Election Day Pollworker Training - General $355.00 

Shockley Sheila Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 

Shockley Calvin Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Shorter Alan Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Simmons John Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Simms Polly Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 

Sloan Louise Co-Chair - General $350.00 
Smith LaTrena Co-Chair- General $375.00 
Smith Gwendolyn Inspector- Primary/General $585.00 
Smith Annie Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Smith Zenora Inspector - Primary $200.00 
Smith Geraldine Election Day Pollworker Training - Primary $25.00 
Spann Lord-Oshton Inspector - General $330.00 

Spann Princess-Rryal Inspector - General $330.00 
Stanfield Valentina Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Stieler Brianna Inspector - General $330.00 
Talibah Suhailah Chair - Primary $300.00 
Teasley Gainell Inspector - General $330.00 
Teasley Rory Mover - Primary/General $980.00 
Teasley Sr. Glenn Inspector- General $330.00 
Terry Gina Inspector - General $330.00 
Terry Cateisha Phone Bank- Primary/General $330.00 
Thomas Jerrydine Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Thomas Joyce Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Thompson Priscilla Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Tiggs Sonya Chair - Primary/General $700.00 
Torres-Harper Mirtha Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Tsivitse Chris Absentee Voting Processor - General $350.00 
Vargas Carmen Inspector - Primary $230.00 
Walker Denelda Inspector - General $330.00 
Walker Gayle Inspector- Primary/General $560.00 
Walters Jordan Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Washington Patrick Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Washington Ronald Inspector - Primary/General $560.00 
Washington Jennifer Chair- Primary/General $900.00 
Washington Jailynn Co-chair- Primary/General $775.00 
Watkins Frederick Receiving Board - General $275.00 
Watts Luis Co-chair - Primary/General $600.00 



Webb Joyce Absentee Voting Sorter - General $330.00 
Webb Arrianna Absentee Voting Sorter - General $330.00 
Williams Kelly Inspector - General $330.00 
Williams Vicki Inspector - Primary/General $255.00 
Williams Avana Inspector- Primary $230.00 
Winkworth Rob Absentee Voting Processor/Runner - General $350.00 
Withers Randolph Election Day Pollworker Training- Primary $25.00 
Womble Robert Inspector - Primary/General $255.00 
Woods Earsia Inspector - Primary/General $585.00 
Wright Jordin Inspector- Primary/General $580.00 
Yancy Matthew Sanitizer - Polling Location - General $305.00 
Yeargin Andrea Election Day Pollworker Training - General $25.00 
Young Threada Inspector - General $330.00 
Young Dennis Inspector - General $330.00 
Taylor Joyce Pollworker Trainer $880.00 
Moore Sonya Pollworker Trainer $3,800.00 
Office Management & Consulting Election Equipment $2,050.00 

Doyle Garland 
Election Expenses Reimbursement - Water/Snacks 

for Trainings $58.49 
Unique Food Management General Election Day Meals (Pollworkers) $3,500.00 
Temporary Staffing Support $48,941.65 
Campbell Sylvia Clerk's Office Elections Temp $6,659.70 
Carpenter Alicia Clerk's Office Elections Temp $933.45 
Castro Mary Clerk's Office Elections Temp $14,317.85 
Hottle Pamela Clerk's Office Elections Temp $5,974.58 
Jimenez Janet Clerk's Office Elections Temp $4,318.81 
Marve Solomon Clerk's Office Elections Temp $3,330.00 
Omsby Kailah Clerk's Office Elections Temp $4,494.68 
Reece Lashunda Clerk's Office Elections Temp $3,453.40 
Roberts Letyna Clerk's Office Elections Temp $1,252.50 
Wright Kendall Clerk's Office Elections Temp $2,785.88 
Wright Charita Clerk's Office Elections Temp $1,420.80 
Vote-by-mail/Absentee Voting 

Equipment/Supplies $20,116.54 
Sprint Telephone Charges for Pollworkers $52.21 
Staples General Election Supplies $1,811.94 
Starks Jonathan Service Team Mileage Reimbursement $132.80 
Amazon Honeywell Barcode Scanners $1,618.28 
Printing Systems Election Envelopes $935.93 
Printing Systems Election Forms & Supplies $485.25 

Doyle Garland 
Election Expenses Reimbursement - Overnight 

Postage for mailing absentee ballots 
$362.15 



Thompson Damon 
Professional Services (Public Relations) -Absentee 

Voting Videos $900.00 
Printing Systems Election Forms & Supplies $6,394.43 

Printing Systems 
Election Forms & Supplies (Postage for Single AV 

App Postcards) $3,532.55 
Oakland County Treasurer Absentee Voting Equipment/Supplies $3,891.00 



How will the remaining $156,531.79 
of the grant funds be spent? 

• Funding Election Specialist position in the Clerk's Office 

• PontiacCityClerk.com website upgrades 

• Permanent Ballot Drop Boxes Security Cameras 


	20210416163416862
	20210416163435624
	20210416163530797
	20210416163608320
	20210416163643109
	20210416163730656_0001
	20210416163730656_0002
	20210416163730656_0003
	20210416163822649
	20210416163901257_0001
	20210416163901257_0002
	20210416163901257_0003



